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CHAPTER |

1.1 MAYOR’S FOREWORD

1. FOREWORD BY HIS WORSHIP THE HONOURABLE MAYOR
HIS WORSHIP THE MAYOR: CLLR ML BUTHELEZI

It gives me great pleasure to present the Annual Report for
the 2023/24 financial year for the eMadlangeni Local
Municipality. This report covers a significant period of
transition for our municipality, as it deals with the year
under review, | am proud to say that the eMadlangeni
Municipality has achieved a number of important
milestones over the past year.

One of our key accomplishments was the successful
completion of the long-awaited refurbishment of the Balele
Game Park. This project, which was years in the making,
has breathed new life into this valuable community asset and has already begun
attracting increased tourism to our region. In addition to this infrastructure upgrade, |
am also pleased to report that the municipality has received an unqualified Audit
opinion from the Auditor General. This is a testament to the hard work and diligence
of our finance team and all municipal staff in ensuring proper financial management
and accountability. Another significant development during this period was the
establishment and completion of our Municipal Disaster Emergency Centre. In light of
the ongoing global health challenges, this facility has greatly enhanced our ability to
respond quickly and effectively to any disease outbreaks or public health
emergencies that may arise in our community.

We have made strides in our infrastructure development, with the rehabilitation of
three roads in our town - Kerk Phase 3, Scheepers and the upgrade of Sports Field in
ward 2. These much-needed improvements to our road network will enhance
connectivity and accessibility for our residents. As we look ahead to the next term of
council, we remain committed to building on these achievements and delivering even
greater value to the residents of eMadlangeni.

Our plans include expanding affordable housing options and strengthening regional
partnerships to address issues like waste management and public transportation.

This Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in
the Municipal Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003 section 121.
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| would like to express my gratitude to the council, our dedicated municipal staff, and

the people of eMadlangeni for their unwavering support and collaboration. Together,
we have weathered a period of significant change and are now poised to embark on
an even more ambitious agenda for the future.

Thank you

CLLR ML Buthelezi
THE MAYOR
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COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.2 MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S FOREWORD

1.2 MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S FOREWORD

Annual Reporting stands out as one of the key tools to report
and evaluate our performance and the impact it has made on
\ the lives of the ordinary citizens of Emadlangeni municipality.
7 . This report seeks to communicate to our stakeholders, the
1% highlights of the organizational performance on both financial
. and non-financial matters for the year under review.

In facilitating service delivery resources, the Municipality is heavily dependent on
infrastructure grants in delivering service delivery to the community. We view this is a
limitation as it hinders the Municipality from meeting other community needs. We are
putting all of our efforts towards getting the Municipality to be self-sufficient. Whilst this
might take some time however with the collective efforts of all role players, we are certain
it is achievable.
Section 121(1) of the Local Government Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA),
stipulates that every municipality and municipal entity must for each financial year,
prepare an Annual Report in accordance with this chapter.
This report should include
a) The Annual Financial Statements of the Municipality submitted to the Auditor
General for audit in terms of Section 126(1) of the MFMA.
b) The Auditor General’s audit report in terms of Section 126(3) of the MFMA as well
as Section 45(b) of the Municipal Systems Act.
c) The Annual Performance Report as prepared in accordance with Section 45 of
the Municipal Systems Act.
d) The Auditor General's audit report in term of Section 45(b) of the Municipal
Systems Act.
e) An assessment by the municipality’s accounting officer of any arrers on municipal

taxes and service delivery.
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9)

h)

i)
j)
k)

An assessment by the municipality's accounting officer of the municipal
performance against the measured performance objectives referred to inSection
17(3)(b) for revenue collection from each revenue source and each vote in the
municipal approved budget for the relevant financial year.

Particulars of any corrective action taken or to be taken in response to issues
raised in the audit reports referred to in paragraphs (b) and (d).

Any explanations that may be necessary to clarify issues in connection with the
financial statements.

Any information as determined by the municipality.

Any recommendations of the municipality’s audit committee and

Any other information as may be prescribed.

The audit outcomes for the three regulatory audits conducted by the AG are as following:

The Annual Financial Statements: The Municipality received an unqualified audit
opinion for the 2023/2024 financial year. The basis for this unqualified opinion is
captured fully in the AG’s Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Audit on the Annual Performance Report: The Municipality received a un
unqualified as an audit opinion for the 2023/2024 financial year. The reasons for
the audit opinion are captured in detail in the AG’s Report.

An Audit action Plan report is attached as part of the Annual Report.

The municipality manage to connect 331 households in various rural communities under

eMadlangeni municipal jurisdiction through the Integrated National Electricity Programme

grant. The Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) projects for the year under review were

successfully completed and this allocation was effectively spent in accordance with the

conditions of the grant.

The Municipality received three awards at the COGTA Excellence Awards convened by

the Department an event to recognise excellence among Municipalities in the Province.

The Awards come in as an encouragement to the Municipality being recognised for

improved performance. The Municipality was awarded in the following categories:

2nd Best Performing Local Municipality in Community Work Programme (CWP)
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e 2nd Best Performing Local Municipality in Expanded Public Works Programme
(EPWP)
e 3rd Best Performing Ward Committees (Ward 1) in terms of Functionality in 23/24
Financial year
During the year under review, the Municipality was exited from the COGTA intervention
programme for Municipalites under distress. This is a result of the ongoing
improvements in the governance and administrative key performance areas. Additionaily,
the Municipality received an unqualified audit from the Auditor General, following three
years of qualifications in prior years. This is a significant achievement and a testament
to the hard work and dedication of our management team and staff. To this end, | would
like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to each and every one of you who contributed to
this remarkable accomplishment. We have not yet reached our clean audit destination,
but this notable achievement now serves as our bedrock to launch our quest for our First
Clean Audit.

| would like to take this time to express my sincere gratitude to the Council for its
oversight and strategic roles in supporting this work. Your guidance and unwavering
support have been instrumental in steering Emadlangeni Municipality towards these

remarkable milestones.

In conclusion, | take this opportunity to express my appreciation to all role players who
contributed positively towards good governance of the municipality, ward committees,

provincial departments and the community of Emadlangeni at large.

Mrs G.N Mavundla

MUNICIPAL MANAGER
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EMADLANGENI MUNICIPAL ANNUAL REPORT: 2023/24

1.3 ASSESSMENT OF ANY ARREARS ON MUNICIPAL TAXES AND
SERVICE CHARGES BY THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER

The high levels of unemployment in the municipality’s jurisdiction have impacted
negatively on our ability to collect outstanding debt. Although the municipality is vast
geographically, the population size is very small. Therefore, this is reflected in the
small equitable share allocation because the formula put significant weight on the
population size. In light of the above the municipality is still exploring ways of funding
indigents as the equitable share is not enough and the indigent policy is not yet

approved.

The aging municipal electricity infrastructure is also impacting negatively on revenue
collection as electricity is lost in transmission, illegal connections and incomplete

billings.

The municipality is licenced to supply electricity in the town leaving the vast area
being supplied by Eskom which significantly reduce the revenue base.

Our municipal accounts consist of mainly electricity supply, rates, refuse removal and
other revenue. Water supply and sanitation is the function of the District Municipality.
To illustrate our point in the slow collection, rate our Municipality finds itself, see the

billing sample of a month of June.

Table 1: Billing sample for Year 2023/24

Billing R 2 308 905.04
Collection R 1449 782.63
Net-effect R 859 122.41
Overall 63%
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Rates collection billing for Year 2023/24

Billing R 37 739 825.66
Collection R 20 950 535.20
Net- effect R 16 789 290.46
Overali 56%

Conventional electricity billing for Year 2023/24

Billing R 15079 661.40
Collection R 17 489 979.25
Net — effect R-2410317.86
Overall 116%

Conventional rental billing for Year 2023/24

Billing R 1 259 829.46
Collection R 650 431.69
Net — effect R 609 397.77
Overall 52%

Electricity R 10 297 754
Property Rates R 58 237 234
Refuse Removal R 4433037
Sundry Debtors R 713729
Total debt R 73 681613
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1.4 MUNICIPAL OVERVIEW

EMadlangeni Local Municipality (KZ 253) is located in the Amajuba District
Municipality in the North-western corner of KwaZulu-Natal. lts area in kilometer

squared is the largest in the district and comprises 3539km? Newcastle Local
Municipality (KZ 252) and Dannhauser Local Municipality (KZ254) are respectively
1855km? and 1516km? in extent.

EMadlangeni Local Municipality (KZ 253) is surrounded by Newcastle East (52km),
68km west of Vryheid, South West from Dundee and North East from
Volksrust/Wakkerstroom. It consists of a vast rural area when compared to other

Municipalities in the District but has a low percentage of Economic Activity in the

area.

Map 1: EMadlangeni Regional Context
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There was a slight increase in the population between 2011 and 2022. The
population increased by about 2 500 persons from 34 442 to 36 948 and the number
of households grew from 6 252 in 2011 to 7 998 in 2022.
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Key DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

12011 2022
Population 34442 36948
| size ‘
Population | 0.65% o 7.3% o o
Growth | ‘
'Households 6252 - BRE; 998 - |
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2011 Source of water for household
use

Regional/lo
B cal water & Other
scheme

2011 Toilet facilities

M Flush ¥ Other | None

2011 Energy for Cooking

2,515

M Electricity W Gas I Other

2022 Source of water for household use

3,707

Regional/lo
W cal water = Other
scheme

2022 Toilet Facilities
194

\

W Flush & Other © None

2022 Energy for Cooking

2,965

188

W Electricity W Gas . Other

4,291
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CHAPTER 2: GOOD GOVERNANCE

COMPONENT A:

COUNCIL’S VISION

By 2036 eMadlangeni Local Municipality will be a self-sustaining exemplary local
municipality with a diverse thriving economy where all citizens enjoy a high quality of life

within a sustainable and resilient environment.

COUNCIL’S CORPORATE VALUES

The municipality pledges to its communities and stakeholders to:

» be embodiment of good governance;

* deliver services in an efficient and effective manner:

* promote and facilitate sustainable socio-economic development;

e create mutual trust and understanding between the municipality and the
community;

* promote tourism, agriculture and mining, and facilitate the development of urban
hubs in support of these economic sectors and delivery of services: and

* apply good and transparent corporate governance in order to promote community

prosperity.
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COUNCIL
EXCO -
BUDGET & TREASURY AND INFRASTRUCTE
CORPORATE SERVICES PLANNINgE AN
PORTFOLIO DEVELOPMENTPORTFOLIO

ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE

The Municipality have an approved 2023/24 organizational structure which is aligned
to the IDP, in order to improve its operational capacity. During the year under review,
the Municipality had a staff compliment of 153 during 2023/2024 of as opposed to
150 during 2022/2023 Financial Year. The Municipality needs to strengthen its
Human Resources Policies and strategies to ensure that it does not lose employees.
EMadlangeni Municipality comprises 4 Departments; one of which is the Office of the
Municipal Manager and Three (3) report directly to the Municipal Manager, who is the
Administrative Head. They are as follows

- Budget and Treasury;

- Corporate & Community Services and

- Municipal Planning and Technical Services

EMadlangeni Local Municipality employees report to the Heads of Department
(HODs) - who are Directors of different Departments. The HODs sit in Portfolio

Committee meetings and discuss matters pertaining to their respective areas of
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operation. The relevant Portfolio Committee advises the HODs regarding solutions on
how departmental programmes and projects, for service delivery to the community,
should be tackled. When the issues have been analysed, the Management
Committee, consisting of Municipal employees at management level, assembles and
finalizes the individual Portfolio Committee’s outcomes to form one report which will
be tabled to Council for Resolutions to be taken.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND PLANNING

MUNICIAL MANAGER DEVELOPMENT

EMADLANGENI
LOCAL . — - -
MUNICIPALITY

CORPORATE & COMMUNITY

BUDGET AND TREASURY SERVICES
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| 2.3 OCCUPATION AND GENDER EQUITY ANALYSIS
In terms of Section 20 of the Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998, the Municipality
adopted the Employment Equity Plan which aims at implementing affirmative action so
as to redress the imbalances of the past, in the workplace. Section 21 of the quoted Act
requires the Municipality to report on progress achieved in implementing affirmative

action.

This Key Performance Area encapsulates the Municipality’'s commitment to the
provision of the highest quality of service to its constituencies and to ensure that all
strategies and objectives are adhered to, resulting in a productive and sustainable
Municipality.

In terms of Section 152 (1) (e) of the South African Constitution, eMadlangeni, like all
Municipalities, is obligated to encourage the involvement of communities and
community organisations in the affairs of Local Government. This is further emphasised
by Section 16(1) of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000, which requires the
Municipality to develop a culture of municipal governance that complements formal
representative government with a system of participatory governance.

EMadlangeni Local Municipality has a functional Public Participation office which
convene meetings in all Wards as per the unit calender. The unit has developed the
Policy on Ward Committee Establishment and Operations and it was adopted by

Council.

There are 60 Ward Committee Members within the Municipality (10 per Ward) and they

are no vacant posts all receiving a stipend of R1200 per month.

The War Room meetings are convened in all 6 wards within the eMadlangeni Local
Municipality. All war rooms are functional. The Local Task Team (LTT) visits the war
rooms quarterly for support and further interventions. The War room Chairperson reports

to the LTT once a month. The war room meetings are attended by Sector Departments,
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CCGs, CDWs, Ward Committee Members, CWP, Forum members i.e. Disability Forum,
Senior Citizens Forum, Women’s Forum, Men's Forum, Child Care Forum as well as
Traditional Leaders and Faith Based Organizations. Ward Councillors champion the war

room meetings.

The Ward Committee functionality verification results were reported at 100% for the
2023/2024 financial year. The Ward Committee functionality assessment criteria is as

follows:

* Annual Target of 72 meetings was achieved for the quarterly meetings per ward.
* Annual Target of 1 Imbizo Meetings was achieved
= Annual Target of 720 Reports Submitted by ward committies.

CoGTA conducted the ward committee functionality assessment and the municipality achieved

100% in terms of functionality.

FUNCTIONALITY RESULTS OF EACH WARD PER QUARTER IN 2023/2024 FINANCIAL
YEAR

WARD | 15T 2ND QUARTER | 3RD 4T CHALLENGES
QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

1 Functional Functional Functional Functional There were no

challenges

2 Functional Functional Functional Functional encountered for the

3 Functional Functional Functional Functional year 2023/24.

4 Functional Functional Functional Functional

5 Functional Functional Functional Functional

6 Functional Functional Functional Functional
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Interventions by the Municipality to sustain the functionality

o The Public Participation Practitioner is dedicated and ensures that all the ward
committee functionality assessment elements are met

. The Public Participation Practitioner ensures that ward committee members
attend the quarterly ward committee meetings for debriefing, so that they will be
able to serve their communities better.

. Ward committee schedules for meetings, warroom meetings and public meetings
are made available to all ward committee members and ward councilors.

. Ward Based Plans and Ward Committee Operational Plans were compiled and
adopted by Council

. Ward Committees were inducted on Code of Conduct, Roles and Responsibilities
and ward committee functionality assessment process

. Ward Committee Members attend workshops, trainings and sector meetings
conducted by various stakeholders in order to deepen their knowledge on public

participation programs and to also improve their report writing skills.

COMPONENT B

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

The Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act No 13 of 2005 was promulgated to
establish a framework for the National, Provincial and Local governments in order to

ensure, amongst other, things the:

e Promotion and facilitation of intergovernmental relations;
e Provision for mechanisms and procedures to facilitate the settlement of
intergovernmental disputes; and
e Provision for matters connected therewith.
The objective of the Act is based on the principle of co-operative governance as set out
in Chapter 3 of the Constitution. The Act also aims to facilitate co-ordination in the

implementation of policy and legislation including:

22|Page



e Coherent government;

o Effective provision of services;

* Monitoring implementation of policy and legislation; and

¢ Realization of national priorities.
IGR ensure co-operative governance and to implement wall to wall development. This
municipality participated in the following IGR Forum meetings that sat at District Level,
wherein matters that were cross-boundary were discussed and the invited, relevant

sector departments gave inputs on other technical matters:

e The Mayors Forum

e The Municipal Manager's Forum

e The Planning Forum

e The Infrastructure Development Forum

e The LED Forum

e The Corporate Services Forum

» Financial Management Forum
The Municipality also participates in other structures such as the forum of municipalities
and members of the Executive Councils, the Speaker's Forum in Legislature and the
Premier's Monitoring & Evaluation Committee. Participation in these committees
ensures that planning is undertaken in line with National, Provincial & District Priorities

and key strategic documents.
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EMadlangeni Local Municipality has the following Intergovernmental Relations

Structures in place:

Intergovernmental
Relations Forum

Objective of the Function

Functionality

IDP Representative

Forum

The purpose of the forum is to serve
as a platform where the eMadlangeni
Municipality meet with the sector
departments, private organizations,
business, NGO's and CBOs to
discuss developmental issues that
affect the municipality

Yes

Planning and
Development

The purpose of the forum is to co-
ordinate  planning.  EMadlangeni
Municipality does not have its own
forum but seats at the district as the
Amajuba District Municipality has
established the forum where the
district family of municipality engage
to ensure communication amongst
the various planning and
development within the district is

undertaken in a holistic way.

Yes

IDP Technical

Committee

This Committee is situated at the
district level and the local
municipalities participate on it. The

purpose of this forum is:
e Streamline planning process;

¢ Combating socio-economic ills in

a strategic and coordinated

manner

Yes
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e Put forward a plan of action that |

will enjoy political by-in at levels

e Unifying the channelling of both
private  and public  sector

investments

LED Forum

Local Economic Development is one
of the key programmes that exist in
eMadlangeni area. Therefore the
purpose of the committee is to
monitor and assess LED projects and

also discuss LED issues

Yes

Disaster
Management
Advisory Forum

The purpose of the forum is to
implement, monitor and co-ordinate
all disaster management related
issues within eMadlangeni area by
ensuring improved and continued

communication.

Yes
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COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION

2.5 PUBLIC MEETINGS

2.5 IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT

IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria* Yes/No

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators? Yes
Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPls, development strategies? | Yes

Does the IDP have multi-year targets? Yes
| Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score? Yes
Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan? Yes
Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 56 Managers Yes
Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP? Yes
Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Outcomes Yes
Were the indicators communicated to the public? | Yes |

Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time | Yes
frames?
* Section 26 Municipal Systems Act 2000

EMadlangeni Local Municipality also ensured that public engagements are taken into
account to align with relevant legislations, ward based planning is a priority in this
Municipality to ensure inclusive governance. The IDP/Budget Roadshow took place on
the 16" of April 2024 at Bensdorp Sport Field. The LM had a joint Imbizo with the
Amajuba District Municipality. The Mayor of the District also presented the IDP and
Budget for the District. Community members from all 6 wards within eMadiangeni were
transported to the venue to attend the Imbizo. They got a chance to engage with the
Principals and offered an opportunity to present inputs and recommendations

concerning the IDP and Budget.
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COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Risk Management forms a critical part of eMadlangeni municipality strategic
management. It is the process whereby the eMadlangeni municipality both methodically
and intuitively addresses the risks attached to the strategic objectives and activities of
the municipality. The goal is to ensure the achievement of strategic objectives as well
as the sustained benefit within each activity and across the portfolio of activities. Risk
management is therefore recognised as an integral part of sound organisational
management and is being promoted internationally and in South Africa as a good

practice applicable to the public and private sector.
Objectives of Risk Management

The purpose of Risk Management at eMadlangeni municipality is to, among others

provide the following:

¢ Advance the development and implantation of modern management practices
and to support innovation through the eMadlangeni municipality.

e Contribute in building a risk smart workforce and environment that allows for
innovation and responsible risk taking while ensuring legitimate precautions are
taken to protect the public interest, maintain public trust, and ensure due
diligence.

* Provide a comprehensive approach to better integrate risk management into
strategic decision making.

» To provide guidance to Accounting Officer, Executives Authorities, Management
and staff when overseeing or implementing the development of processes,
systems and techniques for managing risk, which are appropriate to the content
of the district.

The municipality has a risk management framework and policy in place. It also has
established the risk management committee to oversee risk management process. The
risk committee also considered the risks in the risk profile of the municipality and the
action plans that have been put in place to ensure that those risks do not materialise.
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The objectives of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) are:

To assist the Municipal Manager in discharging his or her accountability for risk
management by reviewing the effectiveness of the municipality’s risk management
systems, practices and procedures, and providing recommendations for improvement.

Review the risk management policy and strategy and recommend for approval by the
Accounting Officer.

Review and assess the integrity of the risk control systems and ensure that the risk

policies and strategies are effectively managed.

Set out the nature, role, responsibility and authority of the risk management / risk officer

function within the institution and outline the scope of risk management work:

Monitor the management of significant risks to the municipality, including emerging and

prospective impacts;

Review any legal matters, together with the legal advisor, that could have a significant

impact on the institution;

Review management and internal audit reports detailing the adequacy and overall
effectiveness of the Municipality’s risk management function as well as its
implementation by management, reports on internal control and any recommendations,

and confirm that appropriate action has been taken.

The RMC Meetings were successfully held during the 2023/24 Financial year on

the following dates:

1. 29 September 2023
2. 08 December 2023
3. 17 May 2024
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The following policies were approved by the Risk Management Committee (RMC)
and adopted by Council are:

* Risk Management Strategy
1.The principles contained in this strategy will be applied at both strategic/organisational
and operational levels of ELM. The strategy will also consider both internal and external
risks and will include risks such as projects risks, interdepartmental risks, stakeholder

risks, political risks etc.

2.0ur positive approach to risk management means that we will not only look at the risk
of things going wrong but also risks relating to not taking advantage of opportunities or

not capitalizing on our inherent strengths as the municipality.

3.All risks and risk management activities will be aligned to the ELM's values and
principles, strategic, functional and operational objectives, processes and procedures
underpinning the business environment of ELM. This implies that risk management will
not be performed in a vacuum or as an event, but it will be embedded to the strategy
and operational day-to-day processes of ELM.

* Risk Management Framework
The purpose of the ERM framework is to provide a comprehensive
approach to better integrate risk management into strategic decision-

making; and

* Provide guidance for accounting officers, managers and staff when
overseeing or implementing the development of processes, systems and
techniques for managing risk, which are appropriate to the context of the

municipality or municipal entity.

* Advance the development and implementation of modern management

practices and support innovation throughout the Public Sector;
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= Contribute to building a risk-smart workforce and environment that allows
for innovation and responsible risk-taking while ensuring legitimate
precautions are taken to protect the public interest, maintain public trust,

and ensure due diligence.

* Risk Management Policy

We expect the following benefits in adopting this enterprise risk management policy and
effectively implementing the Enterprise Risk Management Framework:

Aligning risk appetite and strategy

Pursuing  Municipal objectives through transparent identification and
management of acceptable risk

Providing an ability to prioritise the risk management activity

Enhancing risk response decisions

Reducing operational surprises and losses

Identifying and managing multiple and cross-enterprise risks.

Seizing opportunities

Improving deployment of capital

Ensuring compliance with laws and regulations

Increasing probability of achieving objectives

* Anti-Fraud and Corruption Prevention Strategy
In terms of Section 83 (c) of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA) Act 32 of 2000, if a
municipality decides to provide a municipal service through service delivery agreement
with a person referred to in section 80 (1) (b), it must select the service provider through
selection processes which minimize the possibility of fraud and corruption.
EMadlangeni Local Municipality has the following strategies in place to prevent

corruption, fraud and theft:

The Anti-Corruption Strategy and Fraud Prevention Plan have been developed as a
result of the expressed commitment of Government to fight corruption. It complements
the National Anti-Corruption Strategy of the country and supplements both the Public
Service Anti-Corruption Strategy and the Local Government Anti-Corruption Strategy.
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The Policy is also established to give effect to the various legislative instruments
relating to fraud and corruption. In addition, the Policy provides guidelines as to how to

respond should instances of fraud and corruption be identified.

Fraud and corruption manifests itself in a number of ways and varying degrees of

intensity. These include, but are not limited to:

* unauthorised private use of municipal assets, including vehicles;

* falsifying travel and subsistence claims;

* conspiring unfairly with others to obtain a tender;

* disclosing proprietary information relating to a tender to outside parties;

* accepting inappropriate gifts from suppliers;

* employing family members or close friends;

® operating a private business during working hours:

* stealing equipment or supplies from work;

* accepting bribes or favours to process requests;

e accepting bribes or favours for turning a blind eye to a service provider who does
not provide an appropriate service;

* submitting or processing false invoices from contractors or other service
providers;

* misappropriating fees received from customers, and avoiding detection by not
issuing receipts to those customers;

* misappropriation of Municipal funds;

* falsifying accounting records or documents

* falsifying consumer debtors accounts or amending such accounts without

authority;

Fraud represents a significant potential risk to the Municipality’s assets and reputation.
The Municipality is committed to protecting its funds and other assets. It is the policy of
the Municipality that fraud, corruption, maladministration or any other dishonest
activities of a similar nature is not to be tolerated. Such activities will be investigated,
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where required, and actions instituted against those found responsible. Such actions
may include the laying of criminal charges, civil and administrative actions and the
institution of recoveries where applicable. This Policy includes prevention, detection,

response and investigative strategies.

Risk Management Implementation Plan

The Risk Management Implementation Plan (RMIP) forms part of the Risk Management
Framework of the Municipality and must therefore be read in conjunction with inter-alia;
the Risk Management Strategy and Policy, the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and
Policy, Loss Prevention and Management Policy, Business Continuity Plan.

The Risk Management Implementation Plan describes how the Risk Management
Strategy and Policy, the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and Policy, Loss
Prevention and Management Policy, Business Continuity Plan are to be implemented

during the 2024/25 financial year.

2.9 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In terms of Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act 2003 Municipal
Supply Chain Management Regulation, each municipality and each municipal entity
must in terms of Section 111of the Municipal Finance Management Act 2003 have and
implement a supply chain management policy that is fair, equitable, transparent,
competitive, cost effective and is consistent with other applicable legislation.

The accounting officer of a municipality or municipal entity must at least annually review
the implementation of the policy and when the accounting officer considers it necessary,
submit proposals for the amendment of the policy to the council.

The accounting officer of a municipality or municipal entity must promptly prepare and
submit a draft supply chain management policy complying with regulation 2 to the
council of the municipality for adoption.

EMandlangeni Local Municipality Supply Management Policy was approved and
adopted by council on 30 April 2024.

32|Page



The following is the list of Policies and By-laws which are kept by the Municipality:

TABLE: STATUS OF MUNICIPAL POLICIES AND BY-LAWS

Recruitment, Selection and Placement Policy

Adopted and implemented

Delegation Framework

Under Review

Skills Development Policy

Adopted and implemented

Acting Policy

Adopted and implemented

Leave Policy

Adopted and implemented

Overtime Policy

Adopted and implemented

Payroll Policy

Adopted and implemented

Car Allowance policy

Adopted and implemented

S & T Policy

Adopted and implemented

Performance Management and Development System

Adopted and implemented

Delegation Policy

Under Review

Budget Policy

Adopted and implemented

Council Vehicle Policy

Adopted and implemented

Virement Policy

Adopted and implemented

Supply Chain Management Framework

Adopted and implemented

Remuneration Policy

Adopted and implemented
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Indigent Policy

Under Review

Re-imbursement Policy

Adopted and implemented

Travel and Subsistence

Adopted and implemented

Communication Strategy

Communication policy

Adopted

Property Rates Policy

Adopted and implemented

Building works, Building Plans, completion: Policies and

Procedures

Adopted and implemented

Ward Committee Establishment Policy

Adopted and implemented

Procedural Manual

| Contract Management Policy

HIV/AIDS and Chronic lliness Policy Adopted
Language Policy Adopted
Contract Management Policy Framework Adopted

Outdoor Advertising Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Keeping of Animals and Birds Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Keeping of Dogs Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Cemeteries, Cremation and Undertakers Municipal By-
(I

Adopted and gazetted
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Laws

Credit Control Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Electricity Supply Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Tariff Policy for Indigent Persons Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Municipal Public Transport Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Property Encroachment Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Environment Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Fire Prevention Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Parking Areas Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Pollution Control Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Pound Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Public Amenities Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Public Roads Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Rules and Orders of Municipal Councils and
Committees By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Storm Water Management Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Street trading Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Dumping and Littering Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

Abattoir Municipal By-Laws

Adopted and gazetted

By-Laws Relating to the Control over Buildings

Adopted and gazetted
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2.11 WEBSITE

The importance of the Website is outlined in MFMA regarding documents which should
be published on the Website. It is monitored by National Treasury as part of
compliance. Municipal Website is updated regularly to ensure that all information
required by the Municipal Finance Management Act and other legislation are promptly
and appropriately displayed on the Website.

EMadlangeni Website is one of a variety of communication tools available in the
Municipality. Municipal website fulfils one or more of the following functions:

A. Publishing tool.

Following are the compliance documents that were published in 2023/2024 financial

year.

e Performance Contracts
¢ Annual Budget

e Adjusted Budget

* Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
e IDP Reviewed Document

* SDF Reviewed Document

* Annual Report

* Budget related policies

* Vacancies and Careers

* Adverts (Tenders)

e Supplier database registration

* Annual Financial Statements

* Annual Performance Report

¢ Intention to award

* Rates and Tariffs
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e By-Laws and Policies
e Council resolutions
e MFMA Section 52 (d) Reports

B. Marketing tool.
Providing Tourism related issues with the aim of attracting tourist on visiting the
Balele Game and Caravan Park.

C. Transactional tool.
It allows the community to exchange all the information necessary to support a
transaction of any kind e.g. Rates, Tariffs, supplier database registration etc.
Municipal website is updated on on-going basis by IT Unit.

2.11.1. Annual Licenses Renewal

The following systems’ licenses were renewed to ensure continuous ICT services with

the municipality.

¢ Sage Evaluation 11 for daily accounting transactions

e PayDay HR and Payroll to perform daily payroll and HR duties.

¢ Sophos antivirus and firewall to safeguard the municipal network against cyber
threats.

* Perception Point to secure the municipal domain and emails against cyber threats

» Office 365 to access daily productive tools, cloud storage and file security

e CaseWare for financial reporting, tax, audit and assurance.

2.1.1.2 Hardware Procurement

Thirteen (13) laptops were purchased to allow end-users to perform their office duties.

21.1.3 New Contracts

The municipality entered a twelve-month contract with Imvula Technologies to provide

internet.
2114 Adopted/Reviewed Policies
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The following ict related policies were reviewed by the council during the 2023/24

financial year.

* ICT policy to governs the use of information and communication technologies (ICT)
in the municipality.

* ICT Governance Framework to provide a framework for the development,
implementation, and evaluation of ICT.

* ICT Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) to helps the municipality recover and continue
operations after a disaster that impacts its IT infrastructure.

2.12 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES
The Municipality did not conduct public satisfaction on municipal services in 2023/2024,
however, the municipality is currently in the process of assémbling a team that will verify

public satisfaction in order to guarantee that this exercise is carried out and that the
municipality is aware of the needs of the communities.

~2.13 ALL MUNICIPAL OVERSIGHT COMMITTEES

The Municipality has Oversight Committees that are fully established and they are fully

discussed as follows: committies commitices

The Performance Audit Committee has been well functioning and has been sitting in
each quarter as per its Terms of Reference. In Quarter 4 this indicator was not achieved
because the Audit committee meeting scheduled for June was postponed to unforeseen
circumstances. The meeting was scheduled for July 2024.

The oversight role of Council is an important component of the financial reforms and it is
achieved through the separation of roles and responsibilities between Council, the
Executive Committee and Administration. In the case of eMadlangeni Municipality the
Executive Committee was established after August 2016 elections as the Municipal
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Council moved from Plenary to Collective Council which allows the Municipality to
establish an Executive Committee. Good governance, effective accountability, and
oversight can only be achieved if there is a clear distinction between the functions

performed by the different role players.

The Municipal Finance Management Act, No.56 of 2003 (MFMA) vests in Council

specific powers of approval and oversight:

Approval of budgets;

Approval of Budget related policies;

Review of the Annual Report and adoption of the Oversight Report;

Invite, receive, and consider inputs from Councillors and Portfolio Committees,
on the Annual Report;

Consider written comments received on the Annual Report from the public
consultation process;

Conduct Public Hearing(s) to allow the local community or any organs of state to
make representations on the Annual Report:

Receive and consider Council's Audit Committee views and comments on the
annual financial statements and the performance report and

Preparation of the draft Oversight Report, taking into consideration, the views
and inputs of the public, representative(s) of the Auditor-General, organs of state,

Council's Audit Committee and Councillors.
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CHAPTER 3: SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE

| EMadlangeni Loc

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Municipality has an adopted Performance Management Framework in place which
sets out the process that must be followed by the organization in the formulation of
performance criteria that the Municipality should use in the establishment of
performance management.

3.1 THE MUNICIPALITY REPORTS AS FOLLOWS:

* Management Committee (MANCO) meetings were held on monthly basis as it is
stipulated law. All items to be submitted to Council structures are also tabled to
MANCO for further comments and recommendations before they are forwarded
to respective Portfolio Committees, EXCO and Council.

* Quarterly Departmental PMS reports are submitted to the Internal Auditors for

review

e Audited report goes to the Audit Committee; please note that eMadlangeni
Municipality have the fully functional Performance Audit Committee which

oversees all the municipal performance.

¢ The municipality then compile the Annual Performance Report based on the
performance plans, scorecard as well SDBIP that were submitted throughout the
financial year. The Annual Performance Report is then submitted to the Internal
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The municipal scorecard which forms part of this report unpacks the 5 Key Performance
Area’s and the municipal targets as well as achievements of the municipality. This
report also reflects 2021/22 scorecard which will ensure that the comparison between
the year in report and the previous year. EMadlangeni Integrated Development Pjan
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3.3 PERFORMANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit & Performance Committee was established in 2003 in terms of Section 14(2) (a)
of the Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations of
2001. The Audit & Performance Committee comprises of external Members, who have
changed over time as each appointment term is valid for a period of three (03) years. The
eMadlangeni Municipal Council appointed the existing external Audit Committee Members
to serve in the Audit & Performance Committee (APC) of eMadlangeni Local Municipality as
at 01 August 2022. The appointments are effective for a period of three (03) years with
effect from 01 August 2022 to 31 July 2025.

The Membership of the Committee is as follows:

e Mr. Buhle Dhlamini Audit Committee Chairperson
* Advocate Jabulani Mhlongo Audit Committee Member
e Ms. Thandeka Ndlovu Audit Committee Member
e Mr. Velaphi Kubeka Audit Committee Member

The Audit & Performance Committee meets on a quarterly basis throughout the financial
year to ensure compliance with relevant legislation, procedures and to consider the
quarterly performance achievements reported in the Operational Performance
Management Systems (OPMS) Scorecard/Top Layer SDBIP as well as the performance
achievements reported in terms of the Departmental Service Delivery Budget

Implementation Plan.
The Audit & Performance Committee convened on the following dates throughout the
2023/24 financial year:

» 25 August 2023
*= 30 August 2023
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* 27 September 2023
* 01 December 2023
* 19 February 2024

The Draft Annual Performance Report for the 2023/24 financial year was submitted to the
Internal Audit Unit on 16 August 2024 and subsequently submitted to the Audit &
Performance Committee on 20 August 2024. The Audit & Performance Committee
convened on 23 August 2024 to process the report prior to the Council meeting held on 29
August 2024 to note and consider the annual performance achievements reported in the
OPMS Scorecard/Top Layer SDBIP for the completed 2023/2024 financial year. The
Quarterly PMS reports for the 2023/2024 financial year were prepared and submitted to
the Internal Audit Activity for review. Internal Audit reports were discussed with
Performance Management Systems Unit prior to tabling the reports to the Audit &

Performance Committee for consideration.
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The process of establishing the performance evaluation panel is complete. The item
requesting the appointment of the panel was tabled and approved by council. The
municipality is executing the function.

Evaluation of the Municipal Manager Evaluation of Employees reporting directly to }

the Municipal Manager

1. Mayor of eMadlangeni Local 1. Municipal Manager of eMadlangeni LOCI’
Municipality Municipality

2. Chairperson of the Performance 2. Member for Performance Audit Committee
Audit Committee.
3. EXCO member 3. Chairperson of the Portfolio Committee

responsible for Department (EXCO)
4. Municipal Manager from Amajuba

District Municipality/ Manager from 4. Municipal Manager from Newcastle Local
any other Municipality within the Municipality/Manager from any other
District. Municipality within the District.

5. Member of a ward committee as

nominated by the Mayor or Speaker. J
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3.5

KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES

This report includes highlights from the key performance measures included in the 2022 /2023 IDP,

which constitute the Municipal Scorecard for the 2023/2024 financial year

KEY
PERFORMANCE
AREAS

TOTAL NO. OF
ANNUAL TARGETS

| TOTAL NO. OF

TARGETS
ACHIEVED

| TOTAL NO. OF

TARGETS NOT
ACHIEVED

PERCENTAGE OF
TARGETS
ACHIEVED

BASIC SERVICE
DELIVERY &
INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT

31

23

8

74%

'MUNICIPAL
TRANSFORMATION
& INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

60%

MUNICIPAL
FINANCIAL
VIABILITY &
_MANAGEMENT

100%

GOOD

- GOVERNANCE &
PUBLIC
PARTICIPATION

76%

LOCAL ECONOMIC
& SOCIAL
DEVELOPMENT

100%

OVERALL PERFORMANCE FOR THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL YEAR

% ACHIEVED
I NOT ACHIEVED
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OVERALL ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PER DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENT TOTAL NO. OF TOTAL NO. OF TOTAL NO. OF PERCENTAGE OF
ANNUAL TARGETS TARGETS NOT TARGETS
TARGETS ACHIEVED ACHIEVED ACHIEVED

25 17 8 68%

CORPORATE& |24 18 6 75%
COMMUNITY
_SERVICE:!
17 0 100%
31 24 7 77%

OVERALL ANNUAL TARGETS ACHIEVED PER
DEPARTMENT (%)

[ Overall Annual Targets Achieved Per Department (%)

INFRASTRUCTURE & BUDGET & TREASURY
PLANNING
DEVELOPMENT
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3.5.1 KPA 1: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
The overall performance of KPA 1 was achieved at 71%.

KPA 1: BASIC DELIVERY AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

35

31

30

25

20

15

NO. OF INDICATORS

10

(6]

B NUMBER OF TARGETS [l TARGETS MET B TARGETS NOT MET

1

The municipal planning tribunal remains functional. The Department received 11
Development Applications, which is a satisfactory number in an area similar to that of
eMadlangeni Local Municipality. The unit continues to issue contravention notices to
ensure compliance with the scheme. The unit has promoted shortened land use
applications in line with the Spatial Planning and Development act read together with the
Spatial Development Framework in Berouw and New Look, and has seen a huge

improvement in the submission of Land development applications.

The unit is faced with a challenge of having a backlog of Land Development applications as
the position of the Senior Town Planner remains vacant. A number of applications are
received however are not processed accordingly within the legislated timeframe which
affects the processing of the land development applications. According to schedule 2 of the

eMadlangeni municipal planning and Land use bylaws
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The Manager Planning cannot process and approve these application as a sole person as
there are clear designation of powers the municipality needs to look into the filling of the

position as it is affecting a core function of the planning unit as a revenue generating unit.

The Building Control Unit received 23 building plans 16 approved and 7 pending approval
which is a stagnant number for the past years. The unit conducted two awareness
campaigns educating residents on the importance of submitting building plans, building
stages which inspections are requires and how and why compliance certificates are issued.
The unit continues to issue contravention notices even though the issuing of compliance

certificate remains an unresolved problem.

In terms of compliance with the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act, the

municipality has developed a Spatial Development Plan as an annexure to the SDF.

3.5.1.1 KEY HIGHLIGHTS

The MEC of Human Settlements officially handed over 57 Title deeds on the 19t of March 2024. The
residents of Khayalethu now enjoy the benefits of being title deed holders.

The Department of Human Settlements has appointed BDSCM Holdings (Pty) Ltd for the Khayalethu
Extension project, which remains in the planning stage as consultants are busy with investigations

of the feasibility of the extension.

The Provincial Department of Human Settlements has appointed Delton Projects (PTY) LTD
to undertake stage 1 activities listed below for the Balgray Housing Project consisting of

300 units:

® Land assessment
* Bulk services investigation and obtaining service level agreement with district

municipality
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* Geotechnical Investigation
¢ Environmental Assessment
e Town Planning

e Social Facilitation

e Socio-economic issues

* Floodline Determination

¢ Civil engineering

* The provision of informal Settlement Upgrade Plan

The project is currently underway and will assist the municipality in formalising Portion 7
of 2 of the Farm No 53 Weltevreden (Balgray). The Municipality needs to put up

infrastructure services plans for this property, as there is no electricity connection.

The municipality owns Erf 739. The Provincial Department of Human Settlements has
appointed Stedone Developments (PTY) LTD to undertake stage 1 activities listed above for
creating 300 vacant serviced sites. This project is a major highlight for the municipality

because the sites will cater for middle to high-income earners.

The unit reviewed the Spatial Development Framework in-house. The review focused on
ensuring compliance with the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act and included
a written and spatial representation of a five-year spatial development plan for the Spatial
form of the municipality, and population growth estimates for the next five years amongst
other matters.

The Amajuba District Municipality GIS Unit assisted in mapping required information. We
look forward to the MEC’s comments as major alignment to the Spatial Planning and Land

Use Management Act was complied with.

The SDF lacks efficient environmental management, there is no alignment with the District

Municipality Environmental Management Framework and has little to no interventions
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related to the environmental climate change issues which is a great concern as the
municipal area is environmentally sensitive. It should be noted with concern that the
municipality should consider appointing an environmental officer to ensure that

environmental concerns and challenges are taken into consideration and addressed.

3.5.1.5 CHALLENGES |

* Quantification of engineering services for both 5 years and 20 years’ period should be
undertaken.

¢ Absence of an environmental officer in the vacant post.

» Enforcing building penalties, summons on illegal buildings and issuing of contravention
notices remains a major concern.

* The issuing of compliance certificate which affects rates charges.

* The Municipality needs to consider training and appointing Peace Officers to assist with

the issuing of contravention notices.
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3.6 KPA 2: MUNICIPAL INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSFORMATION
The overall performance of KPA 2 was achieved at 60%.

KPA 2: MUNICIPAL INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSFORMATION
16 15

14
12

10

NO. OF INDICATORS
0

1

[ NUMBER OF TARGETS || TARGETS MET B TARGET NOT MET

Municipal Training Committee has been established and had its first sitting on the 25%

April 2024

The municipality compiled the Work Skills Plan and submitted the Annual Employment
Equity Report.

The following policies were approved and adopted by Council in the 2022/2023 financial
year for implementation in 2023 /24:

= Recruitment and Selection policy
= Payroll policy

= (Car Allowance policy

= Skills Development Policy

= Leave policy

= Qvertime policy

= S&T policy

= Telephone policy

= Records Management policy
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» Acting Policy

* Fleet Management Policy

The municipality has developed the Performance Management and Development System
(PMDS) Policy for adoption by Council. The Policy aligns with the Municipal Staff
Regulations and it compels all employees’ performance be assessed on annual basis. It has

been cascaded to Managers and Officers, Performance Agreement has been signed.

The municipality received the Local Government Sector Education Training Authority
(LGSETA) Mandatory Grant of R12 766.29 for the financial year 2023/2024 to cover
trainings. However, the grant could not cover the Work Skills Plan training priorities
therefore the municipality had to rely on FMG grant for finance related courses and the
Municipal Skills Development funds for other trainings. The municipality has engaged

other SETA’s in order to address the skills gaps.

The municipality reviewed the Organogram and the Community Services department is
now split across the OMM, CS as well as I&PD departments. Only Five (05) positions that
were funded for the year 2023/2024.The municipal council resolved that some vacant

positions remain unfunded in order to maintain the 40% Equitable share budget threshold.

* Majority of meetings and trainings were held on virtual platforms (Zoom or Microsoft
Team) and some were held physical.

¢ Six (06) appointments were made during the financial year. There are nine (09) interns
across various departments. Five (5) appointed through the Municipal Financial
Management Internship Programme and thirteen (13) seconded by COGTA. Out of the
13, four (04) interns are no longer with the municipality. The total number interns
seconded by COGTA who remains with the municipality is nine (09)

* All Councillors attended the Standing Rules and other policy workshops.

* The attrition rate had improved (5 retirements, 2 resignations 1 Deceased)
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* Budgetary constraints resulted in limited trainings

= Some critical positions are unfunded on the organogram

3.6.3 MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE
®* Source the external funds for trainings from different SETA’s.

* Critical positions to be filled as and when funds permit on an incremental basis.

3.7 KPA 3: MUNICIPAL VIABILITY AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The overall performance of KPA 3 was achieved at 94%,.

KPA 3: MUNICIPAL VIABILITY AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
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*  The municipality has obtained an unqualified Audit opinion in the previous financial
year 2022/23.

* The qualifying matters have decrease from seven to two in the past financial year.

* The municipality has continued assisting with social packages (indigent) to poor
households or households facing other circumstances that limit their ability to pay for

services, the cost of the social package of registered indigent households is largely
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financed by national government through the local government equitable share

received in terms of the annual Division of Revenue Act.

3.7.2 CHALLENGES

e The electricity distribution losses are above the benchmark of 3%-7%.

*  The municipality is facing a large amount of debtors’ book as at the end of 2023/2024
financial year.

¢ The municipality was not able to collect revenue as anticipated, thus affecting the
timely payment of suppliers which ultimately lead to municipality incurring an
unauthorized expenditure.

¢ Budget and Treasury Office has limited staff which affect the full functioning of the
finance department.

e The municipality approved an unfunded budget as a result of (amongst others)
previous financial commitments, limited equitable share allocation. In this regard the
municipality also approved a budget funding plan to address all shortcomings of the
unfunded budget. The budget funding plan is monitored and reported on a quarterly

basis by council and provincial Treasury.

e To improve and enhance performance, the Budget and Treasury office holds
departmental meetings on a monthly basis. The departmental scorecard is a standing
item on the agenda to ensure that department delivers on all its set targets. Each unit
within the department is required to report on the allocated Key Performance
Indicators during these meetings.

e The mechanism ensures units that are underperforming are detected and corrective
measures are taken timely.

*  CoGTA has been instrumental in supporting the municipality to recover debt owed by

government departments.
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3.8 KPA 4: GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONS-PUTTING PEOPLE
FIRST
The overall performance of KPA 4 was achieved at 76%.

KPA 4: GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
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The information below aims at providing insight of the functions that the Public
Participation Unit undertakes on annual basis. These include activities such as Ward
Committee meetings, assessments and trainings to ensure that the wards remain
functional, engagements with different stakeholders and sectors IDP/BUDGET Roadshows

(Izimbizo) and engagements that ensures interaction with the Municipality.

The following functions and powers have been assigned to Ward Committee Members, as
contained in Section 16 and Section 59 of the Municipal Systems Act, No. 32 of 2000:

Encourage and create conditions for communities to participate in:
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The preparation, implementation and review of the IDP;

Establishment, implementation and review of Councils Performance Management
System;

The monitoring and review of Councils performance, including the outcomes and
impact of such performance and

The preparation of Councils budget

Participation in the above functions means that the Ward Committee members will
discharge its responsibilities by way of involvement in making inputs in the form of

recommendations to Council.

f) Additional delegated functions and powers:

g) Assist the ward councilor in identifying challenges and needs of residents;

h) Create formal unbiased communication channels and co-operative partnership between

j)

k)
)

the Municipality and the community within the ward;

Ensure contact between the municipality and community through use of and payment
of Services;

Create harmonious relationships between residents of a ward, the ward councilor,
geographic community and the municipality;

Act as advisory body on Council policies and matters affecting communities in the ward;
Serve as officially recognized and specialized participatory structures in the

municipality;

m) May receive and record complaints from the community within the ward and provide

n)

o)

p)

feedback on Councils response;

May make recommendations on any matter affecting the ward to the Ward Councillor
or the Council, the EXCO and the Mayor;

May act as a resource, through which Council and its departments, Provincial and
National Departments must consult with and canvass community opinions on any
matte they deem necessary;

Ward Committees may also be used as resources, by non-governmental organizations
and non-political organizations to consult with Ward Committees, only if they do not

and will not make Council liable for any expenditure to be incurred;
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q) Ward Committees shall, within their scope of work, invite Council officials and other
people with specialized knowledge to advise them on matters affecting their ward,
when they deem it necessary;

r) Ward Committees may, subject to available capacity and resources, conduct and annual
satisfaction survey in order to assist the committee in the execution of its function and
powers. The satisfaction survey should be administered in the ward by the Ward
Committee members under the supervision of the Ward Councilor and with the

administrative support of the municipality.

The Ward Committee functionality verification results were reported at 100% for the
2023/2024 financial year. The Ward Committee functionality assessment criteria is as

follows:

= Annual Target of 72 meetings was achieved for the quarterly meetings per ward.
= Annual Target of 1 Imbizo Meetings was achieved

= Annual Target of 720 Reports Submitted by ward committies.

CoGTA conducted the ward committee functionality assessment and the municipality

achieved 100% in terms of functionality.

FUNCTIONALITY RESULTS OF EACH WARD PER QUARTER IN 2023/2024 FINANCIAL YEAR

WARD | 157 2ND QUARTER | 3RD 4™ CHALLENGES
QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER
|1 Functional Functional Functional Functional There were no
challenges
encountered for the
year 2023/24.
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Functional Functional Functional Functional
Functional Functional Functional Functional
Functional Functional Functional Functional
Functional Functional Functional Functional
Functional Functional Functional Functional

3.8.4 MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE
¢ The Public Participation section ensures that all the ward committee functionality

assessment elements are met.

¢ Ward committee members signed the code of conduct guiding them to serve their
communities in an ethical manner.

e The Public Participation section ensures that ward committee members attend the
quarterly ward committee meetings for debriefing, so that they will be able to serve
their communities better.

¢ All ward committee members and ward councillors can attend Ward committee
schedules for meetings, WAR ROOM meetings; and public meetings.

e Ward Based Plans and Ward Committee Operational Plans were compiled and adopted
by Council.

¢ Ward Committees were inducted on Code of Conduct, Roles and Responsibilities and
ward committee functionality assessment process.

* Ward Committee Members attend workshops, trainings and sector meetings conducted
by various stakeholders in order to expand their knowledge on public participation

programs and improve their report writing skills.

3.8.4 IDP/BUDGET ROAD SHOWS PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The IDP/Budget Roadshow took place on the 16t of April 2024 at Bensdorp Sport Field.
The LM had a joint Imbizo with the Amajuba District Municipality. The Mayor of the

District also presented the IDP and Budget for the District. Community members from all 6

58 |Page



wards within eMadlangeni were transported to the venue to attend the Imbizo. They got a
chance to engage with the Principals and offered an opportunity to present inputs and

recommendations concerning the IDP and Budget.

3.8.5 WARD COMMITTEE TRAININGS

There were no accredited trainings conducted for the year.

3.8.6 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

* Public Participation attended Legislature Public Hearing on Agriculture on the 14t of
July 2023 at Newcastle Famers Hall. Two taxis were provided for the Local Municipality
to attend the Hearing.

¢ The Amajuba District Speaker convened a District Speakers Forum on the 26t of July
2023. eMadlangeni Local Municipality Speaker attended the meeting

® The Department of Economic Development conducted a Red Tape at Utrecht Town Hall
on the 15 of August 2023; Mxhakeni on the 16t of August 2023 and Ezimbuthu on the
17t of August 2023

e KIN provincial Legislature convened a Public Hearing on Conservation and
Environmental Affairs on the 227 of August 2023 at the Utrecht Town Hall. Community
members were transported from all wards within the Local Municipality, 2 taxis per
ward.

* KZN provincial Legislature had another Public Hearing in August at Ladysmith on the
23 on Human Settlements, 1 taxi was provided for the community and ward 2
attended the hearing

e Provincial Disaster Management Centre (PDMC) arranged a Provincial Disaster
Management Training on the 23 of August 2023 at Mxhakeni Hall, together with the
Local Municipality Disaster Management Unit and Public Participation Unit.

® Local Economic Development, Planning and Public Participation Unit attended a
meeting with Department of Mineral Resources and Energy (DMRE) on the 24t of
August 2023 at eMadlangeni Local Municipality Council Chamber.
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Public Participation Unit attended an Anti-Corruption Workshop on the 24t of August
2023 held at Amajuba District.

Public Participation Unit attended Agri-village meeting on the 7t of September 2023 at
Land Reform Office

EMadlangeni Local Municipality had a Local Task Team (Sukuma Sakhe) on the 12% of
September 2023, meeting was chaired by Public Participation Officer as the Deputy
Chair of the Task Team.

Public Participation Unit, Communications and Risk Officer attended a virtual workshop
on the Link App held at the Council Chamber on the 13th of October 2023.

EMadlangeni Local Municipality Disaster Management Unit convened a Municipal
Disaster Management Advisory Forum (MDMAF) Meeting on the 8t of November 2023
and Public Participation Officer attended the meeting and presented her quarterly
report. |

Public Participation Officer attended District Public Participation Forum chaired by
Provincial Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (CoGTA) on
the 16 of November 2023 at Amajuba District Municipality.

The Municipal Speaker chaired a ward committee quarterly meeting on the 4t of
December 2023 at the Utrecht Town Hall.

Public Participation Officer attended the District Development Model (DDM) Social
Cluster meeting on the 2" of February 2024.

Public Participation Officer coordinated an intervention meeting between the ward
committee member in ward 2 at Khayalethu Village and the Community Committee in
Khayalethu. The ward councilor was present at the meeting and the Speaker chaired
the meeting.

KZN Legislature convened a Public Hearing on National Small Enterprise Amendment
Bill on the 15t of March 2024 at Utrecht Town Hall

EMadlangeni Local Municipality Disaster Management Unit convened a Municipal
Disaster Management Advisory Forum (MDMAF) Meeting on the 28 of February 2024
and Public Participation Officer attended the meeting.

Public Participation Officer attended the DDM Social Cluster meeting on the 4t of
March 2024
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¢ Public Participation Officer, Manager Planning and Social Services Officer attended Fetal
Alcohol Syndrome Workshop facilitated by the Office of the Deputy Minister Social
Development on the 8t of March 2024 at Newcastle Black Rock Casino.

¢ Public Participation Officer attended IDP Representative Forum facilitated by the Local
Municipality IDP Unit on the 16t of April 2024 at the Utrecht Town Hall; one ward
committee member from the 6 wards within Local Municipality attended the session.

* The Local Municipality had a joint Imbizo with Amajuba District Municipality on the
17% of April 2024 at Bensdorp Sport Field. Public Participation Officer was responsible
for mobilization and coordination of the event. Community members from all 6 wards
within the Local Municipality were transported to the venue by taxis provided by the
Local Municipality.

¢ The Speaker chaired the Municipal Rapid Response Team on the 29th of April 2024,
coordinated by the Public Participation Officer as the Secretariat of the Team.

* Public Participation Officer attended the District Development Model Social Cluster
meeting on the 29t of April 2024.

e Emadlangeni Local Municipality had a general staff meeting on the 26 of June 2024 at
the Utrecht Town Hall.

3.8.7 MUNICIPAL RAPID RESPONSE TEAM (MRRT)
The MRRT is functional and is chaired by the Municipal Speaker, with PPO as the

Secretariat. The MRRT meets quarterly or as and when the need arises. The last meeting

was on the 29% of April 2024 at the Council Chamber-.

Composition of the Municipal Rapid Response Team

* The Speaker shall be the Chairperson of the eMadlangeni Municipal Rapid Response Team,
as the person responsible for Public Participation

® Minimum of 3 councilors as assigned by Council

® The Municipal Manager or a consistent delegate referred by the Municipal Manager

¢ Public Participation Official

¢ Disaster Management

* Heads of Department as assigned by council

¢ Community Service Manager / complaints management head
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The War Room meetings are convened in all 6 wards within the eMadlangeni Local
Municipality. All war rooms are functional. The Local Task Team (LTT) visits the war
rooms quarterly for support and further interventions. The War room Chairperson reports
to the LTT once a month. The war room meetings are attended by Sector Departments,
CCGs, CDWs, Ward Committee Members, CWP, Forum members i.e. Disability Forum,
Senior Citizens Forum, Women’s Forum, Men’s Forum, Child Care Forum as well as
Traditional Leaders and Faith Based Organizations. Ward Councillors champion the war

room meetings.

3.8.9 COMMUNITY DIALOGUES
Open community dialogues on any issues of interest to the community should also be
arranged. These are sessions to be held in halls, open parks or even schools to engage the
community on any issue which may be of interest to the community. Though open, the
sessions should not be allowed to transgress from the intention of getting the community

to constructively engage on their development.

The sessions should as much as possible be used to encourage the community to discuss
solutions to their problems rather than present only challenges and should be channelled
to presenting what they can do rather than what it is that government/municipality should
do for them. These sessions are conducted in collaboration with the Department of Social

Development and Special Programmes under the Operation Sukuma Sakhe umbrella.

3.8.10 CHALLENGES

e Complaints Management System is not integrated within all Units in the Local
municipality.
e Attendance for the Public Meetings in some areas within wards is poor as the areas are

too scattered and some community members do not get the notices for the meetings
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and hence, they do not attend the meetings and are left uninformed on the activities and
programmes happening in their areas. A loud hailer can bridge that gap and everyone
can be able to attend the meetings and stay informed.

* Lack of resources for the Public Participation Unit i.e. car allowance, vehicle designated

for the Unit to attend stakeholder and community engagements

¢ An Integrated Complaints Management System in place but not yet integrated
across all units.

e Prompt feedback on community issues and complaints.

e Regular presentation on the progress of planned projects for the 2024/2025
financial period to ward committees on a quarterly basis.

e Bringing back Community Services Department to deal directly with community
queries.
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3.9 KPA 5: LOCAL ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

The overall performance of KPA 5 was achieved with 100%.

KPA 5: LOCAL ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT
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3.9.1 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2023/24
According to Business License Act 71 of 1991, eMadlangeni Local Municipality is required

to issue business licenses to businesses trading in perishable items like food and drinks.
The Local Economic Development Unit issued 25 Business Licenses and 89 Informal

Trading Permits in the 2024/2025 financial year.

EMadlangeni Local Municipality LED Unit working with Small Enterprise Development
Agency (SEDA), on 20 July 2023 provided 27 Point Of Sale devices to Emadlangeni Local
Municipality SMMEs in different sectors.

On 30 April 2024, eMadlangeni Local Municipality Council adopted a reviewed Local
Economic Development Strategy, which is a guiding and planning document for Economic
Development and provides the municipality with strategies on how to achieve Economic
Development. On 30 April 2024 Emadlangeni Local Municipality adopted Informal

Economy
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Policy, Informal Economy Policy will assist the Municipality to positively respond to any

challenges faced by local SMMEs.

3.9.2 BALELE RENOVATIONS

The renovations of the eMadlangeni Local Municipality Balele Game Park are funded by the
Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA). An
amount of R4 500 000 was transferred in 27 September 2023 for phase two of the project,
and a subsequent R3 000 000 was transferred on the 14th December 2023 for phase two of
the project. The project will continue into the 2024/2025 financial year.

3.9.3 EVENTS

On April 2024, eMadlangeni Municipality hosted a Bike Rally at Balele Game Park, Van
Rooyen Street. Utrecht Colour Run was hosted by Jolt Pores at Balele Game Park on 25

November 2023. KZN Miss Heritage was held at Balele Game Park in August 2023.

3.9.4 COMPLIANCE INSPECTIONS

The last formal compliance inspection took place in 23 May 2024.The Municipality is
assisted by the Amajuba District Municipality for all inspections as it currently has no

Environmental Health Practitioners employed in-house.

In 1 July 2023 started the Implementation of EPWP Program, the program lasted for six
months and it ended on 31 December 2023. Emadlangeni received R1 124 000 grant from

National Department of Public Works for implementation of EPWP program.

65|Page



3.9.6 SMMES AND CO-OPS CAPACITY BUILDING

= On 1 August 2023, Emadlangeni working with KZNEDTEA and NEMISA conducted
digital skills training and twenty community members were trained

* On 20 September 2023 Emadlangeni Local Municipality working with Amajuba District
Municipality and KZN Department of Agriculture hosted radical agrarian socio
economic road show.

* On 13 November 2023, Emadlangeni working with Amajuba TVET College hosted a 22
days’ free skills training program on Hand Sewing and Raw Hides and Skin.

* On 11 March 2024 the Municipality hosted Customer Care Training for local 19 SMMEs

* 28 June 2024 the Municipality working with SANRAL started Capacity workshop

focusing on pre-tender documentation , the workshop covered 19 service providers.

3.9.7 CHALLENGES

* Difficulty in implementing projects and program that were proposed in the Unit
Implementation Plan due to shortage of funding.

* Inability to reach all 6 Municipal Wards to supply registers and monitor EPWPs due to
unavailabilty of transport

* Lack of Tools of Trade and inadequate office space

e Regular outages of Internet connection

= EMadlangeni Local Municipality does not have an in-house Environmental Health
Practitioner, thus making it difficult to conduct regular formal compliance inspections.

* The Municipality’s financial constraints present challenges in the successful execution

of LED programmes.

3.9.8 MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE

¢ Formal applications and requests have been sent to various stakeholders including KZN
COGTA, KZN EDTEA, SEDA for funding to ensure that LED programs are implemented.

e Development and implementation of Informal Economy Policy
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The municipality is mandated by the Municipal Systems Act No. 32 of 2000 and the
Constitution of South Africa to ensure that the Municipality gives priority to the needs of
vulnerable groups in the community. One of the objectives of the Municipality is to promote
Social and Economic Development as mandated by the Constitution of South Africa.
The Social Services Unit operates to ensure the accomplishment of the social upliftment

and development objectives of the Municipality.

The Social Services Unit coordinated social development programmes during the
2023/2024 financial year, interacting with community based structures to facilitate alignment
of needs and priorities of: Youth Development programmes, Gender programmes, Child
Care & Support Programmes, People Living with Disability Programmes, Senior Citizens
Programmes, Sports, Recreation, Arts & Culture Programmes, and HIV/AIDS programmes,
aimed at the development of the vulnerable groups in the community.

Programmes Undertaken during the 2023/2024 financial year are as follows:

No. | Priority Date Details Venue
Group
1 | Men 19 July 2023 Men’s Programme Utrecht Correctional
Services
2 | Senior 07 August 2023 Local Golden Games | Utrecht High School
Citizens Selection for Senior | Sports Ground
Citizens
3 | Senior 23 August 2023 Participation of Senior | Arbour Park -
Citizens Citizens in  District | Newcastle

Golden Games

4 | Men & | 30 August 2023 Gender Economic | Utrecht Town Hall
Women Development
Programme
5 | Youth 08-10 September | Umkhosi Womhlanga Enyokeni Royal
2023 Palace
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Senior 12-14  September | Participation of Senior | Ugu Sports & Leisure
Citizens 2023 Citizens in Provincial | Centre
Golden Games
Senior 26 October 2023 Senior Citizens | Utrecht Town Hall
Citizens Centenarian Programme
Women & | 25 November - 10 | 16 Days of Activism for | Utrecht and  the
Children December 2023 No Violence Against surroundings
Women & Children
People with | 11-13  November | Participation of People | EThekwini Durban
Disabilities | 2023 with  Disability  in | ey
Provincial Disability
Games
People with | 30 November 2023 | Disability Awareness | Niemeyer Hospital
Disabilities Programme
People with | 04-05 December | Disability Parliament Richview Civic Hall in
Disabilities 2023 Newcastle
Emadlangeni | 21 January 2024 Mayoral Stakeholder | Utrecht Town Hall
Stakeholders Engagement
Youth 09 February 2024 Matric Excellence | Utrecht Town Hall
Awards
Children 04 - 07 March | Back to School | Utrecht Primary
2024 Campaign School
Children 17 May 2024 Child Protection | Lindokuhle Creche -
Activities: Promoting | Berouw
Care & Protection of
Children
Children & | 22 May 2024 Child Protection | Enzimane Combined
Parents Activities: School
Strengthening  Positive
Relationships -
Empowerment of
Children & Parents
Community | 04 June 2024 Child Protection Emgundeni Tribal

Activities: Role of

Court

68| Page




Communities in the
Care & Protection of

Children
1 | Youth 01 June 2024 | Youth Marathon Utrecht Town
(Starting Point: Balele
Game Park)

................................................................ 3.9.9.1 EMADLANGENI LOCALFORUMS .
The Municipality officially launched the current Local Forums for the vulnerable groups on
the 201 of May 2022, to serve for the period of five (5) years in line with the current
Administration. Forum Meetings sit on a quarterly basis. The Municipality develops and
executes Social Development Programmes based on the identified needs for each secior.
Forums also assist in strengthening the relationship between the Municipality and the

community.

The existing forums for the vulnerable groups are as follows:
e The Local Drug Action Committee
e The Local Aids Council
* The Local Youth Council
¢ The Local Women'’s Forum
e The Local Men's Forum
e The Local Senior Citizens Forum
¢ The Local Disability Forum
* The Local Arts & Culture Forum
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3.8.9.2 CHALLENGES
The following are the challenges currently experienced in the social services unit:
» Suitable transport is required in order to reach out to communities, especially deep
rural communities.

e The budget allocated is not sufficient to efficiently execute special programmes.

3.8.9.3 MEASURES TO BE TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE

* Procurement of a 22-seater taxi for community outreach and transportation of forum
members to District events and meetings for effective forum functioning.
* Increase budget for special programmes so as to execute special programmes

efficiently.

3.10 CROSS CUTTING

3.10.1.1 INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

The disaster management unit was established in 2015 and operates 24 hours 7 days
(24/7) with four teams performing a twelve hour shift each. The disaster manager was
appointed in November 2016. There is only one (1) disaster officer, eight (8) fire fighters,
and one (1) support staff trained as a fire fighter. The Municipality is working together with
Uitkomst Colliery (Pty) Ltd towards the establishment of the Fire & Emergency Services
Centre (The Centre) as part of its social and labour plan. The approval of plans for the
Centre was done on 12/09/2023 by the Municipality. The contractor was appointed on
08/03/2024; and sod tuming was done on 09/04/2024. The construction of the Centre
commenced on 12/03/2024; and the completion date will be within the second quarter of
2024/25 financial year. The
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municipal disaster management plan was reviewed and updated then adopted by the

Council in May 2023; and it will be reviewed in 2024/25 financial year.

The Municipal Disaster Management Advisory Forum (MDMAF) was established in July
2015 as required by the Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002 and sits on quarterly basis.
The MDMAF meetings were held on 31/08/2023; 08/11/2023; 28/02/2024; and 24/04/2024.
The primary purpose of the MDMAF is to provide a mechanism for relevant role players to
consult one another and to coordinate their actions on matters relating to disaster

management in the municipality (Section 51 of the Disaster Management Act, 2002).

Disaster risk reduction

The Municipality has a responsibility to implement disaster risk reduction measures to limit
the adverse impact of both man-made and natural hazards on vulnerable areas,

communities and households.
(i) Contingency plans

Disaster risk assessment is the first step in planning an effective disaster risk reduction
programme. Participatory Disaster Risk Assessment (PDRA) was conducted at the
community level and it showed that the Municipality is mostly threatened by veld fires;
structural fires; lightning; strong winds; heavy rains; flash floods and tornadoes. The
Municipality in partnership with the sector departments, FPA, welfare and relief
organisations developed the contingency plans for both 2023/24 summer and winter

seasons to ensure preparedness measures for any eventuality that may lead to a disaster.

(ii) Installation of smoke alarms

The Provincial Disaster Management Centre (PDMC) supported the Municipality with the
installation of smoke alarms in eMxhakeni Ward 3. The Municipality is prone to fires; due to
the vastness of wards it takes time to reach some areas when a fire incident has been
reported. To reduce a risk of fires, twenty-five (25) smoke alarms were installed to the

households who mostly do not have electricity in the area on 23/08/2023.

(iii) Installation of lightning conductors
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The Municipality is prone to lightning, which normally leads to death, injury and loss of
property. One of the risk reduction strategies in preventing and mitigating lightning is the
installation of lightning conductors. A total of sixty-three (63) lightning conductors were
installed to the most affected families; fifteen (15) lightning conductors were procured by
the Municipality; Amajuba District Disaster Management Centre (DDMC) supported the
Municipality with twenty-five (25) lightning conductors; and PDMC also supported the
Municipality with twenty- three (23) lightning conductors.

(iii) Creation of fire breaks
The Municipality created the fire breaks around the Game Park and Amajuba Water works
in Utrecht Ward 2, eMadlangeni from 03/07/2023-18/08/2023 and again from 20-26/06/2024

to prevent and mitigate the impact that can be caused by veld fires.

Response and recovery

The Municipality has experienced numerous incidents caused by strong winds, structural
fires, veld fires, heavy rains, storm and lightning. The main causes of structural fires are
candles left unattended, illegal connections, furnace (Imbawula), gas and arson. The veld
fires destroyed livestock and grazing land. There were fifty-seven (57) injuries caused by
fire, lightning and storm.

3.10.1.2 DISASTER RISK REDUCTION

The Municipality has a responsibility to implement disaster risk reduction measures to limit
the adverse impact of both man-made and natural hazards on vulnerable areas,

communities and households.
(i) Contingency plans

The Municipality faces an increasing level of disaster risks and is exposed to a wide range
of hazards, including weather related hazards that can trigger widespread hardship and
devastation. These hazards include amongst others structural fires, strong winds, storms,
heavy rains, flash floods, lightning and others that may not yet be characterised. These
events are known to cause widespread disruption within the communities. In order to
ensure preparedness measures for any eventuality during the 2023/24 financial year; the

Municipality in partnership with the sector departments, welfare and relief organisations has
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prepared contingency plans for both 2023/24 summer and winter seasons. The summer
and winter season plans were presented to all Council structures and they were adopted by
Council on 12/09/2023 and 28/02/2024 respectively. The aim of these plans is to give
prevention and mitigation strategies, emergency response and recovery, and coordination
with other organs of state and institutional role play. A contingency plan for 2024 general
elections was developed and adopted by Council on 23/05/2024.

(i) Installation of smoking alarms

The Provincial Disaster Management Centre (PDMC) supported the Municipality with the
installation of smoke alarms in eMxhakeni Ward 3. The Municipality is prone to fires; due to
the vastness of wards it takes time to reach some areas when a fire incident has been
reported. To reduce a risk of fires, twenty-five (25) smoke alarms were installed to the

households who mostly do not have electricity in the area on 23 August 2023.

(iii) Installation of lightning conductors

The Municipality is prone to lightning, which normally leads to death, injury and loss of
property. One of the risk reduction strategies in preventing and mitigating lightning is the
installation of lightning conductors. A total of sixty-three (63) lightning conductors were
installed to the most affected families; fifteen (15) lightning conductors were procured by the
Municipality; Amajuba District Disaster Management Centre (DDMC) supported the Municipality
with twenty-five (25) lightning conductors; and the PDMC also supported the Municipality
with twenty-three (23) lightning conductors.

(iv) Creation of fire breaks
The Municipality created the fire breaks around the Game Park to prevent and mitigate the

impact that can be caused by veld fires as follows:

Date Ward Area ]
03-06 July 2023 2 Game Park & Amajuba Water Treatment Plant
17-19 July 2023 2&5 Game Park & eMadlangeni
26 July 2023 5 eMadlangeni Combined School o
2 eMalahleni Combined School
18/08/2023 2 Amajuba Water Treatment Plant
20 June 2024 2 Game Park
25-26 June 2024 2 Game Park
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3.10.1.3 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY

In terms of the Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002(as amended) and the South African
National Policy Framework for Disaster Risk Management (2005), the disaster management
unit of eMadlangeni Local Municipality is responsible for the co-ordination and management

of incidents and disasters that occurs in its area of jurisdiction.

The Municipality has experienced numerous incidents caused by strong winds, house fires,

veld fires, heavy rains, storm and lightning.

Table 1: Summary statistics of the incidents that occurred from July 2023- June 2024 is as Jollows:

2]
. ,2 '§ ‘2 '% b Houses Destroyed 03 | 8 o >0 a
Local " o g | £% 2g | E 2 £S5 |2
Municioaliti Q3 235 o 2 00 | & 5 2 @ =
unicipalities g-g g g g Totally Partially | 2% | % | 9 g
=Xz Zi=Slo < | destroyed | damaged <l w [ 7 I
SW - Strong Winds, F — Fires, FL — Floods, HR — Heavy Rains, S — Storm, Lightning - L, Drowning-D
SW 20
Structural F 23
eMadlangeni
Veld F 64
4 213 120 200 1384 | 0 57 0 122
HR
s 3
L 32
TOTALS 146 213 120 200 1384 | 0 57 0 122
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eMadlangeni July 2023-June 2024

B Strong winds
™ House fires

W Heavy rains

I Storm
Lightning

B Veld fires

Figure 1: Distribution of incidents

Emergency relief issued by various stakeholders
The following relief was issued by the Municipality with the support of the PDMC, Amajuba
DDMC, DSD and SASSA:

Blankets | Sponges | Box Plastic Food Tarpaulins School Emergency
“B” Sheeting Vouchers uniform Shelter
83 7 4 67 18 2 0 0

Damage to infrastructure

The magnitude and severity of the damage caused by the heavy rains in October-
December 2023 and January 2024 had effects in the Municipality; the roads have
developed severe potholes and some edge-break and require reworking of some layers and
resurfacing. The imported surface material has been washed away by storm water, and the
roads have developed trenches and dongas across and along the roads. The conditions of
the roads are not conducive to any road users. The electrical infrastructure was also
damaged and needs urgent attention; and the Municipality sees a need to conduct
emergency infrastructural repairs and maintenance on the identified roads and electrical

infrastructure.
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3.10.1.4 EDUCATION, TRAINING AND PUBLIC AWARENESS

The Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002, National and Provincial frameworks state that, a

municipal disaster management centre must promote formal and informal initiatives that

encourage risk-avoidance behaviour by organs of state,

the private sector, non-

governmental organisations, communities, households and individuals in the municipal

area. The workshops and awareness campaigns to raise disaster risk awareness, disaster

risk reduction, volunteerism and preparedness were conducted as follows:

Activity Ill\hmi Date Time [ Venue | Target group ‘Number of
! | , .
() Disaster 2 | 26/07/2023 [ 09h00 | Niemeyer Hospital | Staff —— and | 100
preparedness-Fire ’ patients
Drill to test disaster
contingency plan
6 06/12/2023 | 10h30 | Bloed River Sub- Eskom 19
station Employees
(i) Awareness on disaster 6 02/08/2023 | 13h00 Kingsley Combined | Ward 61
response School Councillor,
15h00 | Slagveld Combined | Ward 6
School Committee
1 22-23/11/20 | 10h00 Luthilunye CP | members & 108
23 School Community
members
12/03/2024 | 10h00 Luthilunye Community 57
Combined School members
(iii) Climate Change and 1,3, | 22/08/2023 | 10h00 Kingsley Traditional | Traditional 32
Disaster Management 4,58& Council Leadership
Workshop with EDTEA 6
(iv) Disaster Risk 3 23/08/2023 | 10h00 | Emxhakeni Hall Community 63
Awareness Campaign members
with NDMC, PDMC &
DDMC
(v) Simulation exercise 2 06/09/2023 | 09h00 | eMalahleni Educators, 477
Combined School Learners and
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Activity - [Ward | Date Time [ Venue Target group | Number of
Support Staff
5 12/09/2023 | 10h00 | Utrecht Primary | Educators, 67
School Grade7
Learners and
Support Staff
12/10/2023 | 12h00 | Zimbuthu CP School 32
3 12/10/2023 | 09h00 | eMxhakeni CP 256
School
6 17/10/2023 | 09h00 | Kingsley Sivananda 366
Combined School
(vi) Awareness on fire 3 11/09/2023 | 10h00 | St Francis Creche & | Educators, 205
prevention Pre-School Learners and
Support Staff
12/10/2023 | 10h00 | eMxhakeni CP | Food handlers 8
School and
Supervisors
12/10/2023 | 12h20 | Zimbuthu CP School 1
17/10/2023 Kingsley Sivananda 03
Combined School
(vii) Water safety workshop 2 07/11/2023 | 10h00 | Community Services | Fire Fighters & 19
Boardroom EPWP
(vii)  Training on disaster 2 30/01/2024 | 09h00 | Bergsig LSEN School 50
management and principals and
national school safety school safety
framework chairpersons
(ix) Awareness on National 4 04/06/2024 | 10h00 | Groenvlei Hall Community 46
Veld and Forest Fire Act members
TOTAL 2026
Total 18 523 000.00 | 915 600.36 17 607 399.64 | 4.9% spent
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CHALLENGES POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS

Response time due to non-availability of | Prioritize procurement of a rescue vehicle.

response vehicles

Limited staff versus vastness of wards Create and fund posts for appointment of:
= 4 X Leading Fire Fighters;

= 4 X Control Room Operators; and

=  Station Officer

Limited budget Additional funding for fire & rescue

Enforcement of Municipal by-laws Training of Peace Officers to enforce the by-laws

Fire hydrants are not in good condition Installation of new hydrants

Limited resources: Procurement of:

= Fire truck (4500 litres); * Rescue vehicle with all necessary equipment;

*  Worn out PPE for structural fires; = PPE for structural fires;

* Limited fire equipment; and =  Fire equipment; and

= No relief material = Relief material. N

= Establishment of Municipal Emergency Services Centre:
* Positive cooperation among stakeholders;

» Capacity building initiatives;

* Public awareness campaigns; and

=  MDMAF meetings sit quarterly.
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3.10.4 SUMMARISED ACHIEVEMENTS

3.10.4.1 overall performance comparisons —2022/23 & 2023/24 financial year

KEY PERFORMANCE 2022-2023 2023-24
INDICATORS (KPlIs)

total number of key 87 97
performance indicators

total number of key 76 76
performance indicators met

total number of key 11 21
performance indicators not

met

overall performance 87% 78%
percentage (%)

overall performance comparisons — 2022/23 & 2023/24 financial
year
120
97
100 87 g 87%
76 76 75%
80 = —
60 ' b ] |
| -
40 . L 'I
i} - 21 L
20 B ! 11 : mal
. iz | -
Total number of Key Total number of Key
Performance Indicators Performance Indicators
Not Achieved
W 202223 1 2023-24

® This report includes highlights from the key performance measures included in the
2023/24 IDP.

* This report presents the year-end performance results for 2023/2024 financial
year. The results are reported using the traffic light criteria, according to their

performance
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against improvement targets. A dashboard that summarizes performance for the
municipality’s scorecard is shown below.

= In2023/24, performance has declined by 11% since the 2022/2023 financial year.

The traffic light system used to report performance is as follow:

o Green - Performance meets target
o0 Red - Performance not met target

Traffic Light Status 2022/23 2023/2024
Performance Performance
87% 78%
13% 22%

3.11 ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The legislative framework as set out above provides for performance management at various levels
in a municipality including Organizational (sometimes also referred to as municipal, corporate or
strategic) level, operational (also referred to as services, departmental or section/team level) and

lastly, at individual level as. These levels are however integrated and interdependent on each other.

STRATEGIC ORGANISATIONAL

LEVEL : PMS

i = G

N DR, SDBIP, IND i —
INDIVIDUAL [l KPAs&JOB 7" INDIVIDUAL

LEVEL DESCRIPTIONS | \  PMS

The process of managing performance at Organizational level in the eMadlangeni Local

Municipality involves the stages as set out in the following diagram:
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OVERSIGHT

2. Performance
Maonitoring

I..r'"1. Performance - 3 Performance
Planning e Measurement A
ORGANISATIONAL ;
PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT

‘6. P'e,rfc»fmanc;f- {4. Performance
Review Analysis

S ITO=nwam<o

O
v
E
R
s
I
(€3
H
T

(5. Performance
Reporting

OVERSIGHT

Key performance indicators have been refined in support of the municipality’s development
priorities and objectives as set out in the revised IDP framework (aligned with the organizational
structure and Council’s priorities) for the five-year IDP period to ensure consistency in measuring
and reporting on long terms strategies and projects. Measurable performance targets with regard
to each of these development priorities and objectives were established and are reflected in the
2023/24 OPMS Scorecard/Top Layer of the Service Delivery Budget implementation Plan. A
process to ensure regular reporting is in place and is reported quarterly to the Council via the

Performance Audit Committee.

Individual performance agreements and performance plans were prepared in line with provisions
prescribed in the Performance Regulations (Notice 805, published on 1 August 2006 in the official
gazette) and signed by the Municipal Manager and Heads of Departments. These agreements are fully
implemented and aligned with the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan as required in

terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (No 56 of 2003).
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3.12 PERFORMANCE AND SUPPORTING INFORMA TION

Performance Monitoring underpins the Municipality’s Integrated Development Plan in terms of

reviewing progress regularly in achieving the priorities and delivering value for money services.
Early investigation into variances enables remedial action taken where appropriate.

The Annual Performance Report highlights the key performance measures included in the
Integrated Development Plan (IDP) review for the 2023/2024 financial year. These priority
Mmeasures constitute the Organisational Performance Scorecard.

The annual performance reporting on the 2023 /24 financial year has been completed
and reflected in the Organisational Performance Scorecard / The Top Layer of Service
Delivery Targets set in the Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan in a table
format (as prescribed by KwaZulu Natal Department of Cooperative Governance and
Traditional Affairs). The Top Layer Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan
(SDBIP) consolidated service delivery targets as contemplated in National Treasury
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) Circular 13 guide.

* The Municipal Scorecard approach reflects the 6 nationa] KPA’s and local priorities and
enables a wider assessment of how the municipality is performing,

* The performance report is based on measures included in the Municipal Scorecard.
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CHAPTER 4: ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE
=5 (PERFORMANCE REPORT PART II)

COMPONENT A

EMadlangeni Local Municipality consists of 163 staff members whom are within Four
departments namely; Office of the Municipal Manager; Municipal Planning and
Technical Services, Corporate Services as well as Budget and Treasury. Due to lack
of Human Resource policies to retain staff: the municipality experience the high rate
of staff turnover and this has given a negative impact to the institution. Therefore, it
can be stated that the municipality is unstable as it employs different people for one
position as people move to greener pastures for better life condition.

4.2 MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW

The Municipal Systems Act clarifies several issues relating to municipal powers,
functions and duties. A municipality has all the functions and powers assigned to it in
terms of the Constitution. It also has the right to do anything reasonably necessary
for, or incidental to the effective performance of its functions and the exercise of its
powers. National and provincial government assigns additional functions and powers
to local government, which are best, exercised at a local level and this helps to
ensure that the three spheres of government work in a coordinated way. In terms of
the Municipal Structures Act as well as the Constitution (1996), specific powers and
functions are assigned to District and Loca| Mmunicipalities respectively. EMadlangeni
Local Municipality is performing the powers assigned to it in terms of legislation as
deemed necessary at this stage. The following are the services that the municipality

provides within its area of jurisdiction:

* EMadlangeni Local Municipality provides electricity within ward 2 which is set
out to be a town of Utrecht and ward 5 Bensdorp, the Council adopted its
indigent policy/register in 2023/24 financial year to ensure the provision of free
service such as electricity to the deserving households.

119|Page



* Interms of refuse removal, the municipality collect waste within town twice a
week in 1 323 households, thig forms part of the municipal revenue ag the
rates are paid to the municipal accounts for this service.

Housing
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CHAPTER 5: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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General Information
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Postal address
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The main business of the munigipality is to structure and manage the
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Ciir ML Buthelezi

Clir PF Chongo

Clir PX Qwabe (Speaker)

Cllr SM Khoza (Whip of Councit)
Glir VG Ndiovu

Clir NM Dekker (MPAC chairperson)
Clir MJ Mthethwa

Clir N Nkosi

Clir NA Madida

Clir MR Khumalo

Clir KV Sibisi

Grade 1
G.N Mavundla
PP. Sithole

34 Voor Street
Utrecht

Kwa Zulu Natal
2980

P.C. Box 11
Utracht

Kwa Zulu Natal
2980

Standard Bank
First National Bank

Auditor General of South Africa

Mdledie Incorporated
Nompumelele Hadebe Inc



Emadlangeni Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Index

The reports and statemsnts set out below comprise the annual financial statements presenled to the provincial lagislature:

Page
Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 3
Audit Committee Report 4
Accounting Officer’s Report 5
Statement of Financial Position 6
Statement of Financia! Performance 7
Statemont of Changes in Net Assets 8
Cash Flow Statement 9
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 10-14
Accotnting Policies 15-34
Notes to the Annual Finarcial Statements 35-9
GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
1PSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards
VAT Value added fax
EPWP Expanded public works programme
FMG Finance management grant
MEC Membar of the Exaecutive Coungil
MFMA Municipal Finance Managemant Act



Emadlangeni Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate
accounting racords and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is the responaibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial
statements fairly presant the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion
on the annual financial staterments and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice {(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounling Slandards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that she is ultimately responsibla for the system of internal financial contro!
established by the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable
the accounting officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sels standards for inlernal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities
within a cleary defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
accepiable level of risk. These conlrols are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in 8 manner that in all
reasonable circumstances is above repraach, The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing,
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully etiminated,
ihe municipality endeavours (o minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrasiructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined pracedures and constraints.

The accounting officar is of tha opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system
of intemal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material miasiatemeni or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2025 and, in the light of
this review and the current financial position, she is satisfied ihat the municipality has or has access to adequate resources
to conlinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Although the accounting officer is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipality, she is supported by the
municipality's external auditors.

The annual Fnanc|a| statements set out on page 6 1o 71, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approvailby Ihe accounting officer 31 August 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

D&slgnnﬂon
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Audit Committee Report

Wae are pleased to present our report for the finandial year ended 30 June 2024.
Audit committee members and attendance

The audit committes consists of the members listed hereunder and should meat 4 fimes per annum as per its approved
temms of referencs. During the current year 4 meetings were held.

Name of member Number of meetings attended
Buhle Dlamini (Chairperson}
Adv Jabulani Mhlongo

Ms Thandeka Ndiovu

Mr Velaphi M Kubeka

hdnthen

Audit committee responsibllity
The audit commitlee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 166(2}{a) of the MFMA.

The audit committes also reporis thal it has adopted appropriate formal terms of referance as its audit committes charter,
has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibililies as contained therein.

The effectiveness of intemal control

The system of internal controls applied by the municipality over financial and risk management still require some attention/
improverment fo ensure that they are efficient, effective and fransparent. In line with the MFMA and the King Il Report on
Corporate Govemance requirements, Internal Audit provides the audit committee and management with assurance that the
intarnal conirals are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk managemeni process, as well as the
identification of corrective actions and suggesiad enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various reporis of
the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the annua! financial statements, and the management report of the Auditor-
General South Africa, it was noted that no matters were reported that indicate any material deficiencies in the system of
intarnal control or any deviations therefrom. Accordingly, we can report that the system of internat control over financial
reporting for the period under review was efficient and effective.

The quality of in-year mansgement and monthly/quarterly reports submittad in terms of the MFMA and the Divislon of
Revenue Act is considered efficient and effective.

The audit committes is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports preparad and issued by the
accounting officer of the municipality during the year under review.

Internal audit

The audit committes is satisfied that the intemnal audit function is operaling effectively and that it has addressed the risks
pertinent to the municipality and lis audils.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date:
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Accounting Officer's Report

The accounting officer submits her report for the year ended 30 June 2024.
1. Review of activitles

Main business and operations

2.  Going concemn

Wae draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2024, the municipality had an accumulated surplus of R 143 796 036 and the
municipality's total liabilities does not exceed its total assets.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concem. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

3. Subsequent events

The accounting officer is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

4. Accounting policies

The annual financial statements have baen preparad in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally
Recognised Accounting Praclices (GRAP), including any interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting
Standards Board, and in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP)
issued by the Accounting Slandards Board as the prescribed framework by National Treasury.

5. Accounting Officer

The accounting afficer of the municipality during the year and to the date of this report is as follows:

Name - Nationality
G. Mavundia South African

The annual financial statements set out on page 6 to 66 which have been prepared on the going concarn basis, were
appiougd by the accounting officer on 31 August 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

Designation
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Statement of Financial Positiqn_ as _at_ 39 .!une 2024

Figures in Rand

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivablos from non-exchange fransactions
VAT receivable

Prepaymenis

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-Current Assets
Investment property

Properiy, ptant and equipment
Intangible assets

Heritage assets

Total Assets

Liabilitles

Current Llabilities

Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from non-exchange transactions
VAT payable

Consumer deposits

Employee benefit obligation

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Non-Current Liabliities
Employag benefil obfigation
Provisions

Total Liabllities
Net Assets
Accumulated surplus

* Seo Note 49

Note(s) 2024 2023
Rostated*

9812 11437264 8751442
10812 26390744 32009333
17 - 1407038
8 164 943 148 654
13 17013333 2924 181
55006284 45 240 648

3 38614685 39099 380
4 108263558 107 953 832
5 3440 53978
6 1190681 1190581
148072264 148 307 771

203078 548 193 548 410

16 26446837 30588475
17 2719490 2346953
18 3462435 .
19 185 684 175 492
7 2971745 1386495
14 25815387 5916910
61601578 40 414 325

7 1636000 2982000
15 26044034 25920384
27680934 28902384
89282512 69 316 700

113796 036 124 231 710
113796036 124 231 710
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Sale of goods

Service charges

Construction contracis

Opsrational revenus

Rental of facilities and equipment

Interest received - investment

Licences and permits

Penalties and Interest- Exchange Transactions

Total revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Taxatlon revenue
Property rates
Penalties and Interest- Non-sxchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Govemment grants and subsidies
Fines, Panalties and Forfeits

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions
Total revenue

Expenditure

Employes related costs
Remuneration of councillors
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs

Lease rentals on operating lease
Debt Impairment

Bulk purchases

Contracted services
Construclion expenses
Actuarial losses

Donation

General Expenses

Total expenditure

Deficlt for the year from continulng operations
Loss on Disposals of assels

Deficit for the year

" See Note 49

Note(s}

21
22
29
23
25
24
27
30

"~ 51439393

3
3

32

20

33

35
38
28
37
38
39
41

43
40

H

2024

321901
17004 414
26 278 507

619 542

1535201
1454 352
2307 035
1918 351

37400 183
4374114

63 295 523
1003 831

106 073 651

2023
Restated*

353 067
16 055 778
13 823 856

5637
1406 984
556 512
1790 921

33992755

25471125
1787 845

53875515
688 505

81822 690

157 513 044 115815 445

(50905 705) (46 216 154)
(4701534) (5102 888)
(13307 211) {18 116 630)
(307 054) (1978 717)
(171987) (351 856)
(15248453) 3957 100
{19281709) (15896 269)
{18288 826} (12912 187)
(26278 507) {13 823 B56)
(84150) (182 000)

(5 747 830) N
(13322736) (11690 735)
(167 645 762) (122 114 192)
(10132718) (6 298 747}
(302943) (583 480}
{10 435661) (6 882 227)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
- N Accumulated  Total nst

Figures in Rand B B B surplus / deficit assets
Restated Balance at 01 July 2022 131 113937 131 113 937
Restated Surplus for the year (6882227) (6882 227)
Tolal changes {6882227) (6882227)
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2023 124 231 697 124 231 697
Changes in nel assels

Surplus for the year (10435661) (10435 661)
Tolal changes (10435661) (10435 661)
Balance at 30 June 2024 113796036 113 796 036
Note(s)

* See Nole 49 -
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Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand

Cash Rows from operating actlvities

Receipts

Sale of goods and services
Grants

Interest incoma

Other recsipts

Vat

Property rates

Fines

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance cosls

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Financial Assets

Net cash fiows from Investing activities

Cash fiows from financing activities

Procaads from other financial liabilities
Consumsr deposits

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the yaar
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

* See Note 49

Note(s) 2024 2023
- Restated*

38754405 28980 287
63295523 53875515

1454 352 556 512
4783769 5344154
15836609 6745397
44805766 15942 567

79421 42 981

169010935 111487 413
(54378 667) (50 307 055)
(82872906) (52799 777)
(182504) (337 747)
(137 434 077) (103 444 579)

44 31576858 9042834
4 (17407898) (B 212 866)
4 - 451 111
_ (17407898) (7761 755)

- (316 102)

10192 2565

10192 (313 537)

14 089 152 (32 458)
2924181 2956639

13 17013333 2924181
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Statement of Compariso_n of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budgel on Accrual Basis

Kppr_oved _Adjustmenls Final Budget Aclual amounts Difference  Refer lo Note

budget on comparable between final 54
basis budget and
Figures in Rand - B actual a

Statement of Financlal Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange

transactions

Other revenue 526 886 (261 717) 265 169 321901 56732 21%
Service charges 21660 811 332 21661143 17004414 (4656729)  21%
Construction conlracls 21293 913 5518 261 26812174 26278 507 (533 667) 2%

Operational revenua 142 106 496 859 638 065 619 542 {19423) 3%

Renial of facilities and 1081 926 162 365 1244 201 1535291 291 000 23%
equipmeni

Interest received 493 113 411 410 804 523 1454 352 549 829 61%

Licences and permils 1673 084 60000y 1613084 2307035 693 951 43%

Penaltiss and Interest- - - - 1918351 1918 351 100%
Exchange Transactions

Total revenue from exchange ~ 46871830 6267510 53139340 51430393 (1600 056)
wransactions

Revenue from non-¢xchange

transactions

Taxation revenue

Property rates 45344 758 - 45344758 37400183 (7944 575) -18%

Property rates - psnaltios - 5 670 405 5670405 4374114 {1296 291) -23%

imposed

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 47 469 000 - 47469000 3205523 15826523 33%

Fines, Panalties and Forfoits 6 274 882 (5 670 405) 604 477 1003831 309 354 66%

Total revenue from non- 99 088 640 - 985088640 106 073 651 6985 011

exchange transactions B

Total revenue 145 960 479 6267 510 152227983 157 513 044 5285 055

Expenditure

Employee Related Costs (47B79086) (4 115616) (51994702) (50905705) 1 088 997 2%

Remuneration of councillors {4 857 873) 384374 (4473499) (4701 594) (228 095) 5%

Depraciation and amortisation (9 864 329) - (9864329) (13307 211) (3442882) 35%

Finance costs (300 000) 136 000 {164 000) {307 054) (143 054) 87%

Lease rentals on operating lease (180 000) - (180 000) (171 987) 8013 -4%

Debt Impairment {10 400 000) - (10400000) (15248453) (4848 453) 47%

Bulk purchases {20 301 277) 52417 (20 248860) (19 281 709) 967 451 5%

Contracted Services (18 485 399) 1436778 (17048621) (13283826) (1240 205) 7%

Construgction Expenses (21203913) (5518261) (26812174) (26 278 507) 533 667 2%

Donation - . = (5747830) (5747830)  .100%

General Expenses (17867980) 2995843 (14872137) (13322736) 1549401 -10%

Total expenditure (151429 B57) (4 628 465) (156 058 322) (167 561 612) (11503 200)

Loss on disposal of assets . - - (302 943) (302943}  100%

Actuarial gainsflosses - - - (84 150) (84150}  100% B
- - - (387083) (387 093)

- S - - -
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Differance  Refer to Note

budget on comparable betwssen final 54
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

Actual Amnount on Comparable (5 469 378) 1639 045 (3830333) ({10435661) (6605328)
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

Reasons for all variances in excess of 10% has been provided in note 53
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
QU@ Basis - _—

Approved Adjusﬁments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference  Refer to Note

budget on comparable between final 54
basis budget and
Figures in Rand - ) actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Recuivables from exchange 65315520 (1384782) 4930738 11437264 6506526  132%
transactions
Raceivables from non-exchange 20 230 807 - 20230907 26390 744 6 159 837 30%
tranzactions
Vat receivable 6529 716 7140622 13670338 - (13870338)  .100%
Prepaymants - - - 164 943 164 943 100%
Cash and cash equivalents 8802173  (8642338) 159835 17013333 16853488  10544%
41878316 (2886498} 38991818 55006284 16014456
Non-Current Assets
Biological asssis 4268 701 4349646 8618 347 . (8618347)  -100%
tnvestment property 34832328 34581830 60414158 38614685 (I0789473)  44%
Property, plant and equipment 175483349 191169282 3686652631 108 263558 (258380073)  -70%
Intangible assets 367 717 34021 401738 3440 (398298)  .go%
Heritage assels 1190 581 1190581 2381162 1190581 (1190581  -50%
216142 676 231325360 447 468036 148 072264 (200 395 7_72)
Total Assets 258020002 228438862 486 459 854 203 078 548 (283 381 306)
Liabllities
Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities 116 567 - 116 567 - {116 567) -100%
Payables from exchange 20345187 (1595066) 27750121 26446837  (1303234) 5%
transaclions
Payables from non-exchange 2920 364 - 2920364 2719 490 (200 874) -T%
transactions
VAT payabla 1787192 1418761 3205953 3462435 256 482 8%
Consumer deposits 172 927 - 172927 185 684 12757 %
Employae benefit obllgation - . - 2971745 2974745 100%
Unspant conditional grants and - - - 25815387 25815387 100%
receipts
34342237 (176 305) 34165932 61601578 27435646
Non-Current Liabilities
Other current liability 1673000 1 605 000 3278000 . {(3278000) -100%
Employes benefit cbligation - - - 1636 000 1636 000 100%
Provisions 21092 162 - 21092162 26044934 4052 7_12 23%
22765 162 1605000 24370162 27680934 3310772
Total Liabilitles 57 107 399 1428695 58536004 89282512 30 746 418
Net Assets 200013 503 227 010 167 427923760 113796036 (314 127 724)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actuat Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis -

Approved  Adjusiments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference  Refer ta Note
54

budget on comparable betwsen final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand o actual
Net Assets
Net Assets Attributable to
Owners of Controlling Entity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus 200913593 227 010167 427923760 113796036 (314 127 724)

Reasons for all sub-component area in excass of 15% has been provided in note 53
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Ac_orual Basis — —

Kppmved_ Adjusiments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference  Refer to Note
54

budget on comparable betwean final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activites

Recelpts
VAT - - = 15836699 15836699 100%
Sale of goods and servicas 18 768 951 (145) 18788806 38754405 190655090 106%
Grants 90206000 17302000 107508000 63205523 (44212477) 41%
Interest income 493113 411410 904 523 1454352 549 829 61%
Property rates 34008569 4534038 38542607 44 806 766 6 264 159 16%
Other receipts 16 677 599 1143197 17820796 4783769 (13037027} .73%
Fines - - - 79421 79421 100%
160174232 23300500 183564732 169090935 (14 553 797)
Payments
Employso costs (52586959) (4778202) (57365161) (54378667) 2986494 5%
Suppliers (56984 658) (2173098) (59157 756) (82872906) (23715150) 40%
Finance cosls {300 00D) 136000 ~ (164 000) (182 504) {18 504) 11%

(109 871 617) {6 813 300) (116 686 917) (137 434 077) (20 747 160)

Net cash flows from operating 50302615 16575200 66 877 815 31 576 858 ({35 300 957)
actlvities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plantand {44 908 192} (24 735055) (69 643 247) (17407808) 52145340 -75%
equipment

Cash fiows from financing actlvitles
Consumer deposisis - - . 10 192 10192 100%

Net increasef{decreass) in cash 5304423 (8159855) (2765432) 14080152 16854584
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 2924181 - 2924181 2924 181 -
the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at 8318604 (8159 855) 158749 17013333 16854584
the end of the year

Reasons for all sub-component areas in excess of 15% has been provided in note 53.
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Accounting Policies
flgures in RalE N Note(s) 2024_ 2023

1. Presentation of Annual Financlal Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3} of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed balow.

1.1 Presentation currency
These annual financial siatements are prasented in South Afcican Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality.
1.2 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expeciation that the municipality will continue to
operate as a going concemn for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 Materlality

Material omissions or missiatements of items are material if they could, individually or coliectively, influence the decisions or
assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depands on the nature or size of the omission
or misstatement judged in the sumounding circumstancas. The nature or size of the information itemn, or a combination of both,
could be the detemining factor.

Assessing whether an omission or misstatement coufd infiuence decisions of users, and so be material, requires consideration
of the characteristics of those users. The Framework for the Preparation and Presantation of Financial Statements states that
users are assumed to have a reasonable knowledge of government, its activities, accounting and a willingness to study the
information with reasonable diligence. Tharafore, lhe assessment takes into account how users with such attributes could
reasonably be expected 1o be influenced in making and evaluating decisions.

14 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimatas. Actual results in the future could differ from these eslimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Receivables from exchange and non-exchange transactions

The municipality assessas its recelvables for impairment at the and of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the municipality makes judgements as to whether there is obsarvabls
data indicating a measurable decreass in the estimated future cash flows from a financial assat.

The impairment for receivables is calculated as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cashflows discounted. Future cashflows is estimated based on the history of past coliection rates which is
discounted at the effective rate of Interest. The discounted future cashflows is therefore influenced by factors such as poor
economic conditions, significant financlal difficulty of the debtor or delinqunecy in debtor paymenis as well as economic effects
on the prme lending rates which is used as a factor ta calculate the effective interest rate.

Refer to notes 9 and 10: Receivablas from exchange and non-exchange transactions for the carrying values.

Provisions

Pravisions were raised and management delermined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 15 - Provisions.Provisions are measured at the bast estimate of the

expendilure required to seltla the obligation al the reporting date, and are discountad to present valua where the effect is
matarial.
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14 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Contingent labilitlies
Contingent liabilities are disclosed based on managements best estimate of the potential outflow of economic benefits. The
contingent liability disclosure is based on the assumptions of malters being sellled within an assumed future timeframe and

expected costs. Changes in both future events and economic conditions may alter the amounis as disclosed. Refer to note 45:
Contingsncies for associated values.

Usetul ilves of fixed assets

The municipality’s management detenmines the estimated useful lives and ralated depraciation charges for the fixed assets.
This eslimale is based on industry norm, Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously astimated useful lives. For defails, carrying values and related useful lives and depreciation rates for fixed assets
refer to notes 1.6: Investment Property, 1.7: Property plant and equipment and 1.8: Intangible assets read in conjunction with
notes 3: Investment property, 4: PPE, 5: Intangible assets and 6: Heritage assets. .

Postetirement benefits

The present value of the post-retiremant obligation depends an a number of factors that are determined on an acluarial basis
using @ number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumplions will impact on the carrying amount of post-retirement
obligations,

The morlality rates, gender and age together with a discount factor and market conditions forms part of the assumptions
utilisad. Refer to Note 7: Employee benefif obligations for other information and the carrying values.

Environmental rehabilitation provision

The provision is raised for the rehabilitation of waste disposal landfill site to its original state once the site has reached the

end of the useful life. For key assumptions and estimates relaling to the Environmental rehabilitation provision, refer to note 15:
Provisions,

1.5 Biological assets

Biological assets are living resources (animals) that undergo biological transformation held by the municipality in the game
park. These assels are held for conssrvation purposes.

The municipality recognises biological assets when, and only when:

the municipality controls the asset as a result of past events;

it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the municipality; and,

tha fair value or cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Measurement

Biological assets are recognized at cost and where these assets are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent Measurement

Biological assets are subsequently measured al revalued amount, which is the fair value at the revaluation date fess any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses. The revaluation is performed annually on the reporting date.

Should the camying amount of a living resource increase as a resuit of a revajuation, the increase shall be crodited directly to a
revaluation surplus. The increase shall be recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same living resource praviously recognised in surplus or deficit.

Should the carrying amount of a living resource dacrease as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in
surplus or deficit. The decrease shall be debited directly in net assels io the extent of any credit balance existing in the
revaluation surplus in respect of that living resource. The decreass recognised directly in net assels reduces the amount
accumulated in net assets under the heading revaluation surplus.

Derecognition

16



Accounting Policies

1.5 Biological assets (continued)

The camying amount of a living resource is derecognised on disposal, or whan no future economic banefils or servica polential
are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derscognilion of a fiving resource is included in surplus or deficit when the ilem is
derecognised.

Upon disposal of the living resaurce or a group of living resources, the compensation received and the amount racognised in
the statement of financial pefformance.

16 Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for:

+ use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

*  administrative pusposses, or

s  saloe in the ordinary course of operations.

Owner-occupled property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Investmant propaerty is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that
are associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property
can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or servica a property. If a
replacement part Is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment properly, the carrying amount of the raplaced pari is
derecognised.

Cost model

Investment property is carried at cost lass accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on the straightfine meihod to write down the cost, less estimated residual value over the useful life of

the property.

Property - land indefinite
Property - buildings 10-30 years
Infrastructure-other 10-40 years
Infrastruciure- Dam 88 years

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and aquipment are tangible non-current assets {including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
s it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the itam will flow to the
municipality; and
» the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an itemn of propsrly, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable ta bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to ba capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaclion, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
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1.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Whers an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assels, or 8
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of properly, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
saparate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include cosls incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and eguipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replaca part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and squipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other {han the produclion of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the ifem is in the location
and conditicn necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intendad by managemenl.

ftems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they mest the definilion of
property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which maet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the ovear their expectad useful lives to their estimated residual value.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreclation method Average useful life
Land Straight-line Indefinite

Buildings Straight-line 10-50 Years

Plant and machinery Straight-line 2-50 Years
Fumniture and fixiures Straight-line 2-30 Years

Motor vehiclas Straight-line 2-30 Years

IT equipment Straight-line 2-15 Years
Infrastructure Straight-line 2-90 Years
Community Slraight-line 2-90 Years

The depraciable amount of an assat is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment wilh a cosf that is significant in refation to the total cost of the item is
depraciated separately.

The deprecialion method used reflscts the pattem in which the asset's future econamic benefits or service potential are
expected 10 be consumed by the municlpality. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at Jeast at each
reporting date and, if there has bsen a significant change in the expected pattern of consumplion of the future economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the mathod is changed to reflect the changed patiem. Such a change is
accounted for as a change in an accounling astimate.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whather 1hare is any indication that the munlcipality expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding raporting date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful life andfor residual value accordingly. The change Is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in municipality or deficit unless it is included in the camying amount of
another asset.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
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1.7 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The gain or loss arising frem the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in municipality or deficit
when the item is darecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and squipment is
determined as tha difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carying amount of tha item.

Assets which the municipalily holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assels are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of
these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assels are included in cash flows from operating activities in
the cash flow statement.

The municipality separately discloses axpenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes 1o the
financlal statements (see note ).

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statemants {ses nota ).

1.8 Intangible assets

An assel is identifiable if it either:

* Isseparable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a relatad contract, identifiable assets or llablhty, regardlass of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

* arises from binding arrangements {including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the munigipality or from olher rights and obligations.

A binding arangement describas an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the pariies to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
*  ilis probable that the expacted future economic benefits or service potentiat that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the municipality; and
¢ the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the prebability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumplions that represent management's bast estimate of the sel of aconomic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, ils initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research {or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An lnlanglble asset arlsing from development (or from the development phase of an intemal project) is recognised when:
itis technically feasibls to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

there is an ability to use or sell it.

it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potenitial,

there are available technical, financial and other resources 1o complete the development and ta use or sell the
assat.

¢ the expendilure attributable to the asset during its devalopment can be measured reliably.

Intangible asssts are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life whan, based on all relevant factors, there is no forsseeable
limit ta the pericd over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation mathod for intangible assels are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classlfied as infinite is an indicator that the

assel may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its
useful life.
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1.8 Intangible assets (continued)

Intemally generated brands, masiheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.

Intemnally generated goodwill is nof recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided to write down the Intangible assets, on a stralght-line basis, to thelr residual values as follows:

Item Depreclation method Average useful life

Computer software, other = ' ‘Straight-line 3-6 Yoears

1.9 Heritage assets

Heritage assels are assels that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

Recognition

The municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the assel will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured refiably.

Initial measurement
Heritage assets are measuraed 2t cost,

Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the data of
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at its cost less any accumulaled impairment losses.
Impalmment

The municipality assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impairad. if any such indication
exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable sarvice amount of the heritage asset.

Transfers

Transfers from heritage assats are only made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset.
Transfars to heritage assets are only made when the asset meets the definition of a heritage assst.

Derecognition

The municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are
expecied from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage assel is included in municipality or deficit when the item is
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leasaback).

1.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise lo a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another antity.

The amortisad cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

A concessionary loan is a loan grantad to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related.
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1.10 Financlal Instruments {continued)

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other parly by failing to discharge
an obligation.

Cumency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrumeni will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity's statement of
financial position.

A derivative is a financial instrumant or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:
s Its value changes in respense to the changs in a specified inlerest rate, financial instrument price, commodity prica,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).
* It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a simifar rasponse to changes in market factors.
s Iiisseitled at a future data,

The offectiva interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial fiabilitias) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated fulure cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net camying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all faes and points paid or received between parties 1o the contract that are an integral part of the effactive
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other pramiums
or discounts. There is a presumnption that the cash flows and the expecled life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare casas when it is not possible to refiably estimate the cash flows or the expected fife
of a financial instrument {or group of financial instruments), the eniity shall use the conlractual cash flows over the full
contraciual term of the financial instrument {or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction.

A financial asset is;
s  gash;
*  aresidual interest of another entity; or
*+  acontractual right fo:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial fabilities with another entity under condilions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse tha holder for a
loss it ingurs bacause a specified debtor fails to make payment when due In accordance with the original or madified terms of a
debt instrument.
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

¢ deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

*  exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

interost rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financiat instrument will fluctuale because of changes in
markst interest ratas.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations assosiated with financial
liabilities thai are settled by delivering cash or another financial assel.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specifiad terms and conditions.
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal craedit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuaie because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprizes three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
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1.10 Financial instruments (continued)

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whather those changes sre caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the

market.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an Interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as;
s equily instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
« aformal designation of a fransfer of resourcas (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribulion occurs or at the fime of the contribution; or
¢ aformal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net
assets of an entity.

Transaclion costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or

disposed of the finangial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

+ the entily designates at fair valua at initial recognition; or

« are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual inferests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair valua cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities ihat are;

*  derivatives;

= conlingent consideration of an acquirer in a {ransfar of functions between enlilies not under commen contro! to which
the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control (GRAP 106) applies

. combined instruments that are designated at fair valus;

* instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
= itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or.
- oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabiities with fixed or detarminable payments that are designaled at
fair value at initial recognition; and
= financial instruments that do not meel the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments al cost.

1.11 Statutory recelvables
Identification

Statutory receivables are receivables that arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and requira
settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Canrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position.

The cost method is the method used 1o account for statutory receivables that requires such receivables fo be measured at their
fransaction amount, plus any accrued interest or other charges (where applicable) and, less any accumulated impairment
losses and any amounts derecognisaed.

Nominal interest rata is the interest rate and/or basis specified in legislation, supporting regulations or similar means.

The transaction amount for a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated, levied or charged in
accordance wilh, lagislation, supporting regulations, or similar means.

Recognition

The municipality recognises statutory raceivables as follows:
*  ifthe transaction is an exchange transaction. using the policy on Revenue from exchange transactions;

22



Accounting Policies

1.11 Statutory receivables (continued)
¢ if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using the policy on Revenue from nen-exchange transactions
(Taxes and transfers); or
» if the transaction is not within the scope of the policies listed in tha above or another Standard of GRAP, the
receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is prabable that the future economic
bensfits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the transaction amount can be
measured reliably.

initial measurement
The municipality initially measures statutory receivables at their iransaciion amount.

Subsequent measurement

The municipalily measures statutory receivables after iniiial recognition using the cost methed. Under the cost method, the
initial measurement of the receivable is changed subsequent fo initial recognition to reflact any:

*  interestor olher charges that may have accrued on the receivable (where applicable);

*  impaimment losses; and

*  amounts darecognised.

Accrued interest

Where the municipalily levies interest on the outstanding balancs of statutory receivables, it adjusts the transaction amount
after initial recognition to reflect any accrued interest. Accrued interest is calculated using the nominal interest rate.

Interest on statutory receivables is recognised as revenue in accordance with the policy on Revenue from exchangs
transactions or the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions (Taxes and transfers), whichever is applicable.

Other charges

Where the municipality is required or entifled in terms of legislation, supporting regulations, by-laws or similar means to levy
additional charges on overdus or unpaid amounts, and such charges ars levied, the entity applies the principles as stated in
“Accrued interest™ above, as well as the relevant policy on Revenue from exchange transactions or the policy on Revenue from
non-axchange transaclions (Taxes and transfers).

Impairment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether thare is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may be impaired.

In assessing whather there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the
municipality considers, as a minimumn, the following indicators:
*  Significant financial difficulty of tha debtor, which may be evidenced by an application for debt counselling, business
rescue or an equivalent.
¢ ltis probable that the debicr will enter saquestration, liquidatian or other financial re-organisation.
= Abreach of the terms of the transaction, such as default or delinquency in principal or interest payments (where
lavied).
= Adverse changes in international, nationa! or local ecanomic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in
debt levels and unemployment, or changes in migrafion rates and patterns.

If there is an indication that a statufory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality
measurgs the impainment loss as the difference betwaen the estimated future cash flows and the canrying amount, Where the
carying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of
statutary receivables, is reduced, either directly or through the use of an allowarice account. The amount of the losses is
recognised in municipalily or deficit.

In estimating the future cash flows, an municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will recaive in
future. Gonsequenlly, where the effect of the time value of money is material, the entity discounts the estimated fulure cash
flows using a rate that reflects the current risk-free rate and, if applicable, any risks specific to the statutory raceivable, or group
of statutory receivables, for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a stalutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates
used since the last impairment loss was recognised, or to refiect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows.
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1.11 Statutory recelvables (continued)

Any praviously recognised impairment loss is adjusted elther direcly or by adjusling the allowance account. The adjustment
does not resull in the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceading what the carrying
amount of the receivable(s) would have besn had the impairment loss not been recognised at the date the impairment is
revised. The amount of any adjustment is recognlsed in municipality or deficit.
Derecognition
The munlclpallty derecognises a statutory receivable, ar a part thereof, when:
the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are seitied, expire or are waived;
»  the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivabls; or
s  the municipality, despite having ratained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has
transferrad control of the recsivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sefl the receivable
in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unitaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:

«  derecognise the receivable; and
- racognise separately any rights and obligations creatad or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of any statulory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and
those transferred on the basis of their relative falr values at the transfar data. The entity considers whether any newly created
rights and obligations are within the scope of the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments or another Standard of GRAP.
Any difference belween the consideration received and the amounls derecognised and, those amounts recognised, are
recognised in municipality or deficit in the period of the transfer.

1.12 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substaniially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operaling lease if it does not transfer subsiantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land ard buildings elements, the entily assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessor

The municipalily recognises finance lease receivables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such assets are
presented as a receivable at an amount equal 1o the net investment in the leage.

Finance ravenus is recognised based on a pattermn reflscting a constant periodic rate of retumn on the municipality’s net
investment in the finance lease.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are racognised as assets and liabilities in the statesnent of financial position at amounts equal to the fair vatue
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payrments. The comesponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Thae discount rate used in calculating the presant value of the minimum lease paymenits is the interest rate implicit In the lease.
Minimum Isase payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocaled to each period during the lease ferm so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor

Oparating lease revenus is recognised as revanua on a straight-lina basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incumed in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the camying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an axpense aver the lgase term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-ling basis,
The aggregate benefit of incantives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Income far leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performanca.
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1.12 Leases (continued)
Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts racognised as an expensa and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or fiability.

1.13 Construction contracts and recelvables

Construction contracl is a contract, or a similar binding arrangement, specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset or
a combination of assets that are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function or their
ultimate purpose or use.

Coniractor is an enity that performs construction work pursuant to a construction contract.

Fixed price contract is a construction contract in which the contractor agrees to a fixed contrac! prica, or a fixed rate per unit of
output, which in some cases is subject to cost escalation clauses.

A contractor is an entity that enters info a contract to build structures, construct facilities, produce goods, or render services to
the specifications of another enlity either itself or through the use of sub-contractors. The term “contractor” thus includes a
general or prime contracter, a subcontractor to a general contracter, or a construction manager.

The entity assesses the terms and conditions of sach contract concluded with customers to establish whether the contract is a
consiruction contract or not. In assessing whether the contract 13 a construction contract, an entity considers whether it is a
contractor,

Whare the outcome of a construction contract can be eslimated reliably, conlract revenus and cosls are recognised by
rafarence to the stage of completion of the contracl aclwlly at the reporting date, as measured by completion of a physical
proportion of contract work.
The municipality is a participant in the Integrated National Electnﬁcatlon Programme {INEP). Funds are received from Eskom or
the Depariment of Mineral resources and Energy (DMRE) lo construci elactrification infrastructure on behalf of Eskom in
Eskom designated liscencing areas.

The municipality is considered lo be a contractor in terms of GRAP 11.

Funds are raceived in advance and racognised as a liabilily, Quahfymg INEP expenditure is recongised as consiruction
expenses when the expenditure is incurred. Construclion revenue is recognised to the extent of the expendilure incurred which

is reduced by the advance funds recsived.

Construction revenus comprises:The initial amount agreed in the Contract, and any variations to tha agreement

Construction revenue is recognised when it is probale that they will result in revenue and they are capable of being measured
reliably

Construction cosls comprise costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are atiributable to the contract
activity.

Any unused funds advancad to the municipality remain as a Construction liability.

Presentation

Construction revenue: disclosed as consfruction revenue as a separate iine on the face of the statement of financial
performance under revenue fram exchange transactions.

Contract Costs: disclosed as construction costs as a separate ling on the face of the statement of the statement of financial
performance.

Contract creditor: Disclosed as a payable under payables from exchange transactions in the statement of financial position.
1.14 Impaimment of cash-generating assets

Cash-gansraling assels are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial retum. Commercial retum means that
positive cash flows are expected 1o be significantly higher than the cosl of the asset.
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1.14 impaiment of cash-generating assets {continued)

Impairment is a loss in the future economic bensfils or service potential of an asset, over and above the syslemalic recognition
of the loss of the asset's fulure economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Canying amounl is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after daducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses therson.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial retum
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets.

Coste of disposal are incremental costs directly attributabla to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and incoma tax
expense.

Depreciation (Amortisalion) is the systematic allocation of the depraciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeabls, willing parties, tess the cosis of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Useful lite is aither:

»  the period of fime over which &n asset is expected to ba used by the municipality; or

*  ihe number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the assst by the municipality.
1.15 Employee benefits
Short-terrn employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (thase payable within 12 manths after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-manetary benefits such as medical care), are racognised in the period in which the
service Is rendered and are not discounted.

The expectad cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the smployess render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulaling absences, when the absence occurs.

The expecled cost of municipality sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
construclive obligalion to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined benefit plans

For dafined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined through actuarial valuations using the Projected Unit
Credit discounted cashflow method,

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan.

Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting pariod.

Past service cosls are recognised immediately to the extent that the bensfits aro already vested.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined bonefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by the fair value of

plan asssts.

Any asset is limited to unrecognised acluarial losses and past service costs, plus the present valus of available refunds and
reduction in future contributions to the plan.

Other post retirement obligations
The entity provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuitles upon retirement to some retiress.
The entillement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the employee remaining In service up to retirement age and

the completion of a minimum service period. The expacted costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employmsnt.
Independent qualifisd actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations.
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1.16 Provisions and contingencles

Provisions are recognised when:
s the municipality has a prasent obligation as a result of a past event;
¢ itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic: benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
* areliable eslimate can be madg of the obligation.

The amount of 2 provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expecied to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date,

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expocted to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of monay and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expendilure required lo setlle a provision is expecied to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality
setfles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bensfits or service potential will be required, to setile the
obligation.

Where dizcounting is used. the carnrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense,

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus.

if an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the conlract is recognised and
measurad as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

*  has a delailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
= the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concemed;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services baing
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be underiakan; and
- when the plan will be implemented: and

* has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will camy out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restrucluring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are thase that are both:
*  nsacessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
*  not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation untif the municipality is committed to the sale
or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their inilial recognilion contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are racognised saparalely are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

¢ he amount that would bs recognised as a provision; and

*  the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities ara not recognised. Contingencies are disclasad in note 46,

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issusr to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs bacause a specifiad debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of &
debt instrument.

Loan commitment is & firm commitment {o provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
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1.16 Provislons and contingencles (continued)

The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Detemmining whether an outfiow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. indications that
an outflow of resounces may be probable are:
¢ financial difficulty of the debtor;
»  defaults or delinquencies in interest and capifal repayments by the debtor;
*  breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the
ability of the dabtor o sattls its obligation on the amended terms; and
*  adecline in prevailing aconomic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, Infiation and unemployment) that impact on
the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee andfor where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to setile the obligation at reporting date.
Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an municipality

recognises the obligation at the higher of:
*  the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets;

and
»  the amount of the fes initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance

with the Standand of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transaclions.
1.17 Commitments

ltems are classified as commitments when an enlity has committed itself to future fransactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosurs is necassary to achieve a fair presantation should be disclosed in a note to the financial

statements, if both the following criteria are met:
*  Contracts should be non-cancellable or enly cancellable at significant cost {for example, cantracts for computer or

building malntenance sarvices); and
*  Contracts should relate ta something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefors salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.18 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefils or service potential during the reporting perod when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has fiabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal valua (primarlly In the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settied, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

«  the municipality has trensferred lo the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

¢+ the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effeclive control over the goods sold;

¢+ the amount of revenue ¢an be measured reliably;

¢ itis probable that the economic benefits or sarvice potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
municipality; and

»  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respact of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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1.18 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Rendering of services

When the cutcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can he estimatad reliably, revanua associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
ofa transactlon can be estimated reliably when all tha following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of ravenue can be measured reliably;
¢ it is probable that the economic bensfits or service polential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality;
»  the slage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
e the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the fransaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a spacified time frams, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a spacific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is execuled.

When the cutcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the staga of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determinad by .

interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets ylelding interest, royallties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised whan:
» It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to ths
municipality, and
¢ The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest rate method for financial instruments, and using the nomina) interest rate
method for statutory receivables. Interest levied on transactions arising from sxchange or non-exchange transactions is
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction.

Royalties are recognised as they are earnad in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in municipality or deficit, when the municipality's right to receive payment has
been established.

Service fees Included in the price of the product are recognised as revenus ovar the period during which the service is

performed.

1.10 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or sarvice potential received and receivable by a municipality, which
represenis an increase in net assels, other than increases relating to conlributions from owners.

GConditions on transfarred assets are stipulations that spocify that the future sconomic benefits or service pulenllal embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
retumed to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use cr otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that banefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which ons entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
direclly gives approximately equal value {primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not they pay
taxes,

Fines are aconamic bensfits or service polential recsived or recsivable by eniilies, as determined by a court or other law
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of faws or regulations.
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1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In 2 non-exchange transaction, a municipality
either receives value from another municipality without direclly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives valua to
another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposss for which a transferred asset may bs used,
but do not spacify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be retumed to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on iransferred assets are terms in faws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the fax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available
to others.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with faws and ar
regulations. established to provide revenuse io government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches

of the law.
Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaclion recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, excepl to the exient
that a liability is also recognised in respect of tha same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an assat, it reduces the camrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Ravenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

Whean, as a result of a non-exchange transactian, the municipality recognises an asse!, it also recognises ravanua equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair valus as st the date of acquisition, unless it is alao required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to setile

the obligation at the reporting date. and the amaunt of the increase in net assets, if any, recopnised as revenue. Whan a
liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condilion is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the

liability is racognised as revenus.

Receivables that arise from statutory (non-contractual) arrangements are initially measurad in accordance with this accounting
policy, as well es the accounting policy on Statutory Receivables. The entity applies the accounting policy on Statutory
Receivables for the subsequent measurement, derecognition, presentation and disclosure of statutory receivables.

Interest is recognised using the effactive interest rate method for financial instruments, and using the nominal interest rate
mathod for statufory receivables. ([nterest levied on transactions arising from exchange or non-sxchange transactions is
classified bagsed on the nature of the undarlying transaction.

Fines

Fines are recognised as revenus when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies ihe criteria for recognition
as an asset,

Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the municipality.

Where the municipalify collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting entity.
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1.19 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Expenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benafits or sarvice potential during the reporting period in the form of outflows or
consumption of assets or incumences of liabilities that result in decreases in net assats.

Expenses are recognised when:
It is probable that the economic bensfits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow out of the municipality, and
The amount of the expense can be measured refiably

Expenditure arising from Bulk purchases, contracted sarvices and general expenses are measured at the cost of the outfiow of
resources from the municipality

1.20 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
«  overspending of a vole or a main division within a vote; and
+  expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with
the purpose of the main division.

Al expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expanditure is classified in accordance with the nalure of the expense, and
whera recoversd, it is subsequently sccounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performanca.

1.21 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care besn
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expenss, and whera recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenus in the statement of financlal performance.

1.22 Imegular expenditure

Imegular expenditure is expenditure that is conirary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1898) or is in contravention of the
economic entity’s supply chain management policy.

Irregular expendilure is accounted for in line with all relaling requirements, including, but not limited lo, ruling Lagistation,
Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable).

1.23 Segment information

A segment is an activity of an entity:
» that generates economic benefits or service potential (inciuding economic benefits or service potential relating to
{ransactions between activities of the same enlity);
»  whose results are regularly reviewed by managament to make decisions about resourcas to be allocated 1o {hat
aclivity and In assessing its performance; and
s for which separate financial information is avalilable.

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segmant report. They are the segments identified
abave or altematively an aggrogation of two or more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.
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1,23 Segment Information (continued)
Measurement

The amount of each segment item raported is the measure reported to management for the purposes of making decisions
about allocaling resources to the segment and assessing its performance. Adjustments and eliminations mads in preparing the
entity’s financial statemants and allocations of revenues and expenses are included in determining reportad segment surplus or
deficit only if they are included in the measura of the segment’s surpius or deficlt that is used by managament, Similarly, only
those assets and liabilities that are inctuded in the measures of the segment’s assets and segment’s liabilities that are used by
management are reported for that segment. if amounts are allocated to reported segment surplus or deficit, assets or liabilities,
those amounts are allocated on a reasonable basis.

If managament uses only one measure of a segment’s surplus or deficit, the segment’'s assets or the segment’'s liabilities in
assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate rasources, sagment surplus or daficit, assets and liabilities are
reported in terms of that measure. If management uses more than ons measure of a segment’s surplus or deficit, the
sagment’s asseis or the segment’s liabilities, the reported measures ane those that management believes are determined in
accordance with the measurement principles most consistent with those used in measuring the cormesponding amounts in the
entity's financial slatemants.

1.24 Budget information

Municipality are typically subject to budgstary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which
is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whelher resources were oblained and used in
accordanca with the lagally adopted budgnt.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification finked to performance outcoms
objectives.

The approved budget covars the fiscal period from 2023/07/01 to 2024/06/30.
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on tha same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the burlgeted
amournts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparizen of budget and actual amounts.

1.25 Related parties

Arelated party is a parson or an entity with the ability to control or jointly Gontrot the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Conlrol is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entily so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint conlrol is the agreed sharing of conirol over an activity by a binding arangement, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the
venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resaurces, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
ragardless of whather a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not contro! ovar
those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including
thase charged with the govemance of the municipality in accordance with legistation, in instances where they are required to
parform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that
person in thsir dealings with the municipality.

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related parly transactions if that transaction occurs within
normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and condilions no morae or tess favourable than those which it is
reasonable to expact the municipality lo have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances
and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters eatablished by that reporting entity’s legal mandate.
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1.25 Related parties {continued)

Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipalily disclosss narrative
information about the nature of the transactions and the related oulstanding balances, to anable users of the entity’s financial
statements to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.

1.26 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourabla and unfavourable, that eccur betwsen the reporting date and the
dale when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
»  those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting evants after the reporting date);
and
¢ those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date {non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

The municipality will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflact adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred.

The municipality will disclose the nalure of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimata
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions
of users {aken on the basis of the financial statements.

1.27 Accounting by principals and agents

Identification
An agent is an enfity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behaf of the principal and for the benefit of the pringipal.

A principal is an enlity that directs another entily (an agent), through a binding arangement, to undertake transactions with
third parties on its behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agenl arangement resulls from a binding arrangement in which ons antity {an agent), undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal) .

Identifying whether an entity |s a principal or an agent

When the municipality is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in
accounting for revenue, axpanses, assets andfor liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in
terms of the arangement.

The assessment of whether a municipality is a principal or an agent requires the municipalify to assess whether the
transactions it undertakes with 1hird pariies are for the benefit of ancther enity or for its own benefit.

Recognition
The municipality, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties ina
principal-agent arrangement in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 109.

The municipality, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expensaes it receives or incurs in exaculing
the transactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements GRAP 109.

The municipality recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arangements in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

KZN Department of Transport: The municipality acls as an agent in tarms of the agreement it has with the department.

The Depariment is responsible for regisiration, licansing and testing functions in lerms of applicable national and provincial
road traffic legislation.The Department, to provide greafer access to clients throughout the Province, transfers spacified
registration, licensing and tesling functions to appropriately identified agents, which act as agents for the Department fo
process these funclions.

The Department and the Municipality entered into an agresment for the transfer of registration and licensing of
motor vehicle and learners license testing functions.

The municipality recognises agency feas from the department for the services it renders. Any amounts owing from ths
department at year end is reflected as a raceivable

Under this agreement, any physical hardware to daliver on the agreement remains the asset of the dapartment.

Spar and Dix take aways: The municipality acts as a principal in terms of the agreement it has with the these parlies.
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1.27 Accounting by principals and agents (continued)

The munigipality appointed Spar and Dix take-aways for the purposes of dispensing and selling electricity coupons to
consumers.

The municipality recognises commission expenses for the amounts payable to the parties for the services they render on
behalf of the municipality. Any amounts due to the parties at year end is reflacled as a payable.

Under both these agreements, any physical hardware to deliver on the agreements, remains the assets of the municipality.



Emadlangeni Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand B 2024 2023

2, New standards and Interpretations
21 Standards and Interpretations effective and adopted In the current year

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the curment
financlal year and that are relavant to its operations:

Standard! Interpretation: Effective date: Expscted Impact:
Years beginning on or
after
*  GRAP 25 (as revised): Employee Benefits 01 Apri 2023 Impact is not considerod
material
+  |GRAP 21 (as revised): Tha effact of past decisions on 01 April 2023 Impact is not considerad
materizlity material
*  IGRAP 7 (as ravised): Limit on defined benefit asset, 01 April 2023 Impact is not considened
minimum funding requirements and their interaction material
s GRAP 2020: Improvements to the standards of GRAP 2020 01 April 2023 Impact is not considered
material
¢ Guideline on accounting for landfill sites 01 April 2023 Impact is not considered
material
s GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of financial statements. 01 April 2023 Impact is not considered
malerial

2.2 Standards and inferpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standard, which is approved but not yet effective. It is unlikely thera will ba 8
material impact to the AFS resuiting from its appolication.

. IGRAP 32 The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction - no effactive
date

«  GRAP 1 on Presentation of Financial Statements (amended 2022) {no sffective date determined)

e« GRAP 103 on Heritage assets (emended) (no effactive date determinad)

*  GRAP 105 on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under Common Control (amended) (no effective date
detarmined)

*  GRAP 106 on Transier of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control {amended) (no effective date
determined)

*  GRAP 107 on Mergers (amended) (no effective date delermined)

s Improvements to Standards of GRAP (2023) (no effective date determined)

*  GRAP 104 on Financial instruments (amended) (Effective April 2025)

¢ IGRAP 22 on Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (Effective April 2025)
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Noftes to the Annyal Financia_l Stat_em_ents

Fighres in Rand

3. Investment property

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property - 2024

Investment proparny

Recanclliation of Investment property - 2023

Investment property

Restrictions and Contractual obligations

No restrictions or contractual obligations exist on Investment Property. The addition of the Investrent Property for the
current period relates to a fuck-shop that has been donated to the municipality.

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered office of the municipality.

Accumulaled Carrying value

{6041779) 38614685

2023
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation  depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

44740543 (5641163) 39099 380

Transfers Depreciation Total

(84 080} (400 615) 38614685

Opening Depreciation Total
balance
39349878 (250 498) 39 099 380
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Notes to the Annual Financial s_tatements

Fig_urt_;s in Rand

3. Investment property {continued)
Maintenance of Investment property
The followlng malntenance costs were incurred for repals and malntenance

Repairs and Maintainence: Investment property

Amounts recognised in surplus or deficit

Rental revenue from Investment property
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Notes to the Annual Fin_anclal Statemepts

Figu;s in Rand ) N

4. Property, plant and equipment

2024 ] 2023 _
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cast/ Accumulated 'Canying value
Valuation  depreciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accurnulated
impairment impairment
Land 2812330 . 2812330 2796477 - 2796477
Buildings 15218676 (11104037) 4114639 15218676 (10204171) 5014505
Plant and machinery 6613714 (2 106 580) 4507134 3985 692 {1835 540) 2150152
Fumiture and fixturas 3 871 662 (2491 167) 1380 495 3 441412 {2 219 567) 1221845
Motor vehicles 5280085  (4098648) 1181437 5280085 (3716722) 1563363
IT squipment 2143554 (1299 285) 844 269 1960 302 (975 565) 984 737
Infrastructure 164865567 (89688853) 75176714 155895845 (79629983) 76 265862
Community 37404526 (19157 986) 18246540 30 _992 451  (13025560) 17 966891
Total 238210114 (120 946 556) 108263558 219570940 (111 607 108) 107 963 832
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2024
Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation  Impairment Total
balanca loss
Land 2796477 - - 15853 - - 2812 330
Buildings 5014 505 - - - (419 659) (480 207) 4114639
Piant and machinery 2150152 2628022 - - {271 040) - 4507 134
Furniture and fixtures 1221845 430 250 . - (271 600) - 1380 495
Mator vehicles 1563 363 - - - (381 926) - 1181437
IT squipment 984 737 183 252 . - {323 720) - 844 260
Infrastrscture 76265862 15890770 - {6921 045) (10058 873) - 75176714
Community 17 966 891 - (6050774) 6989274 (658 851) - 18245540
107963832 19132 204 {6 050 T774) 84082 (12 385 669) {480 207) 108 263 558

GRAP 17: Property, Piant and Equipment requires thal the eMadlangeni Local Municipality shall at each reporfing date assess whether there has bees an indication that the
Municipality's expectation about the remaining useful lives of assets have changed. Such review has been complated and the following results were achieved.

The indicator, “The assel is approaching the end of ils previously expected ussfu! life", was identified in respact of 594 immovable 2ssets and 263 movable assets. Management
determined that these assats will still be in use for at least the next two financial periods and the remaining useful lives of thesa assets were extended accordingly.

The impact of the adjustment is that depreciation charges on Property, Plant and Equipment for the 2024 financial period has decreased by R 537 379.62 made up of R 366 706
Infrastructure assets and R 170 673 Movable assets. This change in depreciation is sxpected to remain the aama aver the next 24 months.

The municipality kad not accounted for structures erecled on leased property owned by the counci. A prior period adjustment to Property, plant and Equipment was mads in the current
financial period. In accordance with GRAP 17, Property, Plant, and Equipment, the entity has made extensive efforts {0 determine the opening balances for the current financlal period.
Howavar, it has been deemed impracticable to do so due to the following reasons:

Lack of access o adequale historical records or documentation to accurately determine the opening balances dus to the passage of time resulting in the challenge and impracticability
to reconstruct the nacessary data.

Lack of market informatian dating back to the period when the assets ought to have been recorded.

There's insufficient publicly available information to determine the depreciated replacement cost specific ta areas around Utrecht and surrounding towns,

The cost associated with getting an expert to parform the recalsulations in managements opinion is not considered practical.
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Significant challenges In valuing these leasehold improvements dus to the absence or lack of market data or comparable transactions for the period in question.

The municipality used the sarvices of the property valuator already contracted parform the municipal valuation roll 1o assist in sub-dividing the properties and detemmining the market

value for the leasehold improvements.

As a result, the municipality has taken due consideration in applying relevant standards to determine the deemed cost for these assets. Thus, the applied accounting policles will be

applied prospeclively from the baginning of the current financial period.
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4.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2023

QOpening

- balance
Land 2796477
Buildings 5601 688
Piant and machinery 1168 662
Furniture and fixtures 1240 947
Motor vehicles 2000 085
IT Equipment 1225130
Infrastruciure 77 941 872
Community 23 156 851

Additions Landfill re-

measurement

1348 253 -
296 243 -
167 052 -
5923325 3187 251
477 993 -

Disposals  Depreciation  Impainment

loss

(15276) (425 663) (46 244)

(67 350) (306 316) 6903
(45 615) {273 635) 3905
(48 719) (387 003) -
{305 425) {105 471) 3451

(103796) (8856070) (1826720)

(174821) (363 205) (4629 837)

115031712 8212866 3187 251

Restrictlons and contractual obligations

No restrictions or contractual obligations exist.

There are no amounts of compensation from or to third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were Impalrsd,

lost or glven up that is included In surplus or deflcit

(762002) (11217 453T (6 488 542}

Total

2796477
5014 505
2150 152
1221845
1563 363
984 737
76 265 862
17 966 891

107 963 832

41



Emadlangeni Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes to the Ar_mual Financial Sgatements

Figures in Rand - - 2024 2023
4.  Praoperty, plant and equipment {continued)
Reconcillation of Work-In-Progress 2024
{ncluded within Total
Infrastructure
Opening balanca 4065 543 4065 543
Additions{capital expenditure 15830770 15890770
Transferred to completed items (19121 829) (19121 828)
834 484 834 484
Reconcillation of Work-in-Progress 2023
Included within Total
Infrastructure
Opening balance 10980771 10980 771
Additions/capital expenditure 6013125 6013125
Comection of prior period emor (4804 914) (4804 914)
Transferred to completed items ~ (8123439) (8123 439)
4065543 4065543
Expenditure Incurrsd to repalr and malntaln property, plant and equipment included In
Statement of Financlal Performance
Buildings 438 285 655 641
Motar Vehicles 534 237 735129
Machinery 5939 36 805
978 461 1427 8§75

The average period to complete WIP projects is estimated to be 24 months based on past experience. All the projects
included within tha carsrying amout of WIP for the current and prior pariod is less than 6 months old. There are ne projects

that were halted during the cument or prior period.

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for

inspaction at the registered office of the municipality.

42



Emadlangeni Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statemenis for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
f_igu?es in_Rand = == ==

5. intangible assets

- 2024 2023
Cost/ Accumulaled Carrying value Cost / Accumnulated Carrying value
Valualion amortisation Valuation  amortisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impaiment impairment
Computer software, other 1560 201 (1556 761) - 340 1560201 (1506 223) 53978
Reconclliation of intanglble assets - 2024
Opening Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software, other 53978 (50 538) 3440
Reconcillation of Intanglble assets - 2023
Opening Amortisation Totat
balance
Computer software, other 214 717 (160 739) 63 978
Restrictions and Contractual obilgations
No restrictions or contractual obligations exist.
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8. Heritage assets
2024 Lo 2023 -
Cost/ Accumnulated GCarrying value Cost/ Accumulated Garmying value
Valuation impairment Valuation impairment
losses losses
Heritage Assets {(Land and Buildings- refer to reconciliation below) 1490 000 (299 419) 1190 581 1490 000 (299 419) 1190 581
Reconciliation of haritage assets 2024
Opening Total
balance
Buildings 942 247 042 247
Land 248 334 248 334
1190 581 1190 581
Reconcllkatlon of heritage assets 2023
Opening Total
balanca
Buildings 042 247 942 247
Land 248334 248334
1190 581 1180 581

No repairs and maintainence was incurred on Heritage Assets.
Restrictions and contractual obligations

No restrictions or contractuat obligations exist.

44




Emadlangeni Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Fig@n Rand - ) _@24

2023

7. Employee benefit obligations
Defined benefit plan

The employee benefit obligation includes the plan for the post employment medical benefit pian and Long service award

and the provision for the 13th cheque.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financtal position are as follows:

Camrying value
Opening balance (4 368 495) (2825000)
Current service cost (192 000) (153 000)
Interest cost (330 000) {299 000)
Benefits paid 382 000 321 000
Actuarial gain/(loss) (77 000) (162 000)
Provision for 13th cheque (22 250) (1230 495)
(4 607 745) (4 368 495)
Non-current liabilities (1636000} (2982 000)
Current liabilities (2971745) (1386 495)
[4 607 745} (4 368 495)
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7. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Key assumptions used
Assumptions used at the reporting date: 30 June 2024 & 2023 respectively
Actual retum on plan assets 1,00 % 1,00
Discount rates used 10,70 % 11,03
Expected rate of retum on assels 552 % 6,04
Expected rate of retum on reimbursement rights 7,02 % 7.54
Actual return on reimbursement rights 3% 3,256
Expected increase in salaries 1,00 % 1,00
Expected pension increases 11,23 % 11,47
Propartion of employees opting for early retirement 581 % 6,33
Expacted increase in healthcare costs 681 % 733
4,14 % 3,86

Fulure changes in maximum state heallhcare benefits

1.POST EMPLOYMENT MEDICAL SUBSIDY

The employer’s postesmployment health care liability consisis of a commitment to pay a portion of the pensioners’ post-
employment medical scheme contributions. This liability is also generated in respect of dependants who are offered
continved membership of the madical scheme on the death of the primary member,

Emadlangeni Municipality does not have a formal medical subsidy palicy for retired employess.

Emadlangeni Municipality is aware of five (5) conlinuation pansioners that are currently subsidised for medical contributions

with the following subsidy requirements:
« aubsidy percentages of 60% to current pensioners and thair dependants; and
» subsidy parcentages of 60% to deceased pensioners’ spouses and their dependents.

ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES
We summarise the participants eligible for post employment medical aid subsidy as at the curent valuation date, 30 June
2024, as provided by Emadtangeni.

The employess’ contributions are those payable to the employess and their spouses in retirement, at the current rates. The
contributions include rigk and the medical savings account.
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7. Employee benefit obligations (contihued)

VALUATION METHOD

in accordance with the requirements of GRAP25, the Projected Unit Credit method has been applied. The assumption
underlying the funding method is that the employer’s post-employment medical scheme costs in respect of an employee
should be fully recognised by the time that the employee reaches fully accrued age. The valuation has been made with
refarence to Actuarial Sociely of South Africa (ASSA) guidslines, in particular, the Advisory Praclice Note 207, and is
consistent with the requirements of GRAP25.

VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

NET DISCOUNT RATE

The key assumptions used in the valuation, with the prior years’ assumptions shown for comparison, are summarised
abova!

GRAP2S defines the detarmination of the investiment retum assumption to be used as the rats that can be determined by
refarance to market yields (at the balance sheet date) on government bonds. The currency and term of the government
bonds should be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.

The methadology of setting the financial assumptions has bean updated to ba more duration specific. At the pravious
valuation date, 30 June 2023 the duration of liabilities was 11.03% per annum. At this duration the discount rate as at 30
June 2024 Is 11.70% per annum.

A healthcare cost inflation rate of 7.02%% (2023:7.54%) was assumed.

It is the relative levels of the discount rate and healthcare inflation to one another that are important, rather than the nominal
values. We have thus assumed a net discount factor of 3.44% (2023:3.25%) per annum. This year’s valuation basis is
consistent with the previous year’s basis from a discount rate perspective.basis used to determins the overall expected rate
of return on assets is as follow:

DEMOGRAPHIC AND DECREMENT ASSUMPTIONS
The demographic and decrement assumptions were consistent in the previous and current valuation period.

CONTINUATION PERCENTAGES
Woe have assumad continuation of tha post-empioyment health care subsidy would be at 100% of aclive employses, or their
surviving dependants.

2.LONG SERVICE AWARDS

Emadlangeni offers bonuses for every 5 years of completed sarvice from the 10th year In service to 45 years. Below we
cutlina the benefits awarded to qualifying employees.Long service accumulated leava must be taken within one year of
receiving such leave or may be wholly or partially cashed.

VALUATION METHOD

In accordance with the requirements of GRAP25, the Projected Unit Cradit method has been applied. Accrued liabilities are
dafined as the actuarial present valus of all bensfits expected to be paid in future based on service accrued to the valuation
date and awards projected to retirement date. In determining these liabilities, dus allowance has besn mads for future
award increases.

The valuation has bean made with reference Actuarial Society of South Africa (ASSA) guidslines, in particular, the Advisory
Practice Note 207, and is consistent with the requirements of GRAP25.

VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

NETDISCOUNT RATE

The key assumptions used in the valuation ase consistent with the prior years’ assumptions shown for comparison, are
summiarised above:

GRAP25 defines the determination of the investment retum assumption to be used as the rate that can be determined by
referance to market yields (at the balance sheet date) on government bonds. The currency and term of the government
bonds should be consistant with the currency and estimated term of the obligation.

At this duration the discount rata determined as at 30 June 2024 was 11.23% (2023:11.47%) per annum.

Wae have assumed fhat salary inflation would exceed general inflation by 1.00% per annum, 6.81% (2023:7.33%}) per
annum.
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7. Employee benefit obligations {continued)

2024

2023

However, it is the refalive levels of the discount rate and salary inflation to one another that are important, rather than the
nominal values. We have thus assumed a net discount factor of 4.14% (2023: 3.86%) per annum.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND DECREMENT ASSUMPTION

The demographic and decrement assumptions were consistent in the previous and current valuation period.

The following senstivity analysis is relovant:Long Service

Assumption Variation
Salary inflation +1%

Salary Inflation ~1%
Withdrawal rates ~20%
Withdrawal rates. +20%
Discount rate +1%
Discount rate 1%

The following senstivity analysis is relevant: Post Employee Beneiit

Assumption Variation
Mortality PA(S0) -1
Mortality PA(S0) -2
Healthcare cost inflation *1%
Healthcare cost inflation 1%
Discount +1%
Discaunt 1%

8. Prepayments

Eskom
Eskom: addition

9. Receivables from exchange transactions
Consumer debtors - Electricity
Consumer debtors - Refuse

Consurner debtors - Other
Accrued Interest Income

No debtors has been pledged as security.

Refer to note 12 for further details on gross and impairment balances.

Interest or other charges levied/charged
Consumers are charged interest at 1.5% on all outstanding balances over 30 days.

Provision for impairment
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Changein
accrued liability

+7.3%
-6.6%

+7.4%
-5,0%

-6.2%

+7%

Change in

Change in
annual

expense

+8.4%
-7.5%
+9.9%
5,9%
-2,8%
+3.1%

Change in

accrued lizbility  annual
expense

+4.8%
+8.7%
+5,7%
-5.3%
-5.0%
+5.6%

+5.2%

+10.5%

+6.2%
5.7%
+3.4%
-3.9%

148 654
16 289

164 943

148 654

148 654

7149272
3 148 060
985 585
1584 337

11437 264

6762744
2308 387
(320 689)

8751442
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9. Recelvables from exchange transactions (continued)

Recsivables from exchange transactions: the municipatily first assessas whether objective avidence of impairment exists
individually for debtors that are individually significant, If the municipality determines that no objective evidence of
impaimment exists for an individually assessed debtor, it includes the asset in a group of debtors with similar credit risk
characterics and collectively assesses them for impairment.

Debtor balances outstanding for more than 30 days serves as an indication of possible impairment. Organs of state is seen
as a financial asset falling within a different credit profile to the usual communlty consumers, For all intants and purposes,
all inter-governmental debt should be fully collactible. Government debt is therefore not provided for.

The impairment loss is calculated as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cashflows discounted. A discount rate applied to the estimated future cash flows of 12% (2023:10%) was used which

was calculated as the effactiva interest rate.

The past payment history of consumer debtors is used as the basis to estimate the future cashflows. Once the estimated
cashflow is established, it is discounted. Govemnment debt also forms part of the estimated future cashflows.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

The amount past due but not impaired relates to all govemmant debt that is past the due date of 3@ days. Govemment debt
is considered racoverabla and has not besn provided for. At 30 June 2024, the amount past due and not impaired amounts
{o R23 082 559.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

Category of service 31-60days 6190 days 91-120days  >121 days Total
Property rates - 392 182 379027 11344424 12115633
Electricity - 286 076 251 692 4184 477 4722 246
Refuse - 200 2 861 140 907 143 968
Rental - 4600 4600 25821 35021
Other - - - 626 627
Interest - 311 606 43621 5709836 6 065 064
- 994 664 681 801 21 406 091 23 082 559

10. Recelvables from non-exchange transactions: Statutory recelvables

Fines 48 266 714 976
Consumer deblors - Rates 26342478 31294 357
26390744 32 009 333

No dabtors has been pladged as security.
Refer to nota 12 for further details on gross and impairment balances.

‘The provision for impairment for traffic fines is R3 124 546 (2022: R1 533 427). Refer to provision for impairment
reconciliation balow.
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10. Receivables from non-exchange transactions: Statutory receivables (continued)
Statutory receivables general Information
Transaction(s) arising from statute

Traffic fines-section 56 and 139 of the traffic management act delermines the type of fines that maybe levied by the
municipality to motoroista that contraves these acts.

Property rates-property rates are lavied in acardance with the MPRA that requires different percentage to be leviad on
different properties depending on the use and the extent of those proparties.

Determination of transaction amount

Traffic fines: The transaction amount is detarmined by reference to the traffic fines issues per the traffic fine books used by
the traffic fines depariment which is in accordance with section 56 and 139 in refation to traffic fines.

Property rates: The transaction amount is levied in acordance with the MPRA that requires different percentage to be levied
on different properties depending on the use and the exient of those praperties.

Interest or other charges levied/charged

The municipality does not levy inlerest on late payments on traffic fines.Interast on late payments of property rates is levied
at 1.5% on accounts overdue for more than 30 days.

Basls used 1o assess and test whether a statutory recelvable is Impalred

Traffic fines: The munlcipality Is using the collection rate as a basis to perform the assessment for the estimate of the
provision for impainnent of traffic fines.

Properiy rates: the municipalily first assesses whather objective evidenca of impairment exisis individually for debtors that
are individually significant. If the municipality determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed debtor, it includes the asset in a group of deblors with similar credit risk characterics and collectively assesses
them for impairment.

Dabtor balances outstanding for more than 30 days serves as an indication of possible impairment. Organs of state is seen
as a financial asset falling within a differont cradit profile to the usual community consumers. Its is anlicipated that all
balances from organs of state will be recaived and Is therefore not considered for impairment.

The impairment loss Is calculated as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cashflows discounted.

The past payment history of consumer deblors is used as the basis to estimate the future cashflows. Once the estimated
cashflow is established, it is discounted A discount rate applied to the estimated future cash flows of 12% (2023:10%) was
used which was calculated as the efiective interest rate.

The differance between tha camying value and the discounted cashflows Is results in the provision amount.
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10. Recelvables from non-exchange transactions: Statutory recelvables (continued)

Reconcllation: Traffic fines

Gross balance 3172812 2248 402

Allowance for impairment (3124 546) (1 533 426)
48266 714976

Reconciliation of provision for impaimaent: Traffic fines - -

Opening balance 1533426 1480 676

Increase in provision for impairment 1655270 42750

Amounts writlen off as uncollectible (64 150} >
3124 546 1533 426

Refer to note 12 for the reconcillation on rates.

11, VAT receivable

VAT 1407 038

VAT is accountad for using the accrual basis of accounting howaver the cash basis is applisd when submitting the VAT

201.

12. Consumer debtors disclosure

Gross halances

Consumer debtors - Rates
Consumer debtors - Electricity
Consumer debtors - Refuse
Consumer debtors - Other

Less: Allowance for Impalment
Consumer debtors - Rates
Gonsumer debtors - Electricity
Consumer debtors - Refuse
Consumar dabtors - Other

Net balance

Consumer debtors - Rates
Consumer debtors - Elsctricity
Consumer debtors - Refuse
Consumaer debtors - Other

Rates

Current (0 -30 days)
31 - 60 days
61-90 days

91 - 120 days

> 365 days
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53874653 56907122
14 621 424 9918769
6438 295 4730764
2015701 1447 353
76950073 73 002 008

(27 532 176) (25 703 207)

(7472152) (4173 066)
(3290235) (2135 668)
(1030 106) (944 269)

(39324 669) (32 956 210)
26342477 31204357

7148272 6762744
3148060 2309387
985 555 (320 689)
37625404 40045769
3113623 3407335
1222 12037
1789795 1091992
1347905 1679620
47622108 49726138
53874653 56 007 122
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12, Consumer debtors disclosure (continued)

Electriclty

Current (0 -30 days) 2096 354 1543798
31- 60 days . 1010
61 - 90 days 147 471 380 222
91 - 120 days 408 390 368 747
> 365 days 11 969 209 6 940 067
14621424 9243845
Refuse
Current (0 -30 days} 310153 270 801
31 -60 days 1015 4055
61 - 90 days (68 965) 108 739
91 - 120 days 128 170 138 035
> 365 days 6 067 922 4209 134
6 438 295 4730764
Qther
Current (0 -30 days) 143 294 130773
31-60days - 648
61 - 90 days {248 418) 45770
81 - 120 days 42 148 41875
» 365 days 2078 757 1228 287

2015701 1447353

Other debtors relates to rental of houses and municipal sites.

Accrued fncome
Actrued Income- Interest income 154 337 -
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12. Consumer debtors disclosure (continued)
Reconclliation of provision for Impalrment: Summary
Balance at baginning of the year 32956210 38967 528
Contributions to allowance including Debt impairment written off againsi allowance 6 368 460 (6 011 318)
39324670 32956210
Reconciliation of provision for Impairment: Rates
Balance at beginning of ihe year 25703207 298633305
Contributions to allowance 7 155033 (1918 629)
Debt impaiment written off against allowance {§326085) (2011 4§9)
27 532176 25703207
Reconciliation of provision for impairment: Electricity
Balance at beginning of the year 4173065 5185178
Contributions to allowance 3209 087 (1012 113)
_ T472152 4173068
Reconclliation of provision for impairment: Refuse
Balancs at beginning of the year 2 135 668 3016 650
Caontributions to allowance 1154 667 (880 982)
3200235 2135 668
Reconcillation of provision for Impalrment: Cther
Balance at beginning of the year 944 269 1132395
Contributions to allowance 85837 {188 126)
1030 106 944 269
13. Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of.
Cash on hand 1083 1083
Bank balances 77611 603 031
Short-term deposits E 934 639 2 320 067
17 013 333 2924181
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13. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The municlpality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances

30 June 2024 30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2024 30 June 2023 30 June 2022

First Primary National Bank - €03 038 742827 - 603 038 742 827

Account 62864159366

INEP 06 B5D 0947 - 102 24 310 824 824 24 310 824 824

Nguni GCattle - 42 850 052 1 - 6085 6 085 6085 6085 6 085 6085

003

KZN Wildlife - 06 850 094 7 - 10313 10 313 10313 10313 10313 10313

070

VAT refund account - 42 880 29 866 27 B9D 125 088 29 866 27 890 125 088

052 1-002

Repairs 376 houses - 06 850 2312835 2159 027 2034 695 2312835 2159 027 2034 695

4187 - 001

General investments - 06 850 9147 495 67 085 2977 9147 495 67 095 2977

094 7 - 030

Proceeds from auction - 06 850 5038 4820 4662 5038 4820 4 662

094 7 - 050

MIG 20182020 06 850 0947 - 5165454 9 861 3 698 5 166 454 g 881 3696

096

Consumaer deposits - 06 850 10 035 9 563 9248 10035 9 563 g 248

094 7 - 084

Housing rentals - 06 850 094 7 - 5830 5830 5830 5830 5830 5830

084

INEP Retention - 06 850094 7 - 1475 1411 1365 1475 1411 1365

087

Spatial planning - 06 850 094 7 - 1283 1283 1283 1283 1283 1283

080

EPWP 06 850 0947 - 097 4015 4015 4015 4015 4015 4015

FMG 06 850 0947 - 099 40716 2648 2646 40716 2648 2646

Balele 06 850 0947 - 105 9376 9375 - 9376 9375 -

FNB Call Account investment 160 513 - - 160 513 - -

63061842928

Total 16 934 639 2923 098 2955 554 _16 834 639 2923 098 2 955 554

14, Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Repair of 376 Houses 813725 813725

Balele 6938 320 5103 185

Disaster 17 563 342 -

Local economic dsvelopment 500 000 -
25 815 387 §916 910

Movement during the year

Balance at the baginning of the year 5916 910 1278 425

Additions during the year 45125000 22438 000

Income recognition during the year ) (25226 523) (17 799 515)
25 815 387 5916 910

See note 32 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Govemment.
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15. Provisions

Reconclliation of provisions - 2024
Opening Re- Total
Balance measurement
Environmental rehabilitation 25920 384 124 §50 26 044 934
Reconciliation of provisions - 2023
QOpening Additions Total
Batance
Environmental rehabiitation 23 092 162 4828222 25920384

Environmental rehabilitation provision

The provision is raised for the rehabilitation of waste dispasal landfill site fo its ariginal state once the site has reached the
and of the useful life.

Key Assumptions

1. Inflation rate:
An inflation rate of 5.2% has been assumad to estimate future costs. This rate is based on historical inflation trends and

future economic forecasts.

2, Cost Estimates:

The cost astimates for environmental rehabilitation are based on current market prices far similar restoration activities. This
is based on the concepiual closure dasign used to compile the rehabilitation and closure cost. These estimates are
reviswed annually and adjusted for any significant changes in market conditions.

3. Timing of the commencement of the rehabilitation:

The waste management licance expired in December 2023. A letter indicating that the rehabilitation process will commence
in stages as a result of financial constraints was sent to EDTEA in December 2023. The decommissioning has since
commenced and the full technical requirements to have the site rehaibilitated is underway and will be complsted in stages.

4. Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
Current legal requirements as stipulated in the licence has baen taken into consideration.

5. Technological

The site rehabilitation would require a 100mm solil leveliing layer to be imported as no clay is available in ¢lose proximity to
the site. Allowance was mads for the gas exiraction system, leachete cut off drain, Septic tank and new menitoring
bareholes. These assumptions are based on current tachnological trends and expert opinions.

16. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 7830261 11335925
Retention Liability 9451 344 7 855221
Leave Pay Accrued 3 827 656 3663739
Direct deposits, third parties and other 926 650 6622310
Deposils recaived 22 212 45108
Credit balancos: receivable from exchange lransaclions 3 083 200 374 375
Other Payable: INEP 1305514 691 797

26 446837 30 588 475
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16. Payables from exchange transactions (continued)

The debtors with cradit balances amounting to RS 802 590 (2023: R2 721 328) is split between R3 083 200 (2023: R374
375)relating to recelvables from exchange transactions and 2 719 490 {2023:R2 346 953) which relates to recoivables
from non exchange fransactions.

The other payables: INEP relates 1o the unspent portion of the funds in terms of the agreement the municipality has in place
with Eskom/Depariment of mineral resources and energy. The municipality has an agreement in place to construct
electrical infrastructure in Eskom liscenced areas. The construction contract expenses consist mainly of contracted services
whera-In the Municipality procures the sarvices of contractors for the construction related expenditure. Revenue is
recognised axcluding Vat when the expenditure is incured.

17. Payable from non-exchange transactions

Credit non exchange debtors 2719 490 2 346 953

The debtors with credit balances amounting to R5 802 690 (2023: R2 721 328) is split betwesn R3 083 200 (2023: R374
375) relating to receivables from exchange transactions and 2 719 490 (2023:R2 346 953) which relates o receivables
from non exchange fransactions.

48. VAT payable

Vat 3462435 -

VAT is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting howaver the cash basis is applied when submitting the VAT
201,

19, Consumer deposits
Electricity 185 684 175 492

The consumer deposits represents the amounts paid by consumers in obtaining the connections for services. These
amounts are refundable to consumers when the consumer accounts are transferred or closed.

20. Revenue

Sale of goods 321901 353 067
Sarvice charges 17004414 16055778
Construction contracts 26278507 13823836
Operational Revenue 619 542 5637
Rantal of facilities and equipment 1535291 1406 084
Interast received -investment 1454 352 556 512
Licences and permits 2307 035 1790921
Penalties and Interest- Exchangs Transactions 1918 351 -
Property rates 37400183 25471125
Proparty rates - penalties imposed 4374 114 1787 545
Govemment grants and subsidies 63295523 53875515
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 1 003 831 688 505

457513044 115815445
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20. Revenue (continued)

The amount [ncluded In revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as

follows:

Sale of goods

Service charges

Construction confracts

Qperational revenus

Rental of facilities and equipment

Interest received -investment

Licences and permits

Panalties and Interest- Exchange Transactions

The amount Included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:

Taxation revenue

Property rates

Property rates - penaltiss imposed
Transfer revanue

Govemment grants & subsidies
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits

21. Sale of goods and rendering of services

Consumables

Sub-division and consalidation fees
Tender documents

Building plans

Camping fees

Cemelery and burial

Clearance certificates

Entrance fees

Photocopies and faxes

22. Service charges

Sale of electrisity
Refuse removal

2024 2023
321901 353067
17004414 16055778
26278507 13823 856
619 542 5637
1535201 1406984
1454352 556512
2307035 1790921
1918 351 -
51430393 33002755
37400183 25471125
4374114 1787545
63205523 53875515
1003831 688505
106073651 81822690
24060 72506
8923 3199
91827 107762
30974 31288
57 870 55 369
33346 37 500
16796 17973
47 860 21686
10245 6252
a2 353707
14999753 14138909
2004661 1916869
17004414 16055778

The service charges represents revenues earnsd by the municipality from the provision of eleclricity and refuse removal

Bervices.
23. Operational revenue.
Administrative and handling fees

Broakages and losses recovered
Agency fees

24. Interest on Investment

Short term deposits
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25. Rental of facilities and equipment

Rental of Invesiment properties
Other ad-hoc rentals

26. Fines, Penalties and Forfeits

Fines, Penalties and Forfeits

27. Llcences and permits

Game

Trading

Drivers licence certificate

Leaner licence application

Agency revenue- commission
Operators and public drivers permit

28. Lease rentals on operating lease

Leased Machinery

2024

2023
1117241 1083383
418 080 323 601
1535201 1406984
1003 831 688 505
246 130 173 009
12951 14 204
1179 360 927 296
413 440 322113
250 052 216 136
205 102 138 073
2307035 1790921
171 987 151 856

Operating leases represents the amonts paid to service providers in leasing out the photocopying machines that are used

the municipal buildings.
29. Construction revenue

INEP Construction revenus

26 278 507

13 823 856

The construction revenue relates to the revenue recognised in terms of the agreement the municipality has in place with
Eskom/Department of mineral resources and energy. The municipality has an agreement in place to construct slectrical
infrastruciure in Eskom liscanced areas. Tha construction contract expenses consist malinly of contracted servicss where-in
the Municipality procures the services of contractors for the construction refated expenditure. Revenue is recognised

excluding Vat when tha expanditure is incurved.

30. Penaltles and Interest- Exchange transactions

Penalties & Intorest

1918 351

Ponaltias! inferast is levied on outstanding debior balances owing for exchange transactions being etectricity, ratss and

refuse.
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31. Property rates

Property rates 37400183 25471125

37400183 25471125

Property rates - Penalty on |ate payments 4374114 1787545
41774207 27 258870

Penalties/ interast is levied on outstanding debtor balances owing for non- exchange transactions being rates.

Valuations

Residential 486 785 000 365 490 000

Commercial 108491000 74 450 000

Slate 511981000 433936 000

Municipal 96990000 72265000

Small holdings and farms 3 608 833 000 2 865 677 000

Oiher (PBO, Public worship, Vacant etc) 58693000 38481000

4 872 773 000 3 850 299 00D

Valuations on fand and buildings are performed avery 5 years. The last general valuation came into effect on 1 July 2023.
Interim valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual property values due to

alterations and subdivisions.
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32. Government granis and subsidies

Operating grants

Equitable share

Financa Management Grant
Expanded Public Warks Programme
Library

Balelo Tourism grant

Disaster

Capital grants
Municipal Infrustructure Grant (MIG)

Equitable Share

2024 2023
38069000 36076 000
3000000 3000000
1124000 978000
1950000 2414700
1164865 1396815
950 658 -
48267523 43865515
17028000 10010 000
63205523 53875515

In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members.

Repair of 376 Houses
Balance unspent at beginning of year

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 14).

The purpose of this grant is to fund the repair of houses.
Withheld/delayed grant: None.

Finance Management Grant

Current-year receipls
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

The purpose of this grant is to promote sound financial management
Grant withheld/delayed: None.

Expanded Public Works Programme

Current-year receipts
Conditions met - transfarred 1o revenue

Tha purpose of this grant is to reduce poverty and unemployment through the provision of temporary work.

Grant withhetd/delayed: None.
Municipal Infrustructure Grant (MIG)

Current-year receipts
Conditions met - transfarred to revenue

The purpose of this grant is for the infrastructure development.
Grant withheld/delayed: None
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32. Government grants and subsidies {eontinued)

Disaster

Current-year receipts
Conditlons met - fransferred 1o revenue

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 14).

The purpose of this grant is 1o alleviate the consequences arisi
Withheld/delayed grant: Nona.

The grant was recsived on 28th February 2024. The Municipali
the grant in the 4 months leading up to 30 June 2024,

18 523 600
(959 658)

17563342

ing from disasters..

ty was therefore unable 1o spend a considerable amount of
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32. Government grants and subsidies (continued)
Library Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year

Current-year receipis
Conditions met - transferred to revenue

The purpose of this grant is to fund salaries of the librarians and library related expenditure.

Withheld/delayed grant: None.
Balale Grant
Balance unspant at beginning of year

Current-year receipis
Conditions met - transferred {o revenua

Conditions still o ba met - remain liabilities (see note 14).

The purpose of thia grant is to fund the re-furbishment of the Balele gams park.

Withheld/delayed grant: None.
Local sconomic development

Curront-year receipis

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 14).

2024 2023

- 464 700
1950000 1950000
(1950000) (2414 700)
5103185 :
3000000 6500000
(1164 865) (1396 815)
6938320 5103185
500 000 -
500 000 :

The purpose of this grant ia to ancourage local pecple to work together to achieve sustainable economic growth and
developmant thereby bringing economic benefits and improved quality of life for all residents in a local municipal area.

33. Employee related costs

Basic

Bonus

Medicel aid - company contributions
UIF

Bargaining Council

Leave pay provision charge

Travel, mator car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Overlime payments

13th Cheques

Acting allowances

Housing benefits and allowances
Pension contributions

Stand By

Current interest costs
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37 141989
2669419
1152 670

287 238
19 507
400 524
1070171
604 770
22250
235679
4891 965
2079523
330 000

50 005 705

33670933
2177 161
864 767
252 998
16 784
1011987
657 800
586 462
247 810
77 631
220 563
4198511
1933727
299 000

46 216 154
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33. Employee related costs (continued)
Remuneratlon of the Municipal Manager Mrs GN Mavundla
Annual Remuneration

Backpay
Subsistence and travel

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer Ms SC Mhlophe

Annual Remuneration
Coliphone Allowance

2024 2023
1037823 1000150
45482 3723

R - Ji . E
1113009 1003873

- 194 351

- 2400

. 196 761

Miss Mhlophe was suspended in the 2022 financial year and ths final amount payment was made in the 2023 financial year.

Remuneration of Acting Chief Financial Officer WS Mpanza
Annual Remuneration

Celiphone Allowance
Leave payout

Mr WS Mpanza's contract endsed 30 April 2023.
Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer: PP Sithole
Annual Remuneralion

Cellphone Allowance

Backpay
Subsistence and travel

Remuneration of Director Infrastructure, Planning and Development Mr N Kheswa
Annual Remuneration
Cellphone Allowance

Backpay
Leave payout

Mr Kheswa's conlract ended an 31 January 2023.
Remuneration of Acting Infrastructure Director - PPS Zamlsa

Annual Remuneration
Celiphone allowance
Backpay

Mr Zamisa's contract endad 30 April 2023.
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852 108
$ 600
7526

94 386

863 621

681295
8000
73592

762 887

137 882
1600

139 482

476 472
5600
18339
157 121

o752

681295
8 000
70 801

760 096
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33. Employee refated costs (continued)
Remuneration of Infrastructure Director - SM Nkwanyana

Annual Remunaration
Collphone Allowance
Backpay

Subsistence and fravel

Remuneration Dlrector Corporate Services - Mrs Zungu

Annua! Remuneration
Acting Allowancs
Cellphone Allowance

2024

852 108
9600
7526

76 292

"945526

2023

676 699
81800
6 600

765099

Mrs Zungu Is a Manager in tha Disaster Management unit and she then acted in the position of Director Corporate Services

from 01 March to 30 June 2024.

Director Corporate Services - GNZ Maphisa
Annual Remuneration

Celiphone Allowancs

Backpay
Subsistence and travel

Mrs GNZ Maphisa resigned on 22 January 2024

413221
4 800
105685
39723

~ 's63 43

765987
9600
5585

801 172
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34. Remuneration of councillors

Annual remuneration
Cellphone allowance
Subsistence and Travel

Mayor- ML Buthlezl
Annual Remunaraticn
Celiphone Allowanca
Subsistence and travel

Deputy Mayor- Mr PF Chongo
Annugl Remunsralion
Cellphone Allowance
Subsistance and travel

Speaker - MJ Mthethwa
Annual Remunaration
Callphons Allowance

Speaker- MJ Mihethwa resigned as the Speaker on 26/02/2023.

Speaker - PX Qwabe
Annual Remuneration
Cellphone Allowanca
Subsistence and traval

Speaker-PX Qwabe was appointed as the Speaker on 01/03/2023.

Exco Member- Mr VC Ndlovu
Annual Remuneration
Celiphone Allowance
Subsistence and travel

MPAC Chairparson - NM Dekker
Annual Remunaeration
Cellphone Allowance
Subsistence and travel

Chief WHIP - MR Khumalo
Annual Remuneration
Celiphone Allowanca

Mr Khumalo rasigned as the Chief Whip 28/02/2023.
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2024 2023
4198382 4478898
448 800 448 800
54412 175 190
4701504 5102888
827829 961571
40 800 40 800
4095 -
G ML e
369 456 374 313
40 800 40 800
2484 -
e 415113
- 454 435
- 27 200
N - 481 635
662 264 218 760
40800 13 600
2000 -
705064 232360
346 367 354 817
40800 40 800
1477 -
388 644 395 617
336 206 341 115
40 600 40 800
03 -
317709 381 915
- 232 690
- 27200
- 259 330
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34. Remuneration of councillors (continued)
Chief WHIP - SM Khoza

Annual Remuneralion

Callphone Allowance

Subsistence and travel

Mr SM Khoza was appointed as the Chief Whip 01/03/2023

Councillor - Qwabe PX
Annual Remuneration
Celiphons Allowance

Councillor - Khoza SM
Annual Remuneration
Cellphone Allowance

Ward Councifior - N Nkosi
Annual Remuneration
Callphone Allowance
Subsistence and travel

PR Councillor - NA Madida
Annual Remuneration
Caliphone Allowanca
Subsislancs and travel

PR Councilior - MR Khumalo
Annual Remuneration
Callphone Allowance
Subsistence and travel

PR Counclilor - KV Sibisi
Annual Remuneration
Cellphons Aliowance
Subsistence and travel

Ward Councillor - MJ Mthethwa
Annual Remuneration
Cellphone Allowance
Subsistence and travel

Mr MJ Mthethwa was appointed as an ordinary Councillor on 01/03/2023.

2024 2023
346 367 114 412
40 800 13 600
35326 :
422 493 128 012
- 178 538
- 27 200
. 205 738
- 178 539
- 27 200
- 205 739
261978 265 865
40 800 40 800
1482 -
304 260 306 665
261 978 268 292
40 800 40 800
4782 -
307 560 309 092
261 978 87326
40 800 13 600
703 -
303 481 100 926
261978 265 865
40800 40 800
703 -
303 481 306 665
261 978 182 363
40800 13 600
_es 0 -
303 433 195 963
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34. Remuneration of councillors (continued)

In-kind benefits

The Mayor and Speaker are employed full-time and are provided with an office and secretarial support at the cost of the
Council and own vehidle for official duties and two bodyguards.

The allowances and bensfits of councillors of Emadlangeni Local Municipality for the year under review were paid In tarms
of Govemment Gazette 46470 upper limits of remuneration of public office bearers).

35. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 12375850 11216 851
Property, plant and equipment- Impairment 480 207 6 488 542
Investment Property 400 616 250 498
intangible assets 50538 160 739

13307211 18116 630

36. Finance costs

Trade and other payables 182 504 326 232
Loans - 11 515
Landfll sites 124 550 1640 970

307 054 1978 717

37. Debtimpaimment
Debt impairment 15 248 453 (3957 100)

The debt impairment represents the movement in the provisions for cansumer debtars and traffic fines as well as the debl
writtan off. In addition, refer to debtors provision recongiliation within note 12.

Movement in consumer dabtors provision 11 694 525 {3 999 850)
Movement in traffic fine provision 1655270 42 750
Debt wrile-off 1 898 658 -

15248453 (3057 100)

38. Buik purchases
Electricity - Eskom 19281709 15896 269

Bulk purchases represents the total costs of electricity purchased from Eskom.
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38. Bulk purchases (continued)

Electriclty losses

Electricity units (kWh) purchased
Electricity units {kWh) sold

Total loss

Comprising of:
Tachnical losses
Non-technical losses

Total

Percantage Loss:
Technical losses
Non-technical losses

Total

Total Electricity losses as a percentage of Purchases

Eleclricity losses are altributable to aging electricity network infrastructure and illegat connections.

39. Contracted services

Outsourced Services
Burial Services
Professional Staff
Valuer and Assessor

Consultants and Professional Services
Accounting And Auditing
Infrastructure and Planning

Audif Committea

Legal advise and Litigations

Contractors

Catering Services

Distribution of Electricity by Others
Electrical

Internet charge

Maintenance of Buildings and Faciiiies
Maintenance of Equipment
Maintenance of other Assels
Electricity

Pest Control and Fumigation
Transportation

Safeguard and Security
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2024 2023
10498643 10043675
(6002430) (B 174 931)
4496213 3868744
3375231 3566036
1120981 302 708
4496212 3868744
75% 92 %
25% 3%
100 % 100 %
2024 2023
3% 39%
26133 4117
178 845 102310
173 500 768 413
252 582 364 456
548 126 -
176 000 164 773
1835980 1515163
236 156 124 080
- 11958
405 004 224 688
96 497 72 620
451 266 714141
51441 24 848
3339431 3050528
36 640 -
19 700 .
152 400 433 011
10309116 5632083
18288826 12912187
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40. General expenses

Accommodation

Advertising

Auditors remuneration

Bank charges

Consumsables

Daily allowance

Food and beverage

Agency fees- commission expense
Entertainment

Insurance

Levies

Motor vehicle licence and registrations
Fusl and ol

Placement fees

Postage and courier

Printing and slationary

Gifts and promotional items
Research and development cosis
Subscriptions and membership fees
Telephone and fax

Own transport

Training

Travel - local

Telephone installation

Uniforms

Seating Allowance for Traditional Leaders
Skills Devetopment Levy
Remuneration to ward committees
Bursaries-Community

Licences

Toll gate

41. Construction Expenses

Sale of goods
Construction expenses: INEP

2024 2023

725704 386 178
221375 -
3487724 3264 364
326 566 242918
1639766 2584 477
42038 157 311
49 362 44 893
55278 90 009
8000 6087
100 929 11 805
50729 -
50 366 58 410
1672 221 1704 338
193739 210912
045 =
7421 78 654
45 851 14 654

1018 662 -
517707 508 976
510 879 345 899
695 538 277 005
431 880 173 826

24 261 12598

- 1383

798 572 278 674
6000 51000

442 403 409 531
141 300 772 800
41700 -
265 -
15455 4032
13322736 11690735
26278 507 13823856

The construction axpenses ralates to the expenses recognised in terms of the agreament the municipality has in place with
Eskonmv/Department of mineral resources and enargy. The municipality has an agraemsnt in place fo construct alectrical
infrastructure in Eskom liscenced areas. The construction coniract expenses consist mainly of contracted services where-in
the Municipality procures the servicas of contractors for the construction related expenditure. Revenus is recognised

excluding Vat when the expenditure is incurred.

The amount payable for work still to be done is recognised as a liability and disclosed under payables.

42. Auditors® remuneration

Faes

43. Donation

Donation for the ysar relates to assets donated to community members:

Donation
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3 264 364

5747 830
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44, Cash generated from operations

Deficit

AdJustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Actuarial gain/ (loss)

Interest income

Finance costs

Dsbl impainment

Leave pay provigion maovement
Interest on penallies

Loss on disposal of assals

Donation

Changes in working capital:

Recsaivables from exchange and non-exchange transactions
Prepayments

Payables from exchange transactions

VAT

Provisions

Unspent conditional grants and receipls
Post Employee benaefils

45. Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for
s Property, plan! and equipment

Total capltal commifmsnts
Already contracted for but not provided for

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for
»  Operaticnal Expendilure

Total operational commitments
Already contracted for bul not provided for

Total commitments

Total commitments
Authorised capital expendilure
Authorised opserational expendilure

2024 2023
(10435661)  (6862227)
13307211 18116 630

84150 182000
(154337} (556512)
124550 1640970
15248453 (3957 100)
637132 1011987
(6292 465) -
302943 583480
5747830 -
(6552646) (13 084 898)
(16289) 258212
(5555 763) 10979
4869473 -
124550 4828222
19898477 5330281
239250 560810
31576858 8042834
11016000, 1758405
11016000 1758405
7730204 2608852
7739204 2608 852
11016000 1758405
7739204 2608852
18755204 4367 257

This committed expenditure relates to capital and operational projects and will be financed by available, refained sumpluses,

axisling cash rasources and funds intemally generated.

The municipality has current contracts with 2 service providers that is a rates based conltract. The duration is for a period of
12 months which commenced on 01 March 2024 and will ferminate on 28 February 2025. The nature of the contracts is for
financiat system support. The municipality uses these service providers as and when required. The amount payable fo

these service providers Is dependent on the hours spent and is payable in terms of the SAICA approved rates.
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46. Contingencles

2024 2023

The municipality is defending various litigation and claim cases against the Municipality. The municipality’s Altorney and
management strongly believe that the municipality has a strong defence.

Nams of Claimant

Qcean Dawn

Municipal Aftomeys

Mdledle Attorneys Inc

Description of case

The company went to court
alleging the unfair or irregular
appointment of anather
security company instead of
them.

They claim they are the ones
that ware supposed to have
been appointed and their
claim is to get an
appointment letter and
proceed with work as per
their submitted bid.

To cut down increasing legal
costs and irregular
oxpenditure incurred, the
Councll has direcled that
negotiations of possible out
of courd seltlements be
investigated as the matter
has been ongoing for a long
time. The parlies have
engaged in setbement
negotiations. The Municipality
appointed Mdledle
Incorporated to act on behaif
of the Municipality on the 1%
November 2023.

The claim amount was
obtatned from the Bid
document submitted by
Ocean Dawn.

4|

Contingent Liability

R 7 936 143 {in addition to
estimated legal costs of
R150 000)
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46. Contingencies (continued)

Mr. ZJ) Mkhize Mdlele Attorneys Unfair diamissa! claim by the R679 219 (in addition to
Director Corporate Service  estimated legal costs of
whose contract was R200 000)

terminated as at 31 March
2022. The Director was
successful at the Bargaining
Council 2and the Munlcipality
was ordered to compensate
him for 10 months of his
conlract. The Municipality
approached the Labour Gourt
for a Review. The matter is
currently pending in the
Labour Court.

The claim amount is the
amounl that the Bargaining
Council found the
Municipality liable for.
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46. Contingencles {continued)
Lateral Unison Mdledle Altorneys Inc During the 2022 year ELM  R1 417 191 (in addition 1o

advertised a tender forthe  interest of R222 027 and
procurement of short term estimated legal costs of
insurance. Lateral Unison R3J50 000)
Insurance submitted a bid
and was subsequently
appointed as the successful
bidder on 1 June 2022.
During the 2022/23 audit the
Auditor General found the
appointment of Lateral
Unison Insurance to be
iregular. The Municipality
then took a decision not fo
continue with the service
provider. According to the
tender document of Lateral
Unisan, the insurance would
fapse if premiums were not
paid. The Municipality took a
decision to allow the
insurance to lapse and issus
the tender ba re-advertised in
order 0 regularize the
appointment. After failing to
recelve payment from the
ELM, the insurance did not
lapse but instead the service
provider decided to bring a
claim against ELM through
the PMB High Court and has
alleged that the Municipality
has breached the contract.
The Municipality is defending
this matter as upon
consullation it was evident
that there are high prospects
of succass.

The claim amount is the
amount claimed in the
SURMONS.

Utrecht Townlands Community: This is an application by Utretch townlands community made 1o the land claims court for the
restilution of the land that once balonged to them and is situated within the jurisdiction of eMadlangeni municipality. The
case is not necessarily a claim against eMadlangeni municipality, as the municipality is amongst the respondents in the
matter. Mazibuko & Associates is representing the municipality. The financial impact if any is unknown.

Evictions matters- there are number of eviction matters, where the municipality is cited as one of the respondents, in
addition to thoss being evicted. Nompumelelo Hadabe Inc. incorporated is representing the municipalily in those matlers. In
the prior financial year, Phumlani Ngubani Incorporated represented the municipality. The financial impact if any is
unknown. Howevar legal costs to be incurred is estimated to be in the region of R180 000.

47. Related parties

The Municipality does not have any related parly transactions other than those disclosad in note 33 and 34 of the financial
statements
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48. Living resources not recognised

The entily did not recognise the following fiving resources, due lo the definilion and/or recognition criteria not being mel:
Blological assets

Entity as the custodian

The naiure of the entity's custodial responsibility, including the legislation or similar means that establishes the custodial
responsibility over the resources, are as follows:

The National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, 2003 (Act No 57 of 2003) is the overarching legislation that
facliitates the existence and management of protected areas. The Act aim is to “Provide for the protection and conservation
of acologically viable areas representative of South Africa’s biological diversity and natural landscape and seascapes; for
iha establishment of a nationa! register of all national, provincial and local protected areas; for the management of thosa
areas in accordance with the natienal norms and standards; for intergovemmental co-operation and public consultation in
matters conceming protected areas; and for matters in connection therawith”

The Balele Game Park was proclaimed then gazetted an 17 October 2002, under the KwaZulu Natal Nature Congervation
Management Act, 1997 {Act no 9 of 1897), Gazetie No 394, 2002.

The custodial nature of living and non-living things (Collectively known as biodiversity) in the Balela Game Park, is derived
from Chapter 3 of the Protected Areas Act Section 17 (a) — (i) which deals {Declaration of protacted areas).

Key judgements made and assumptions applled (including determination of control):

Animals in Balele Game Park are left to roam freely and are left in their natural environment or habitat, The game park only
restricts the movement of wild animals by fencing off the park generally for access control and accommodation areas for
securify purposes thus to limit exposurs 1o our guests and exposure of neighbouring landowners and communities to the
risks associated with keeping wild animals in a reserve. These fonces have not been maintained well in the past couple of
yoars and has let to animals roaming beyorid the borders of the game park. Therefore animals are able to move in and out
through unfenced arsas. Furthermors though the game park hava fences, animal migralion occurs frequently and animals
do from time to time jump over, or burmow under fences.

Access control is therefore restrictive and as such Emadlangeni Municipality has concluded does not have control, which is
a key requirement for asset recognition, of the individual animals within the park.

The game park performs regular aerial game count to take census in order fo maintsin the numbers held in the park with
view of sustaining the eco system, tourism attractiveness of the town and generate revenues for the municipality.

There's no restrictions an the sale of these assets except for permits regulations for hunters allowed for cull hunting.

The last aerial count was parformed on the 28t of June 2024. The following spacies were found and counted within the
park’s borders: animal groups:

Blesbok 44 36
Blue Wildebeest 260 277
Plains Zabra 63 70
Red Hartebeest 6 8
Warlhog 28 17
Waterbuck 20 36
Bushpiq S 5
Eland 10 15
Impala 131 106
Nyata 10 6
Giraffe 35 37
Kudu 31 22
Grey Duiker 5 5

648 840

Revenue generated from game park activities is contained within note 27: Licences and pemmils.
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49, Prior-year adjustments

Presented below are those ltems contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance
affected by prior-year adjustments:

Statement of financial position

Accumulated Surplus
Praviously reported 113 424 255
Correction of error: Moveable assats incomrectly recognised (28 389)
Correction of ervor: Assets incorractly recognised {73 044)
Comeclion of error: effects of the adjustment in tha recalculation of the 2022 provision for doubful 11 787 266
debts
Correclion: Assels previously not recognised 10 272 550
Correclion of error: biclogical assets incorrectly recognised M)
131113 937
Vat
Praviously reported 1825 920
Val on retentions not cleared from the retentions account on payment of the supplier {234 031)
Comection of error; Val on Insurance expense incorrectly raised in the prior year (184_851 )
__ 1407038
Investment Property
Previously reported 34 581 830
Cormrection of error: Assels previously not racognised 4517 550
=39 009380
Blological Assets
Previously reported 4 349 646
Comection of emor: biological assets incorrectly recognised {4 340 646)
Plant and Machinery
Previously reported 2155736
Corraction of error: Moveable assets incarractly recognised (B 753)
Corraction of eror: Depreciation not previously accounted for (5214)
Correction of ewor: Clearance of Impairment on Disposed Assets 6903
Correction of emor: Reclassification: Change of class to Infrastructure - Cost 135 000
Reclassification: Change of class to Infrastructure - Accumulated Depraciation (3594)
Correction of Emor: Cost incomectly classified as Plant and Machinery instead of IT Equipment (129 925)
2150 153
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Furntture & Flttings

Praviously reported

Carrection of error: Moveable assets incoreclly recognised
Corraction of emror: Depreciation for the year

Correction of ervor: Clearance of impairment on Disposed Assets
Cormection of error: Incorrect Classification of Expenditurs - Expense

Computer Equipment

Previously reported

Cormection of error: Depreciation for the year

Carrection of error: Clearance of impairment on Disposed Assatls

Correction of error: cost incorrectly classified as plant and machinery instead of IT squipment

Buildings

Previously reported

Correction of error: Disposed Assets cost clearance Misclassified
Correction of error: Clearance of Impalrment on Disposed Assets

Infrastructure

Previously reported

Correction of error: cost incorectly classifiad as infrastructure instead of buildings
Reclassliiication: Change of class to Plant and Machinery - Cost

Correction of error; Impairment not cleared on Disposed Assels

Correction of error: Movaable assets nct previously capitalised

Corraction of Error: Prior Period WIP capitalization

Community

Previously reported

Correction of error; Depraciation not previously accounted for
Correction of error; Assets previously not recognised
Correction of Error: Assets not previously recognizad

Payables from exchange transactions: Trade payables

Previously reported

Corraction of error: Commission expense payable to vendor for prepaid alectricty not previously
recognised

Retentions incorrectly duplicated

Correction of arror: Insurance expense incorrectly raised in the prior year

Payables from Exchange Transactions: Retentions

Previously reportad

Vat on retentions not cleared from the retentions account on payment of the supplier
Retentions inconectly duplicated
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2023

1381140
(19637)
{51 258)

3905
(92 307)

1221843

800 029
61331
3451
129 925

984736

5003 670
4290
6545

5014 505

76 206 848
(4 2a0)
(135 000)
8189
7542
92572

76 265 861

12193 494
(5 451)

23 848

5 755 000

17 966 891

12438 188
5022

300 906
(1417 191)

11 335 925

8399 158
{234 031)
{309 906)

7 855 221
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49. Pror-year adjustments {continued)

Recelvables from exchange transactions

Previously reported

Correction of emor: effects of the adjustment in the recalcutation of the 2022 provision for doubtful
debts

Correction of error: effects of the adjustment in the recalcutation of the 2023 provision for doubtful
debts

Receivables from non- exchange transactions

Previously reporied

Correction of error: effects of the adjustment in the recalculation of the 2022 provision for doubtfut
debts

Gorrection of error: effects of the adjustment in the recalculafion of the 2023 provision for doubiful
debts

Statement of financial performance

General expanses: Electricity/ Agency fess- commission expense

Previously reported

Corraction of error: Commission expense payable ta vendor for prepaid eleciricly not previously
recognised

General expanses: Insurance
Previously reported
Correction of error: Insurance expense incorrecily raised in the prior year

General expenses: Consumeablss

Praviously reported

Corraction of error: Commission expense payable ta vendor far prepaid electricty not praviously
recognised

Depreclation

Previously reported
Depraciation correction
Impaimment on disposed assets
Reversal of impaimment loss

General expenses: Own Transport
Previously moported
Corraction of error: Re-classication of councillors S&T to councillors remuneration
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2023

2410410
2824523

3 516 508

8751 441

10 180 935
8962 743

12 865 655

32009333

84 987
5022

T

1244 145
{1232 340)

11 805

2487 977
96 500

LTI

18332638
64 968

(52 195)
(228 781)

18 116 630

348 886
71881)
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49. Prior-year adjustments {continued)

General Expenses: Travel

Previously reporled 47 302

Correction of error: Re-classication of councillors S&T to councillors remuneration (34 704)
12 598
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49, Prior-year adjustments (continued}

General Expenses: Dally Allowance
Previously reportad
Correction of emror: Re-classication of councillors S&T to councillors remuneration

Councillors remunsration

Previously reported

Corraction of emor: Re-lassication of councillors S&T to councillors remuneration from general
expenses

Correction of emor: Re-classication of councillors S&T to coungillors remuneration from general
expanses

Carrection of error: Re-classication of councillors S&T to councillors remuneration from general
expenses

Corraction of error: Councillors back-pay incarrectly included in employee related costs from general

expanses

Falr Value Gain on Blological assets
Previously reported
Correction of error: Gain on biological assets incomectly recognised

Profitf Loss

Proviousty reported

Corraction of error: Depreciation

Correction of eror: Commission expense payable to vendor for prepaid electricty not previously
recognised

Cormection of emor: Insurance expenss incomectly raised in the prior year

Corraction of error: inventory consumeables incomectly classified as fumiture

Corraction of emor: effecis of the adjustment in the recalculation of the 2023 provision for doubtful
debls

Correction of error: Loss on disposal of biological assets incoractly recognised.

Correction of error; Gain on biological assets incomrectly recognised

Empoyee related costs: Basic
Previously reported
Correction of error: Councillors back-pay incorrectly included in employee related costs

Committments

Proviously reported
Correction of error: Incorrect amount recognised for expenditure on Gutakura- Kaarpoort

Irregular Expenditure

Previously reported

Correction of emor: Imegular expenditure written off by council on 29 June 2023 not previously
disclosed.
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2023

225916
(68 605)

157 319

4596 854
71881

34704
68 605
330 845

5102 889

1109 492
{1109 492)

(24 530 272)
216 008
(5 022)

1232 340
{96 500)
16 382 164

1028 547
(1109 492)
(e 882227)

46 546 998
(330 844)

46216 154

4302 165
65 092

4367 257

140 447 244
(1954 501)
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49. Prior-year adjustments (continued)
138 402713

50. Risk management
Financlal risk management
The municipality's overall risk management program focuses on the unpradictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effecis on the municipality's financial performance. Risk management is carried out by a upper
management and lsadership. The accounting officar provide guidance for overall risk management.

Liguidity risk

The municipality's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of fulure commitments and credit facilities.

Credit risk

Cradit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The municipality only deposits cash with
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure o any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluates cradit rigk relafing to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these rafings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
risk conirol assesses the credit qualily of the customer, taking into account its financlal pesition, past experience and other
factors.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end is contained within notes 9 and 10: Recsivables from exchangs and non-
exchange transactions and note 13: Cash and cash equivalents.

51. Unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 67218886 38637612
Opening balance as restated “$7218886 38 637 612
Add: Expenditure identified - current 16037612 28581274
Wiite off (112 110) -
Closing balance 83144 388 67 218 886

The expenditure in the prior year was due to over-spending on the budget line items but the overall expenditure was within
the approved budget however majorily of these line items are non cash items which hava no monetary impact.

The unauthorised expenditure incurred in the curent year was due 10 actual expenditure line items excoeding the
budgeted expenditure figures on the following fine items.

Unauthorised Expenditure Final Budget Actual Unauthorised
Expenditure

Remunaration of councillors 4473 499 4 701 594 {228 095)
Debt Impairment 10400000 15248453 (4 848 453)
Dopreciation and Amortisaion 9864329 13307211 (3 442 882)
Finance Gosts 164 000 307 054 (143 054)
Contracted services 17048621 16288826 (1 240 205)
Oonation - 6747830 (5747 830)
Actuarial Losses - 84 150 (84 150)
Loss on disposal of assets - 302 943 (302 ¢43)

41050449 57088061 (16 037 612)
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52, Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported

Opening balance as restated
Add: Expenditure identified - cument
Write off completed in current year

Closing balance

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is caused by interest incurrad on late paymsnts.

53. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported

Opening balance as restated
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current
Correction of ervor: Write off not previausly accounted for

Closing balance

2024 2023
1483279 1114453
1483270 1114453
181 749 368 826
{16 879) -
1648149 1483279
138492713 115020 481
138492713 115029 481
47293563 25417 733
(19000877) (1954 501)
166 695399 138 492 713

The curvent yaar irregular expenditure relates to SCM pracesses not being followed as well as expired contracs exceading

the 15% threshold stipulated in MFMA Circular 62.
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§3. Imegular expenditure (continued)
Devlations from supply chain management regulations

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
Threa written quotations not invited
Requesit for quotations not invited as per SCM
policy
Deviation from procurement processes arising
{rom an emsrgency
Deviation from procuremsnt processas arising
from sole provider
Deviation from procurement processes arising
from exceptional cases where it was impractical
to follow procurement procasses

2024

2023

- 1786 558

- 70950

6986 872 -
81 960 -
3949 174 -
11 018 006 1857 508

Paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management poticy
must provide for the procuremsnt of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in certain
circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the accounting
officer and includes a note to the financial statements.

Goods and services were procured during the financial year under review and the process followed in procuring thase goods
deviated from the provisions of paragraph 12(1){d)(i) as stated above. The reasons for these deviations were documanted and

reported to the accounting officer who considered them and subsequently approved the deviation from the nommal supply chain
management regulations. .

54, Additional disclosure In terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
Contributions to organlised local govemment

Current year subscription { fee 500 000 500 000
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54. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)
Audit fess

Opening balance
Current year fee

Amount paid

PAYE and UIF
Opening balance

Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - current year

Pension and Medical Ald Deductions
Opening balance

Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - current year

VAT

VAT receivable
VAT payable

Counclilors’ arvear consumer accounts
No councillors had arrear accounts.
§5. Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

21563 796 752
4010883 3796100

- (82 466)
(4032446)  (4488823)
- 21563

375616 534221
7525747 7 332850
{7489070) (7 491455)

412203 375616

11461 9319
10171 405 9 067 803
(10171 405) (9 065 761)

3462435 1407038

11461 11461

- 1407 038
3 462 435 -

The municipality is organised and reports lo management on the basis of major functional areas. The segmants were
organised around the type of service delivered and the target market. Management uses these same segments for

determining strategic objectivas. Segments were aggregated for reporting purposes.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments' performances
and for making decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of Information about these segments is alsa

considered appropriate for externat reporting purposes.

A segment is an activity of an entity:

(a) thal generates aconomic benefits or sarvice potential {including economic benefits or service potential relating to

transactions between actlvities of the same entity.

{b) whose results are regularly reviewad by manageament to make decisicns about resources to be allocated to thal

activity and in assessing its performance; and
{c) for which separate financial infonmation is available.

The identified reportable segments are: Community and Social Services, Governance and Administration, Planning and

Development, Trading services
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55, Segment information (continued)

Aggregated segments

The grouping of these segments is consistent with the functionat classification of govemmant activitiss which considers
the nalure of the services, the beneficiaries of such services and the fees charged for the services rendered.

Typss of goods andlor services by segment

The type of goods and services in these services are those consistent with the provision of basic services 1o municipal
cuslomers and communily. The nature of the services generate economic bensfits for the municipality as well improve

the service potential of the municipaity.
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55. Segment information (continued)

Segment surplus or deficlt, assets and liabllities

2024

Community Governance Planning and Trading Total

and Social and Development  Services

Services  Administration
Revenue
Revenue from exchange fransacfions 1863 567 1670 742 940382 45501350 49985041
Revenue from non- exchange transactions 3402475 82394653 20276 523 - 106073651
Interest Revenue - 1454 352 - - 1454 352_
Total segment revenue 5266042 85528747 21216905 45501350 157513044
Entity’s revenue B o 157 513 044
Expenditure
Employee related costs 14872663 18212247 13093 489 4727306 50905705
Councillors remuneration - 4701 594 - - 4701594
Depreciation and amortisation 579 496 3 541 501 7551973 1634241 13307211
Finance costs - 307 054 - - 307 054
Lease on operating - 171 987 - - 171987
Debt Impairment - 15248453 - - 15248 453
Bulk Purchases - - - 19281709 19281709
Contracted services 1221916 15730203 912 444 424263 18288826
Construction expenses - - - 26278507 26278507
Actuarial - 84 150 - - 84150
General expenses - 13322738 - 13322736
Loss on disposal - 302 943 - 302 943
Donation - 5747 830 - - 5747 830
Total segment expenditure 16674075 77370698 21557906 52346026 167948705
Total segmental surplusf{deficit} {10 435 661)
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Communily Governance Planning and Trading Total

and Social and Development Sarvices

Sarvices  Adminisiration
55. Segmentinformation (continued)
Assets
Current Assets - 60127773 (5121 489) - 55006284
Non-current assets (4919776) 185428644 (13034 184) (18504 428) 148 970 256
Total segment assets {4919 776} 245556 417 (18155673) (18504 428) 203 976 540
Total assets as per Statement of financlal Position . 203 976 540
Llablitles
Curent Llabllities - 53458890 (520902) 8663590 61601578
Non-current liabitities - 27680934 - - 27680934
Total segment liablilties - sif13pe24  (520902) 8663500 689282512
Total liabilities as per Statement of financial Poslition B9 282 5§12
Following a change in the compasition of its reporlable segmants, the corresponding items of segment information for earlier periods has been restated.
2023
Community Govemance Planning and Trading Total
and Social and Development  Services
Services  Administration

Revenue
Ravenue from exchange transactions 1654 364 1108 090 794153 29879634 - 33436241
Revenue from non- exchange transactions 3103205 49641668 29077 819 - - 81822692
Interest revenua - 556 512 - - - 556 512
Total segment revenue 4757569 51306270 298714972 20879634 - 115815445
Entity's revenue 115815445
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55. Segment information (continued)

Expenditure

Bulk Purchases
Contracted Services
Actuarial gain/ loss
Construction expenses
Employse related costs
Coungcillors remunaration
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs

{ easa on operaling

Debt Impaiment
Goneral Expenses

Loss on disposal

Total segment expenditure
Total segmental surplus/(deficit)

Asssts
Cunment assels
Non-current assets

Total segment assets
Total assets as per Statement of financial Position

Llabilities
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total segment Jiabllitles
Total liabilities as per Statement of financial Position
§6. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

360 115

11 882 907
857 844

13100 866

87

10994 010
182 000

16763 338
5 102 888
7782 135
1978 717

151 856

(3 957 100)

11690 735

583 480

51272 057

45240 648
77673493

122914 141

37743 310
28902 384

66 645 604

- 15896260
1218 062 340 000
- 13823856
12823187 4746 724
5431828 4044 823

19473077 38851672
22095345 48538933
22005345 48 538 933

2671015

2671015

15 896 269
12912187
182 000
13 823 856
46216 154
5102 888
18 116 630
1978717
151 856

(3 957 100}
11680735
583 480

122 697 672
(6882 227)

45 240 648
148 307 771

183 548 419
193 543 419

40414 325
28 902 384

60 316 709
69 316 709
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56. Budget differences (continued)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

Other Revenue: More revanue was raised from sale of tender documents and sale of goods from game park.

8ervice charges:Over-budgeting on service charges.

Operational Revenue: More revenue was billed arising from assets auctioned.

Construction revenue: Construction revenus represents revenue recognised in line with GRAP 11 on construction
contracts. Construction expenses was budgeted for under capital projects (PPE) in the statement of finandial position. In
line with GRAP 11 on construction contracts, the budget was moved to construction expense.

Rental of facilities: Under-budgeted and more renta) was received from game park,

Interest earned:Balele and Disaster grant funds received and unspent fead to an increass in interest revenue.
Licences and Permits: Grealer numbar of customers applied for Licences and Permits

Gain on blological assets: Not budgeted for.

Property Rates: Municipalily anticipated that the community would build more housing because of the sites which were
sold in priar years which did not materialise as well as a component of over-budgeting on property rates.

Property rates-penalties imposed: Penalties were raised across all categories of services and nof just rales as was
previously done

Government Grants & Subsidies: Granis are base on DORA allocation. Municipalily has not anticipated the Increass in
MIG and eguitabls share allocations,

Fines, penalties and forfeits: More fine were raised due to more traffic officers employed.

Debt Impairment: Under-budgeted.

Depreclation and amortisation: Under- budgeted. In addition impairment was not budgeted for.

Finance Charges: Municipality is struggling financially and we ware not able to pay suppliers in time. The non-cash
element of finance costs relating fo the provision far the landiill sile is also Included in the actual figure and was not
budgeted for.

Contracted services: Municipality did not have sufficient funds to spend on contracted services.

General expenses: Less spending due 1o cost cuting measures being implemented.

Actuarial loss: Acfuarlal loss not budgetad for. Relates to the loss on the post smployee benafit vatuation.
Construction expenses: Construction expenses was budgeted for under capital projects (PPE) in the statement of
financial position. In line with GRAP 11 on construction contracts, the budget was moved to construction expanse,
Loss on disposal of assets: Not budgeted for

Penalties and Interest- Non exchange transactions: Penallies were raised across all categories of services and not just
rates as was previousty done. Penalties and interest was also all budgeted for under revenue from non-exchange
transactions.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current Assets: The provision for impairment was greater than budget. In addition, the amount budgeted for VAT
raceivable was lower than budget.

Non-current assets: PPE additions was over-budgeted for.

Current liabllitles: Unspant grant fiabilitles not budgeted for at year end was the main contributing factor in the under-
budgeting of current liabilities, Disaster grant was received only 4 months before the end of the financial year.

CASHFLOW STATEMENT

Cashflows from operating activities: The municipality had budgeted to spend more of the grant funding money and to
spend less on payments to suppliers than was actually spent.

Cashflows from Investing activities: The municipalily had budgeted to spend more on the acquisition of PPE.
Cashfiow from financing activities: Consumer deposits was not budgetad for.

Changes from the approved budget to the final budget
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56. Budget differences {continued)

The changes betwaen the approved and final budget is a consequence of upward and downward adjustments basad on
actual results during the mid-term review as well as reallocations within the approved budget parameters. For details on

these changes please refer to the annual report.

57. Golng Concern
The Annuel Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.

This basls presumas that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commilients will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The municipality's current liabilities excead its current assets by RE 595 204, (2023: R4 826 323). The municipality has a
nat deficit of R10 435 661,(2023: R6 882 227). The municipality's cash and cash equivalents were R17 013 333
(2023: R2 924181) which is not sufficiant to cover the current liabilities of the municipality. Unspent grants is not

cashed backed.

The collection rate has improved slightly however there is still a risk that all the outstanding debtors will not be collected.
Over the next 12 months the municipality is still committed to ensure that the expenditure is kept within the funded

and approved budget funding plan approvad by council.

The ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most
significant of these is that the accounting officer continus to bill for rates and other services. In addition Provingial
and National Government has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate the municipality or curtail the scale of

the municipal funding and operations.

58. Accounting by principals and agents

Tha entity is a party to principal-agent arrangement{s).
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58. Accounting by principals and agents {continued)
Detalls of the arrangment(s) are as follows:

KZN Deparntment of Transport: The Department and the Municipality entered into an agreement for the iransfer of
registration and licensing of motor vehicle and leamers license testing functions. The municipality acls as an agent in terms
of the agreement it has wilh the department in so far as the registration and licancing of motor vehicles is concemned.

Renewsl of drivers licences: The Municipality charges R250 per License. Off the R250, R79 is payable to the Dapartment
and the remaining R171 is the revenue of the municipality. The R79 per license becomes a payable to the Department.
The department does not have the ability fo use aft or substantially all of the resources that result from this transaction for
its own benefit. This component of the agreement therefore does not form part of the principal-agent retationship.

Under this agreement, any physical hardwara fa defiver on the agresment ramains the asset of the department.

Spar and Dix take aways:The municipality appointed Spar and Dix take-aways for the purposes of dispensing and selling
elpctricity coupons to consumers. The municipality acis as a principal in terms of the agreement it has with the these
parties. A commission of 2 cenis per unit sold which is the equivalent of 2% is payabla io the agent.

Under both these agreements, any physical hardware to deliver on the agreements, remains the assets of the municipality.

In considering whether a principal- agent relationship exists, management uses the provisions contained within GRAP 109
to 2seess if a binding arrangament in which one entity (the agent) undertakes transactions with third parties on behalf and
for the benefit of another entity (the principal).

Key considerations were if a binding arrangement exists, if one party was required to underiake transactions with another
party on behalf of and for the bensfit of the ather party, who has ithe power to determine the significant terms and conditions
of the transaction, who has the abllity to use or substantially use all of the resources that result from the transacfion for its
own benefit and who is exposed to the variability in the results of the transaction.

The assessment of the agreement with the Department of Transport, it has been assessed that the municipality is agent as
it has been directed by another entity (the department), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with third
parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

The asessment of the agreemaent with Spar and Dix, it has been assessed that the municipality is a principal as the

municipality directs another entity (Spar and Dix), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with third
pariies on its behalf and for its own benefit.
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58. Accounting by principais and agents (continued)
Entity as agent

Revenue recognised

Motor vehicle registration and licences: Commission revenue is eamed at 10% (inclusive of Vat) on sale of every motor
vehicle ransaction undertaken by the municipality on behalf of the Department, The full transactional value is transferred to
the Dapartment. The department then transfers the 10%( inclusive of Vat) commission over to the municipality.

The aggragate amount of commission revenus for the sale of tiscances and permits that the entily recognised as
compensation for the transactions carriad out on behalf of the principal is R250 052 (2023: R216 136).

Refer to nots 27: Licence and permits.

There are no expanses accrued on rendering these services that is claimable from the Department.

Rights of reimbursement recognised as an asset

Amounts receivable from the Principal at year end of R30 123 (2023: R12 615) have been recognised as raceivables and is
included in note 9: receivables from exchanga.

Reconciliation of recelvable

Opening balance 12615 -
Comission revenue eamed 250 052 216 136
Revenue received (232 544) (203 521)

30 123 12 615
Entity as principal
Amounts payable to agents recognised as a lability

Amounts owing to the the Agents al year and of R14 053 (2023: R9 183) have been recognised as liabilities and is included
in note 16: Payables.

Reconcliiation of payable

Opening balance 9183 -

Commission expenss incurred &5 278 90 009

Expense paid (50 408) ~ (80 826)
- 14 053 9183

Fee paid

Feo paid as compansation 1o the agent 55 278 90 009

Refer to note 40. A commission of 2 cents per unit sold which is the equivalant of 2% is payable to the agent. IT equipment
in the form of computers and a printer was provided to tha agents with the following carrying values:

Dix: R3 432 (2023: R5 155)

Spar: R1 965 (2023: R2 951)

Fram a contractual parspactive either party is allowed to cancel the contract within 30 days’ notice, therefore na further cost
implications attached to the termination of the agreemant. On terminatian of the agresment between Spar and Dix, the
equipmen} pravided lo these entities in terms of the agreement will be re-possessed as they are the assets of the

municipalily. From a financial porspactive, cammission expense will no longer be incurred and paid lo Spar and Dix, Sale of
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AUDIT REPORT

Emadlangeni Local Municipality




Report of the auditor-general to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial
Legislature and the Council on Emadlangeni Local Municipality

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.

| have audited the annual financial statements of the Emadlangeni Local Municipality set out on
pages xx to xx, which comprise the statement of financial position for the year ended 30 June
2024, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow
statement and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then
ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Emadlangeni Local Municipality as at 30 June 2024 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the South African
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the requirements of the
Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act 5 of
2023 (Dora).

Basis for opinion

3.

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the
auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

| am independent of the municipality in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that
are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters

6.

| draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Material impairment — Consumer debtors disclosure

7. As disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements, the municipality recognised an impairment

allowance of R39,32 million (2022-23: R32,96 million) on consumer debtors, as the
recoverability of these amounts was considered doubtful.

1



Underspending of conditional grants and receipts

8. Asdisclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the municipality underspent on several of
its conditional grants by R25,82 million (2022-23: R5,92 million). The majority of this amount is
related to the underspending on the Disaster grant of R17,56 million.

Material losses — electricity

9. As disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, the municipality incurred material technical
electricity losses of R3,38 million (2022-23: R3,57 million) and non-technical electricity losses
of R1,12 million (2022-23: R0,30 million) which represented 43% (2022-23: 39%) of total
electricity purchases. The losses were mainly due to ageing electricity network infrastructure
and illegal connections.

Restatement of corresponding figures

10. As disclosed in note 49 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2024
were restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the municipality at, and for
the year ended, 30 June 2023.

Going concern

11. | draw attention to note 57 to the financial statements, which indicates that the municipality
incurred a net deficit of R10,44 million for the year ended 30 June 2024 and as of that date the
municipality's current liabilities exceed its assets by R6,60 million (2022-23: R4,83 million), and
although cash and cash equivalents improved to R17,01 million (2022-23: R2,92 million), these
funds were not sufficient to cover the municipality’s unspent conditional grants and other
current liabilities. These events or conditions, along with the other matters as outlined in the
aforementioned note, indicate that uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Other matter

12. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Unaudited disclosure notes

13. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the particulars of non-compliance with the MFMA
should be disclosed in the financial statements. This disclosure requirement did not form part of
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, | do not express an opinion on it.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

14. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and DoRA and for
such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.



15. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the municipality or to cease operations or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements

16. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

17. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in
the annexure to this auditor’s report. This description, which is located at page xx to xx, forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Report on the annual performance report

18. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, | must audit and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information against predetermined objectives for the selected material
performance indicators presented in the annual performance report. The accounting officer is
responsible for the preparation of the annual performance report.

19. | selected the following material performance indicators related to basic service delivery and
infrastructure development key performance area (KPA) presented in the annual performance
report for the year ended 30 June 2024. | selected those indicators that measure the
municipality’s performance on its primary mandated functions and that are of significant
national, community or public interest.

KPA 1 — Basic service delivery and infrastructure development
1.1.1.1. Number of households connected through rural electrification at eMadlangeni Phase 2,
Ward 5 for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.1.1.2. Number of households connected through rural electrification at Blue Mountain Phase 2,
Ward 4 for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.1.1.3. Number of households connected through rural electrification at Dorothea, Ward 1 for the
year ending 30 June 2024

1.1.1.4. Number of households connected through rural electrification at KwaNtaba Phase 3, Ward
4 for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.1.1.5. Number of households connected through rural electrification at Kaarpoort Phase 3, Ward
4



1.2.1.1. 0,4 Kms of paved municipal road which has been resurfaced to the surfaced road,
Scheepers Street Phase 2, Ward 2 for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.2.1.2. 0,8 Kms of paved municipal road which has been resurfaced to the surfaced road, Plein
Street Ward 2 for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.2.1.3 Upgrade of Sports field in Ward 2 for the year ending 30 June 2024
1.2.1.4 Maintenance of 60 kms of gravel roads in all 6 Wards for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.2.1.6 Re-gravelling of 4,6 Kms of Dorothea access road in Ward 1 for the year ending 30 June
2024

1.2.1.7 Rehabilitation of 0,6 Kms of Keerom Street in Ward 2 for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.2.1.8 Re-gravelling of 2,4 Kms of Vaalbank access road in Ward 4 for the year ending 30 June
2024

1.2.1.9 Re-graveling of 4,6 kms of reserved access road in Ward 4 for the year ending 30 June
2024

1.2.1.10 Re-gravelling of 2,9 Kms of Lenz access road in Ward 5 for the year ending 30 June 2024

1.2.1.11 Re-gravelling of 4,6 Kms of Mlwane access road in Ward 6 for the year ending 30 June
2024

1.4.1.2 Number of Job opportunities created under EPWP.

1.4.1.3 Number of capacity-building interventions for local entrepreneurs and SMMEs provided
1.5.1.2 Number of lightning conductors installed

1.5.1.4 Number of Disaster Management training & awareness campaigns conducted

1.6.1.1 Number of new households provided with new electricity connections {(municipal supply)
within the 2023-24 financial year.

1.7.1.2 Number of formal households, businesses, and government areas with access to refuse
removal within the 2023-24 financial year.

20. | evaluated the reported performance information for the selected material performance
indicators against the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice. When an annual performance report is prepared
using these criteria, it provides useful and reliable information and insights to users on the
municipality’s planning and delivery of its mandate and objectives.

21. | performed procedures to test whether:

¢ the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the
municipality’s mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

o all the indicators relevant for measuring the municipality’s performance against its primary
mandated and prioritised functions and planned objectives are included



e the indicators are well defined to ensure that they are easy to understand and can be
applied consistently, as well as verifiable so that | can confirm the methods and processes
to be used for measuring achievements

« the targets can be linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific, time-
bound and measurable to ensure that it is easy to understand what should be delivered and
by when the required level of performance as well as how performance will be evaluated

e the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as
those committed to in the approved initial or revised planning documents

e the reported performance information presented in the annual performance report in the
prescribed manner and is comparable and understandable

e there is adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported and for measures
taken to improve performance.

22. | performed the procedures to report material findings only; and not to express an assurance
opinion or conclusion.

23. The material findings on the reported performance information for the selected material
indicators is as follows:

Target not directly related to indicator

Number of new households provided with new electricity connections (municipal supply)
within the 2023-24 financial year

24. The target of one certificate of competence does not relate directly to the indicator, which
measures the “number of new households provided with new electricity connections (municipal
supply) within the 2023-24 financial year”. This makes it difficult to plan for the achievement of
the indicator. Consequently, the reported achievement does not provide useful information on
the indicator’s achievement.

Other matters

25. | draw attention to the matters below.
Achievement of planned targets

26. The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned
targets and provides measures taken to improve performance. This information should be
considered in the context of the material findings on the reported performance information.

27. The table that follows provides information on the achievement of planned targets and lists the
key service delivery indicators that were not achieved as reported in the annual performance
report. The measures taken to improve performance are included in the annual performance
report on pages [xx to xx].



Basic service delivery and infrastructure development

Targets achieved: 74%
Budget spent: 103%

Key basic service delivery and infrastructure development Planned Reported
indicators not achieved target achievement
1.1.1.3 Number of households connected through rural electrification 151 0
at Dorothea, Ward 1 for the year ending 30 June 2024
1.2.1.5 0,7KMs of paved municipal road which has been resurfaced 0,7 kms 0.5 kms
to surfaced road: Kerk Street, Phase 3 Ward 2
1.2.1.6 Re-gravelling of 4,6 Kms of Dorothea access road in Ward 1 4,6 kms 0
for the year ending 30 June 2024
1.2.1.7 Rehabilitation of 0,6 Kms of Keerom Street in Ward 2 for the 0,6 kms 0
year ending 30 June 2024
1.2.1.8 Re-gravelling of 2,4 Kms of Vaalbank access road in Ward 4 2,4 kms 0
for the year ending 30 June 2024
1.2.1.9 Re-graveling of 4,6 kms of reserved access road in Ward 4 4,6 kms 0
for the year ending 30 June 2024
1.2.1.10 Re-gravelling of 2,9 Kms of Lenz access road in Ward 5 for 2,9kms 0
the year ending 30 June 2024
1.2.1.11 Re-gravelling of 4,6 Kms of Miwane access road in Ward 6 4,6 kms 0

Material misstatements

28. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were in the reported performance information for the basic
service delivery and infrastructure development KPA. Management did not correct all of the
misstatements and | reported material findings in this regard.

Report on compliance with legislation

29. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | must audit and
report on compliance with applicable legislation relating to financial matters, financial
management and other related matters. The accounting officer is responsible for the
municipality’s compliance with legislation.

30. | performed procedures to test compliance with selected requirements in key legislation in
accordance with the findings engagement methodology of the Auditor-General of South Africa
(AGSA). This engagement is not an assurance engagement. Accordingly, | do not express an
assurance opinion or conclusion.




31. Through an established AGSA process, | selected requirements in key legislation for
compliance testing that are relevant to the financial and performance management of the
municipality, clear to allow consistent measurement and evaluation, while also sufficiently
detailed and readily available to report in an understandable manner. The selected legislative
requirements are included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

32. The material findings on compliance with the selected legislative requirements, presented per
compliance theme, are as follows:

Annual financial statements

33. The annual financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material
respects in accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material
misstatements of non-current assets, current assets, current liabilities, revenue and disclosure
items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently
corrected resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Procurement and contract management

34. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts were awarded to
suppliers based on preference points that were allocated and calculated in accordance with the
requirements of section 2(1)(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act 5 of
2000 and its regulations.

Expenditure management

35. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R47,29 million,
as disclosed in note 53 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 62(1)(d). The
majority of the irregular expenditure were caused by non-compliance with procurement
processes and payments made relating to expired contracts.

36. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure amounting to R16,04
million, as disclosed in note 51 to the annual financial statements, in contravention of section
62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The majority of the unauthorised expenditure was caused by
overspending on budgeted expenditure and various non-cash items.

37. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as disclosed in
note 52 to the annual financial statements, in contravention of section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA.
The majority of the disclosed fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused by interest on late
payments to Eskom.

38. Money owed by the municipality was not always paid within 30 days, as required by section
65(2)(e) of the MFMA.



Other information in the annual report

39.

40.

1.

42.

The accounting officer is responsible for the other information included in the annual report.
The other information referred to does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report
and those selected material indicators in the scoped-in basic service delivery and infrastructure
development KPA presented in the annual performance report that has been specifically
reported on in this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements, the report on the audit of the annual performance
report and the report on compliance with legislation do not cover the other information included
in the annual report and | do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
on it.

My responsibility is to read this other information and, in doing so, consider whether it is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected material indicators in the
scoped-in basic service delivery and infrastructure development KPA presented in the annual
performance report or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When | do
receive and read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, |
am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the
other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract
this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected
this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

43.

44,

45.

46.

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual
performance report and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not
to express any form of assurance on it.

The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that
resulted in the findings on the selected material indicators included in the annual performance
report and the material findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

The accounting officer and management did not exercise adequate oversight and review
controls over financial and performance reporting to ensure the fair presentation of the financial
statements and the annual performance report.

Daily and monthly processes coupled with effective records management were not
implemented to ensure the preparation of quality financial and performance reporting.



47. Management did not ensure that the action plan of the prior year was timeously implemented to
prevent repeat findings as well as to prevent non-compliance with legislation.

Pietermaritzburg

13 December 2024

AUDITOR G ENERAL
SOUTH A FRICA

Auditing to build public confidence



Annexure to the auditor’s report

The annexure includes the following:

The auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

The selected legislative requirements for compliance testing

Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

Professional judgement and professional scepticism

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures
performed on reported performance information for the selected material performance indicators
and on the municipality’s compliance with selected requirements in key legislation.

Financial statements

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s
report, [ also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks: and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipality’s internal control

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made

conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements. 1 also conclude, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern. If |
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My
conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the municipality to cease operating as a
going concern

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Communication with those charged with governance

| communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

I also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

11



Compliance with legislation — selected legislative requirements

The selected legislative requirements are as follows:

Legislation

Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003

MFMA: Municipal bud
regulations, 2009

get and reporting

Sections or regulations ’
Sections: 1, 11(1), 13(2), 14(1), 14(2)(a), 14(2)(b), 15, Sections:
24(2)(c)(iv), 28(1), 29(1), 29(2)(b), 32(2), 32(2)(a), Sections:

32(2)(a)(i), 32(2)(aii), 32(2)(b), 32(6)(a), 32(7), Sections:
93(1)(c)(ii), 54(1)c), 62(1)(d), 63(2)(a), 63(2)(c), Sections: 64(2)(b),
64(2)(c), 64(2)(e), 64(2)(f), 64(2)(g), Sections: 65(2)(a), 65(2)(b),
65(2)(e), 72(1)(a)ii), 112(1)(j), Sections: 116(2)(b), 116(2)(c)(ii),
117, 122(1), 122(2), Sections: 126(1)(a), 126(1)(b), 127(2),
127(5)a)(i),

Sections: 127(5)(a)(ii), 129(1), 129(3), 133(1)(a), 133(1)(c)i),
Sections: 133(1)(cXii), 170, 171(4)(a), 171(4)(b)

Regulations: 71(1)a), 71(1)(a)(b), 71(2)(a), 71(2)(b), Regulations:
71(2)(d), 72(a), 72(b), 72(c)

| MFMA: Municipal Investment Regulations, 2005

MFMA: Municipal Regulations on Financial
Misconduct Procedures and Criminal
Proceedings, 2014

Reguiations: 3(1)(a), 3(3), 6, 7, 12(2), 12(3) 1

Regulations: 5(4), 6(8)(a), 6(8)(b), 10(1)

MFMA: Municipal Supply Chain Management
Regulations, 2017

Construction Industry Development Board Act 38
of 2000

Construction Industry Development Board
Regulations, 2004

Division of Revenue Act
Municipal Property Rates Act 6 of 2004

Regulations: 5, 12(1)(c), 12(3), 1 3(b), 13(c), 16(a), Regulations:
17(1)a), 17(1)(b), 17(1)(c), 19(a), 21(b), Regulations: 22(1)(b)(i),
22(2), 27(2)(a), 27(2)(e),

Regulations: 28( 1)(@)(i), 29(1)(a), 29(1)(b), 29(5)(a)(ii), Regulations:
29(5)(bii), 32, 36(1), 36(1)(a), 38(1)(c), Regulations: 38( 1)(dXii),
38(1)(e), 38(1)(g)i), 38(1)(g)(ii), Regulations: 38(1)g)Xiii), 43, 44,

46(2)(e), 46(2)(f)" |
Section: 18(1)

Reguiations: 17, 25(7A)

Sections: 11(6)(b), 12(5), 16(1); 16(3)
Section: 3(1)

Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000

MSA: Disciplinary Regulations for Senior
Managers, 2011

MSA: Municipal Planning and Performance
Management Regulations, 2001

MSA: Municipal Performance Regulations for
Municipal Managers and Managers Directly
Accountable to Municipal Managers, 2006

of Employment of Senior Managers, 2014
MSA: Municipal Staff Regulations
Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities
Act 12 of 2004

Preferential Procuremen
of 2000

Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2017

Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2022

MSA: Regulations on Appointment and Conditions

“Regulations: 7(1),31
Section: 34(1)

t Policy Framework Act 5 Sections: 2(1)(a), 2(1)()

Sections: 25(1), 26(a), 26(c), 26(h), 26(1), 29(1)(b)ii), 34(a),
Sections: 34(b), 38(a), 41(1)(a), 41(1)(b), 41(1)(c)(ii), 42, Sections:
43(2), 54A(1)(a),56(1)(a), 57(2)(a), 57(6)(a), Sections: 66(1)(a),
66(1)(b), 67(1)(d), 74(1),96(b)

Regulations: 5(2), 5(3), 5(6), 8(4)

Regulations: 2(1)(e), 2(3)(a), 3(3), 3(4)(b), 7(1), 8, 9(1)(a),
Regulations: 10(a), 12(1), 15(1 Xa)(i), 15(1)(a)ii)

[ Regulations: 2(3)(a), 4(4)(b), 8(1), 8(2), 8(3)

Regulations: 17(2), 36(1)(a)

Regulations: 4(1), 4(2), 5(1), 5(3), 5(6), 5(7), 6(1), 6(2), Regulations:
6(3), 6(6), 6(8), 7( 1), 7(2), 7(3), 7(6), 7(8), Regulations: 8(2), 8(5),
9(1), 10(1), 10(2),11(1), 11(2)

Regulations: 4(1), 4(2), 4(3), 4(4), 5(1), 5(2) 5(3), 5(4)
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APPENDICES DESCRIPTION

Appendix A: Councillors; Committee Allocation

No. | Council Member Ward and party | Status quo Replacement
represented in 2023/24
1. Cllr SM Khoza Ward 5 IFP Active
2. | Cllr N Nkosi Ward 4 ANC Active
3. | Clir NM Dekker Ward 2 DA Active
4. | Clir PX Qwabe Ward 3 IFP Active
5. | Clir MJ Mthethwa Ward 6 IFP Active
6. | Clir KV Sibisi Ward 1 ANC Active
7. | Clir M.R Khumalo PR EFF Active
8. | Clir VC Ndlovu PR ANC Active
9. | Cllr ML Buthelezi PR IFP Active
10. | Clir N Madida PR ANC Active
11. | Clir PF Chongo PR NFP Active
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Appendix B: Committee and Committee Purpose
Portfolio Committees

'BUDGET, TREASURY & CORPORATE SERVICES PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE

COUNCILLORS NAME DESIGNATION PURPOSE OF THE
| R COMMITTEE B 1
1. Clir ML Buthelezi Chairperson + Administering the capital

and operational budgets of
the Municipal Council;

« Encouraging the
involvement of the
community of the
municipality and its
community organisations
and institutions in the
matters of the

municipality;

¢ Ensuring that the

governmental discretions

exercised by the
municipality are
democratic, consistent

and accountable; and
Administering  Council's

assets

= The leasing, letting, hiring

and alienation of the

goods and intellectual
property of the
municipality in accordance

with a system which is fair,

equitable, transparent,
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2. Clir PF Chongo Member
3. Clir N Dekker Member
4. Clir VC Ndlovu Member
5. ClIr NA Madida Member
6. Clir MJ Mthethwa Member
7. Clir MR Khumalo Member
8. Inkosi ZG Mabaso | Member
9. Inkosi MM Nzima Member

Administration of ward
committee with the

municipality;

Overseeing certain

municipal library services

To pay attention to
Operation Sukuma Sakhe

to the entire municipality
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INFRASTRUCTURE AND PLANNING DEVELOPMENT  PORTFOLIO
COMMITTEE

COUNCILLORS DESIGNATION | PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE
NAME — —__
1. Clir FP Chongo | Chairperson Advising on legislation and service

delivery mechanisms, which are within

the financial

Overseeing the delivery of certain
municipal services and facilities; and

projects

Ensuring, subject to any policy that the

Municipal Council may determine in-
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~ The provision of Human Settlement and |

Infrastructure to the community of the

municipality in a sustainable manner by

overseeing Human Settlements and

Infrastructure development and Human

settiements and Infrastructure

2. Clir N Dekker Member

3. Clir MR | Member
Khumalo

4. Cllr SM Khoza Member

5. ClIr N Nkosi Member

6. ClIr KV Sibisi Member

7. Inkosi ZG | Member

. Mabaso _

8. Inkosi MM | Member

Nzima

1}

Dekker

MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE
Clir N.M | Chairperson

PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE

2. ClIr M.J | Member

Mthethwa

To monitor good governance where there is
optimal utilisation of municipal resources to
enhance and sustain service delivery and
financial management
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3. Clir M.R | Member ‘
Khumalo
} 4. ClIr N.A]Member
|

Madida
|__5. ClirN. Nkosi | Member |

| LOCAL LABOUR FORUM
COUNCILLORS NAME [ DESIGNATION | PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE

1. Clir. N.M | Chairperson * promote the interests of all workers
Dekker
* enhance workplace efficiency;
2. Cllr. N.R | Member
Khumalo * consult with the employer: and

’ * take part in decision-making

APPENDIX C: Third Tier Administrative Structure

NAME ' DESIGNATION jl
| MRS G.N Mavundia Municipal Manager
[MRS P.P Sithole [| Chief Finance Officer
lr MRS N.N Madinana Deputy Director Corporate Services |
Mr. S.M Nkwanyana inrector Municipal Planning ani’
Technical Services

Vacant Posts

| Status
’:Director Community Services and ( Vacant (Acting Director — Ms N, Zungu)
| Public Safety !
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Appendix D: Powers and Functions

Air pollution Yes No
Building Yes No
regulations

Child care| Yes No
facilities

Electricity Yes No
reticulation

Fire Fighting Yes Yes
Local tourism Yes No
Municipal airport No Yes
Municipal Yes No
Planning

Municipal Health | No Yes
Services

Municipal public | Yes No
transport

L
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Pontoons and | Yes No
ferries

Storm water Yes No
Trading Yes No
regulations

Water (Potable) No Yes
Sanitation No Yes

Amusement
facilities
/Beaches

Yes

No

Billboards and
the display of
advertisements in
public places

Yes

Yes

Cemeteries,
funeral parlours
and crematoria

Yes

No

Cleansing

Yes

No

Control of public
nuisance

Yes

No
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Control of | Yes No
undertakings that
sell liquor to the
public |

=
Facilities for the| Yes No
accommodation,
care and burial of
animals
Fencing and | Yes No
fences
Licensing of dogs | Yes No
Licensing and | Yes No
control of
undertakings that
sell food to the
public
Local amenities Yes Yes
Local sport | Yes Yes
facilities
Markets I Yes No
Municipal Yes No
abattoirs
L
Municipal parks | Yes No

and recreation
L
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Municipal roads Yes No

Yes No
Refuse removal, | Yes No
refuse dumps
and solid waste
disposal
Street trading Yes No
Street lighting Yes No
Traffic No
parking
Municipal public | Yes Yes
works
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Appendix E: Ward Reporting

Ward Pr|or|ty B ’ Turnaround Strategy |
Water & Sanitation ’ Amajuba District is

/ * Electricity the water supplier.
/ | e Roads e 151 connectins in
( progress at Dorothea.

* Regravelling of 4.6
KMs of Dorothea
Access Road }

} * Roads are being ’

I maintained by the
Municipal grader as
and when required.

¢ Roads * Scheepers Street,
* Job opportunities / Phase 2, (0.4 KM)
¢ Housing ’ resurfaced and

completed by (MIG)

* Plein Street, (0.9 KM)
resurfaced and
completed by (MIG)

¢ Upgrade and
completion of
Sportfied

* Kerk street, Phase 3
(0.7 KM) resurfaced
and completed by
(MIG)

¢ Rehabilitation of 0.6
KMs of Keerom Street

* 121 Young people

were employed

through EPWP

Programme for 6 |

Months.

Goedehoop housing

roject in progress

* Amajuba District is
the water supplier,

* 08 connections at

} Stilenga in

* Jiyane 10 households

} has been energized.

* 14 connections at
Ndwakazane

e Water & Sanitation
* Electricity
¢ Roads
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f * Regravelling of 2.4 f
; KMs of vaalbank
| access road in
| progress
* Roads are being
maintained by the
Municipal grader as |

and when required.

|

* Water & Sanitation
* Electricity
¢ Roads

* Amajuba Districtis |
the water supplier.

* 58 connections were
energized at Blue
Mountain.

¢ 25 connections
energized in
Kwantaba

* 19 connections

' energized in

Kaarpoort

* Regravelling of 4.6

KMs at Reserve

access road in

progress

Roads are being |

maintained by the

Municipal grader as

and when required.

|

Amajuba District is
the water supplier.
51 households has
been energized at
Emadlangeni
Regravelling of 4.6
KMs at Reserve
access road in
progress
Regravelling of 2.9
KMs at Lens access
road in progress

* Roads are being
maintained by the

Municipal grader as
and when required. /
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e Electricity | o
Roads

|
( .

|

| Créches * Shortage of créches

Schoois ¢ Shortage of scholar
transport

Increase number in
teenage pregnancy
Shortage of
classrooms and

educators

¢ Lack of sanitation
services

Sanitation

Clinics Shortage of clinics
* Shortage of
community care
| givers
| Disaster * Shortage of

lightning conductors

L

New connections f
planned for 2024/25
financial year. |
Regravelling of 4.6 KMs
of Miwane access road in |'
progress |
* Roads are being |
maintained by the
Municipal grader as
and when required.
¢ To build sustainable
creche
e To liaise with
Department of
Transport in
partnership with DOE
* Conduct awareness
campaigns in schools
on family planning
and unprotected sex.
* The project of
installing VIP
Toilets has been
completed in Ward |
1 (KwalLembe)
and in Ward 5
(Vaalbank).
Clinics cannot be built
in an area with a
population of less
than 10 000 people,
therefore health
services will be
provided through
mobile clinics and the
school health team
visits schools for
screening and other
health related
campaigns. J
* 40 Lightning
conductors have been
installed in 3 wards
that have been
affected by lightning.
lightning conductors
were installed by
PMDC and Amajuba
District due to budget
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constrains in the
Municipality.

Libraries * Shortage of libraries * Departement of Art
and Culture
constructed a Library
in Ward 05 Izimbuthu,

* Transnet denoted with
4 mobile libraries
(cupboards) to 4
schools within the

ELM.

* CONCLUSION

2023/24 Financial year js at 78%. The municipality performance declined by 10%
since the previous financial year.
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